
South Hams Council

Title: Agenda
Date: Thursday, 10th December, 2015

Time: 2.00 pm

Venue: Council Chamber - Follaton House

Full Members: Chairman Cllr Bramble
Vice Chairman Cllr Smerdon

Members: Cllr Baldry
Cllr Barnes
Cllr Bastone
Cllr Blackler
Cllr Brazil
Cllr Brown
Cllr Cane
Cllr Cuthbert
Cllr Foss
Cllr Gilbert
Cllr Green
Cllr Hawkins
Cllr Hicks
Cllr Hitchins
Cllr Hodgson

Cllr Holway
Cllr May
Cllr Pearce
Cllr Pennington
Cllr Pringle
Cllr Rowe
Cllr Saltern
Cllr Smerdon
Cllr Steer
Cllr Tucker
Cllr Vint
Cllr Ward
Cllr Wingate
Cllr Wright

Interests – 
Declaration and 
Restriction on 
Participation:

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary interest not entered in the Authority's 
register or local non pecuniary interest which they have in any 
item of business on the agenda (subject to the exception for 
sensitive information) and to leave the meeting prior to 
discussion and voting on an item in which they have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest.

Committee 
administrator:

Member.Services@swdevon.gov.uk



Page No

1.  Minutes 1 - 16

to approve as a correct record and authorise the Chairman to 
sign the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 8 October 
2015 and the Special Council meeting held on 5 November 2015 

2.  Urgent Business

the Chairman to announce if any item not on the agenda should 
be considered on the basis that he considers it as a matter of 
urgency (any such item to be dealt with under ‘Business Brought 
forward by the Chairman’);

3.  Confidential Business

the Chairman to inform the meeting of any confidential item of 
business;

4.  Exempt Information

to consider whether the consideration of any item of business 
would be likely to disclose exempt information and if so the 
category of such exempt information;

5.  Declarations of Interest

Members are invited to declare any personal; or disclosable 
pecuniary interests, including the nature and extent of such 
interests they may have in any items to be considered at this 
meeting;

6.  Chairman's Engagements 

7.  Business Brought Forward by the Chairman 17 - 24

to consider business (if any) brought forward by the Chairman;

8.  Questions

to consider the following question received in accordance with 
Council Procedure Rule 8.

(a) From Cllr Hodgson to Cllr Hicks, lead Executive Member 
for Business Development and the Local Plan

‘Given the importance of Neighbourhood Plans to Our Plan: 
South Hams and the likely impact on many of them and the 
extended timescale that Our Plan is experiencing, can we 
make an additional £5,000 available to Neighbourhood Plans 
that are currently underway?’



Page No

9.  Notice of Motion

to consider the following motions received (if any) in accordance 
with Council Procedure Rule 10.1

(a) By Cllrs Wright and Ward

‘As a result of the Government’s recent announcement that 
Housing Associations will have to cut Social housing rents by 
1% each year for the next four years from April 2015, this 
Council wishes to express its concerns that this policy will 
reduce the number of affordable homes being brought 
forward in our District, and asks for the support of the local 
members of Parliament.’

(b)By Cllrs Pennington and Hodgson

‘A review of the Freedom of Information Act 2005 is currently 
being undertaken under the Chairmanship of Lord Bridges.  
South Hams District Council consider that, in the important 
interests of local democracy, there will not be any charges or 
fees levied on applicants, as this would deter the use of the 
Act.  Additionally, there must not be any increase in 
exemptions, as it would countermand the wise words of the 
then Lord Chancellor Lord Falconer in 2005 who described the 
Act as “a constitutional change of great significance, a radical 
and permanent change in the relationship between the citizen 
and government.”’

(c) By Cllrs Pennington and Hodgson

‘South Hams District Council expects all statutory consultees 
for planning applications involving the construction of 
dwellings and all planning applications for industrial and 
commercial developments to provide written reports to be 
made available to all Councillors and members of the public if 
requested to conform with the Freedom of Information Act 
2005 and the Access to Information Act 2000 in the name of 
local democracy.  The practice of any reliance on verbal 
reports only should be discontinued.  Similarly, all of the 
above requirements must be observed for licensing 
applications submitted to South Hams District Council 
Licensing Committee.’

(d)By Cllrs Hodgson and Green

‘This Council will endeavour (through the LGA) to seek new 
legislation at National Government to enable significant 
increases in Council Tax for Second Homes and Holiday 
Homes.’



Page No

(e) By Cllrs Hodgson and Green

‘This Council will continue to support the need for social and 
affordable housing and consider direct purchase of housing as 
part of its investment strategy.’

(f) By Cllrs Vint and Green

‘This Council will, in order to protect small business and 
vulnerable residents, seek to identify where flat-rate charges 
for key services can be replaced by fees that correspond with 
ability to pay, prior to approval of the 2016/17 Budget:

(i) by linking charges for key business services, where 
appropriate, to business rates or floor area; and

(ii) by linking charges for key services for residents, where 
appropriate, to Council Tax bands.’

10.  Devolution Draft Proposal 25 - 86

to consider a report that seeks to endorse the current approach 
to devolution and the drafting of proposals, their submission and 
negotiation of a deal for the Heart of the South West;

11.  Corporate Enforcement Policy 87 - 110

to consider a report that seeks to adopt the Corporate 
Enforcement Policy;

12.  Reports of Bodies

to receive and, as may be necessary, approve the 
recommendations of the under-mentioned Bodies:-

* Indicates minutes containing recommendations to Council.

(a)  Development Management Committee-23 September 2015 111 - 124

(b)  Audit Committee - 24 September 2015 125 - 130

(c)  Salcombe Harbour Board* - 28 September 2015 131 - 140

(d)  EXECUTIVE* - 15 OCTOBER 2015 141 - 150

(NB. the Council Tax Reduction policy document which underpins 
recommendation E.34/15 is available upon request from Member 
Services)



Page No

(e)  Development Management Committee- 21 October 2015 151 - 162

(f)  Salcombe Harbour Board - 2 November 2015 163 - 168

(g)  Licensing Committee* - 12 November 2015 169 - 172

(h)  Development Management Committee- 18 November 2015 173 - 182

(i)  Overview & Scrutiny Panel* - 19 November 2015 183 - 196





 
-1 - 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE SOUTH HAMS DISTRICT COUNCIL HELD 
AT FOLLATON HOUSE, TOTNES ON THURSDAY 8 OCTOBER 201 5 

 
MEMBERS 

 
* Cllr I Bramble – Chairman 

 
* Cllr P C Smerdon – Vice-Chairman 

 
* Cllr K J Baldry 
* Cllr N A Barnes 
* Cllr H D Bastone 
Ø Cllr J I G Blackler 
* Cllr J Brazil 
* Cllr D Brown 
* Cllr B F Cane 
* Cllr P K Cuthbert 
* Cllr R J Foss 
* Cllr R D Gilbert 
* Cllr J D Hawkins 
* Cllr M J Hicks 
* Cllr P W Hitchins 
* Cllr J M Hodgson 

* Cllr T R Holway 
* Cllr D Horsburgh 
* Cllr D W May 
* Cllr J A Pearce 
* Cllr J T Pennington 
* Cllr K Pringle  
* Cllr R Rowe 
* Cllr M F Saltern 
* Cllr R C Steer 
* Cllr R J Tucker 
* Cllr R J Vint 
* Cllr L A H Ward 
* Cllr K R H Wingate 
* Cllr S A E Wright 

  
* Denotes attendance 

 
Ø  Denotes apology for absence 

 
Officers in attendance and participating: 

For all items: Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer, Section 151 Officer and Senior 
Specialist (Democratic Services); and 

 
Agenda Item 8 (Minute 31/15 below refers): Grant Thornton Audit Manager. 

 
 
28/15 MINUTES 
 

The minutes of the annual meeting of Council held on 21 May 2015 and 
the Special Council meeting held on 10 September 2015 were confirmed 
as a correct record and signed by the Chairman, subject to removal of 
‘Cllr A S Gorman’ as being in the list of Members at both meetings. 
 

 
29/15 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

Members were invited to declare any interests in the items of business to 
be considered during the course of the meeting, but there were none 
made. 

 
 
30/15 CHAIRMAN’S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

The Chairman announced that his chosen charity for this year was to be 
the Devon Air Ambulance. 



 Cncl 8.10.15 
 

 - 2 -
  

 
 
31/15 THE AUDIT FINDINGS FOR THE 2014/15 ACCOUNTS FOR SOUTH 

HAMS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

A report was considered that presented Grant Thornton’s Audit Findings 
for the year ending 31 March 2015. 
 
The Grant Thornton Audit Manager took Members through the report and 
in the subsequent debate, particular reference was made to:- 
 
- the Value for Money conclusions.  The Audit Committee Chairman 

wished to highlight Grant Thornton’s Value for Money conclusions in 
respect of: 
 
o the Council having robust systems and processes to manage 

effectively financial risks and opportunities, and to secure a stable 
financial position that enabled it to continue to operate for the 
foreseeable future; and 

o the Council prioritising its resources within tighter budgets, for 
example by achieving cost reductions and by improving efficiency 
and productivity. 
 

- the excellent audit report.  In light of the excellent report, a number of 
Members wished for their congratulations and thanks to be extended 
to the Section 151 Officer and her finance colleagues. 

   
  It was then: 
 

RESOLVED 
 
That the Audit Findings be noted. 

 
 
32/15  QUESTIONS 

 
It was noted that six questions had been received in accordance with 
Council Procedure Rule 8. 

 
From Cllr Pennington to Cllr Holway, Chairman of th e Licensing 
Sub-Committee meeting held on 20 August 2015 

 
(a) ‘Of the four Licensing Objectives that underpin the Licensing Act 2003, 

two of these state: ‘public safety’ and ‘the prevention of public 
nuisance’.  Therefore, on the application for a new premises licence for 
Firewood Restaurant and Bar in Marldon on 20 August 2015, the 
Licensing Sub-Committee did not receive a ‘police report’ in relation to 
the application giving any views or opinion on ‘public safety’ and ‘public 
nuisance’ despite strong objections from the public and parish council 
and it has been confirmed that only a verbal confirmation had been 
received from the Police Licensing Officer that he had no objections to 
the application.   
 

  



 Cncl 8.10.15 
 

 - 3 -
  

Therefore, in reaching the conclusion to grant the application, the 
Licensing Sub-Committee did not have either any written evidence from 
the police or any knowledge as to whether the police had visited and 
appraised the location and investigated the objections from members of 
the public and the parish council on issues citing both ‘public safety’ 
and ‘public nuisance’. 

 
 Does the Chairman of the Licensing Sub-Committee therefore consider 

that the failure of the police, as a statutory consultee, to produce a 
written report on the issues of ‘public safety’ and ‘public nuisance’ for 
consideration by the Licensing Sub-Committee to be in breach of the 
Licensing Act 2003 and hence if so to invalidate the decision taken by 
the Licensing Sub-Committee?’ 

 
In response, Cllr Holway stated that he did not agree that the Police had 
failed in this regard. 
 
From Cllr Pennington to Cllr Holway, Chairman of th e Licensing 
Sub-Committee meeting held on 20 August 2015 
 
(b) ‘Can the Chairman of the Licensing Sub-Committee confirm whether 

a police officer visited the site of the Firewood Restaurant and Bar to 
investigate any issues involving ‘Public Safety’ and ‘Prevention of 
Public Nuisance’ and if so the date on which any such visit took place 
and the name of the police officer?’ 

 
In reply, Cllr Holway responded ‘yes’, ‘no’ and ‘no’ respectively. 
 
From Cllr Pennington to Cllr Steer, Chairman of the  Development 
Management Committee meeting 

 
(c) ‘Can the Chairman of the Development Management Committee give 

an assurance that in connection with all future planning applications, 
the Planning Authority will demand written reports to be submitted to 
South Hams District Council Planning Authority by all statutory 
consultees and NOT merely verbal confirmation either in support or 
against applications?’ 
 
In reply, Cllr Steer stated that the Council would not demand that 
written reports be submitted by all statutory consultees.  In addition, 
whilst legislation set out the definition of a response, it did not 
mention how that response should be submitted.  Therefore, it would 
be difficult to insist on a written report, but it was presumed that, 
should a consultee wish to make a comment either in favour or 
against an application, then it would be received in writing.  Finally, 
Cllr Steer informed that, if a statutory consultee had ‘no comment ‘to 
make, then it was not felt that the Council could insist on that being in 
writing. 
 

  
  



 Cncl 8.10.15 
 

 - 4 -
  

From Cllr Pennington to Cllr May, Chairman of the L icensing 
Committee 

 
(d) ‘Will the Chairman of the Licensing Committee confirm that in all 

future licensing applications, written reports will be demanded from all 
statutory consultees?’ 

 
In reply, Cllr May stated that written reports would not be demanded from 
statutory consultees in all future licensing applications. 
 
 From Cllr Hodgson to Cllr Tucker, Leader of the Cou ncil 

 
(e) ‘In light of the current refugee crisis (and the recent update from the 

Council’s Specialist (Communications and Media) on the Refugee 
Crisis), I ask the Leader if this Council is willing to play its part in 
supporting and accommodating its fair share of refugees.  Would the 
Leader therefore be willing to agree to: 

 
o Ask our Housing Officer to write to local housing associations, 

owners of empty houses and second homes in the South Hams to 
encourage them to make properties available to resettle refugees; 

o Commit to ensuring that refugees are welcomed in this area and 
help facilitate this process by asking our officers and Councillors 
to support local service provision and work with those co-
ordinating the immense public will to help; and 

o Write to the Prime Minister to assure him that South Hams District 
Council stands ready and willing to help at this time of crisis.’ 

 
 In response, Cllr Tucker made the following points:- 
 

(a) Further to the statement he had made at the last Executive 
meeting on 10 September 2015 (Minute E.17/15 refers), the 
Council remained committed and willing to fulfil its responsibilities 
to accommodate refugees; 
 

(b) Officers were in regular discussions with colleagues at Devon 
County Council (DCC) and it was as yet unknown how many 
refugees were to be accommodated in the South West region.  
Moreover, the Local Government Association and District Council 
Network were talking to Ministers on a daily basis on this issue; 

 
(c) Until the Council was made aware of what was being proposed 

by central government and DCC, it was felt to be a little early in 
the process to be writing to Registered Social Landlords; 

 
(d) The general infrastructure of the South Hams (e.g. transport and 

highways links) would not make it easy to support and 
accommodate refugees; 

 
(e) He was committed to keeping all Members informed of progress 

updates on what was such an evolving and important issue. 
 

  



 Cncl 8.10.15 
 

 - 5 -
  

Prior to asking a supplementary question, Cllr Hodgson handed Cllr 
Tucker a 178 signatory petition which asked that the Council be 
proactive in this regard.  In her supplementary, Cllr Hodgson made 
reference to a public meeting in Totnes on this matter at 7.00pm on 
Saturday, 10 October and asked if Cllr Tucker would be willing and 
able to attend.  In response, Cllr Tucker advised that he was unable 
to attend due to a prior commitment, but he would see if any other 
Council representatives were able to attend.    

 
  From Cllr Baldry to Cllr Tucker, Leader of the Coun cil 

 
(f) Is the Leader aware that Maidstone Borough Council has written into 

their Constitution that Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of Committees 
have to be from different political groups and does he agree with the 
Leader of Maidstone BC that such a requirement increases 
transparency and public confidence? 

 
 In response, Cllr Tucker advised that the political composition of 

Maidstone Borough Council was much more finely balanced than South 
Hams District Council.  The Leader proceeded to inform that he 
remained committed to ensuring that the most suitable Members were 
appointed to the most appropriate Council roles regardless of political 
affiliation.  For example, the Leader cited the Salcombe Harbour Board 
Chairman appointment as a casing point. 

 
 In his supplementary, Cllr Baldry asked the Leader if he was aware of 

recent research from Cambridge University that had concluded that local 
authorities were wasting millions of pounds and there was a consequent 
need for more rigorous scrutiny.  In reply, the Leader confirmed that he 
was aware of the findings and it was his view that the new governance 
arrangements (post May 2015 elections) had resulted in the Council now 
having a far more robust overview and scrutiny function. 

 
  
33/15 NOTICE OF MOTIONS 
 

It was noted that three motions had been received in accordance with 
Council Procedure Rule 10.1. 
 
(a) By Cllrs Wright and Ward  

 
‘As a result of the Governments recent announcement that Housing 
Associations will have to cut Social housing rents by 1% each year 
for the next four years from April 2015, this Council wishes to express 
its concerns that this policy will reduce the number of affordable 
homes being brought forward in our District, and asks for the support 
of the local members of Parliament.’ 
 
In light of the recent ministerial statement, the proposer and 
seconder of the motion felt it would be more appropriate for this 
motion to be deferred to the next meeting.   
 

  



 Cncl 8.10.15 
 

 - 6 -
  

(b) By Cllrs Brazil and Baldry  
 
‘‘This Council welcomes the publication of the Government’s Rural 
Productivity Plan.  However, we question the solutions to solve our 
housing needs contained in the Plan.  As such we invite the 
Secretary of State to visit South Hams to hear our concerns and 
explore alternative solutions including the Village Housing 
Initiative.” 
 
In introducing the motion, the proposer made reference to:- 
 
- the published DEFRA report being welcomed.  The report 

presented a clear ten point plan for rural productivity and the 
proposer encouraged fellow Members to read the report; 

- concern over the housing needs solutions.  In particular, the 
proposer expressed concern regarding those suggested 
solutions to increase both social mobility and right to buy, whilst 
deciding to appeal the Judicial Review decision in respect of 
planning obligations thresholds.  The decision to appeal was felt 
to be in direct contradiction and would in fact (if overturned) 
result in less affordable housing provision in rural areas; 

- the purpose of the Secretary of State invite being to listen to the 
concerns of the Council and take on board its views in this 
respect.  In so doing, the proposer hoped that it was a 
misunderstanding of central government in terms of the severe 
housing issues facing rural areas like the South Hams. 

 
In discussion, the following points were raised:- 
 
(i) It was noted that there was broad agreement amongst rural 

local authorities that the national affordable housing policies did 
not reflect or take into account rural areas; 

 
(ii) Some Members stressed that policies would result in starter 

homes only being classified as such for five years.  Based upon 
current statistics, it was estimated that the average South 
Hams resident would need a £50,000 salary increase to be 
able to afford to purchase a starter home; 

 
(iii) It was felt that the most effective means of trying to achieve a 

visit from the Secretary of State was to contact our local MPs.  
Alternatively, it was also suggested by the Leader that the 
Secretary of State may be more inclined to attend a meeting of 
the Devon Districts Forum and he was happy to raise this 
matter at the next scheduled Forum meeting.  In addition, there 
was broad support for the Council writing to express our views 
to the District Council Network. 

 
  



 Cncl 8.10.15 
 

 - 7 -
  

It was then: 
 

RESOLVED 
 

This Council welcomes the publication of the 
Government’s Rural Productivity Plan.  However, we 
question the solutions to solve our housing needs 
contained in the Plan.  As such we invite the Secretary of 
State to visit South Hams to hear our concerns and 
explore alternative solutions including the Village Housing 
Initiative. 
 

 
(c) By Cllrs Hodgson and Baldry  

 
‘With regard to the recent question to Executive regarding the 
underlying factors and principles regarding SHDC annual and four 
year budgets, we wish to propose that this Council adopts a set of 
easily understood and transparent principles for how it sets the 
budget, such that all Councillors and residents can understand how 
their council tax is spent.’ 
 
In introducing the motion, the proposer made reference to:- 
 
- the value of the recent Member Budget Workshop.  The merits of 

the Workshop were recognised and this motion was seeking to 
build upon ideas that were generated at this session; 

- the motion not intending to give any more work to the S151 
Officer and her finance colleagues;  

- the benefits of showing how Council budgets related to the 
corporate priorities. 

 
In the ensuing debate, the following points were raised:- 
 
(a) Some Members expressed their reservations at this motion and 

felt that the Council did an exceptionally good job of consulting 
and communicating on the annual Budget proposals.  
Specifically, in respect of communications, there was 
considered to be merit in investigating whether the South Hams 
Matters publication should be re-established.  In response, the 
Head of Paid Service advised that both the publication and the 
wider budget setting process would form part of the 
considerations when the Council’s External Communications 
Strategy was being developed; 
 

(b) In support of the motion, other Members highlighted the public 
right for openness and transparency and were of the view that 
the public understanding of all aspects of the Council’s budget 
was poor; 

 
(c) Some Members reiterated the relevance of the value for money 

conclusions that had been reached by Grant Thornton in its 
Audit Findings report (Minute 31/15 above refers); 

 



 Cncl 8.10.15 
 

 - 8 -
  

(d) Two amendments were suggested to the motion as indicated 
below: 

 
‘With regard to the recent question to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel regarding the underlying factors and principles 
regarding SHDC annual and four year budgets, we wish to 
propose that this Council continues to utilise a set of easily 
understood and transparent principles for how it sets the budget, 
such that all Councillors and residents can understand how their 
council tax is spent.’ 

 
The proposer and seconder confirmed that they were content to 
accept both of these amendments and they were therefore 
included in the substantive motion. 

 
When put to the subsequent vote, the motion was declared LOST. 

 
 
34/15 AMENDMENTS TO THE COUNCIL’S PROCEDURE RULES 

REGARDING THE DISMISSAL OF SENIOR OFFICERS  
 
 The Council considered a report that dealt with the requirements set out 

in the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2015 in respect of the new arrangements for taking 
disciplinary action against the Council’s statutory officers, namely the 
Head of Paid Service, the Section 151 Officer and the Monitoring Officer. 

 
 In discussion, a Member stated his support for these Regulations, which 

he felt were long overdue and would reduce unnecessary bureaucracy. 
 
 It was then: 

 
RESOLVED 
 
1. That the Council amend its Procedure Rules and Officer 

Employment Rules in the Council’s Constitution to give 
effect to the provisions of the Local Authorities (Standing 
Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015 (‘the 
Regulations’).  In particular: 
 
(a) the Head of Paid Service, Section 151 Officer and 

Monitoring Officer may only be dismissed by the 
Council; and 

(b) when considering whether to dismiss any of the officers 
set out in (a) above the Council must have regard to 
any view expressed by an Independent Panel.  

 
2. That the Council’s Independent Persons (appointed under 

the Localism Act 2011) are invited to be part of a Panel for 
the purposes of the Regulations; and 
 

3. That the Monitoring Officer amend the Council Constitution 
accordingly. 

 



 Cncl 8.10.15 
 

 - 9 -
  

 
35/15 REPORTS OF BODIES 
 

RESOLVED 
 
That the minutes and recommendations of the 
undermentioned bodies be received and approved subject to 
any amendments listed below:- 
 
(a) Development Management Committee 27 May 2015 
 
(b) Overview & Scrutiny Panel 4 June 2015 
 
(c) Executive 18 June 2015 
 
(d) Audit Committee 25 June 2015 
 
(e) Development Management Committee 1 July 2015 
 
(f) Overview & Scrutiny Panel 9 July 2015 
 
(g) Salcombe Harbour Board 13 July 2015 
 
(h) Executive 23 July 2015 
  
(i) Development Management Committee 29 July 2015 
 
(j) Audit Committee 30 July 2015 
  
 A.11/15: Contract Procedure Rules  
 
 RESOLVED 

 
That the updated version of the Contract Procedure 
Rules has been reviewed and be adopted. 
 

(k) Overview and Scrutiny Panel 27 August 2015 
 

(l) Development Management Committee 2 September 2015 
 
 DM.27/15: Development Management: Public 

Participation Scheme  
 
 RESOLVED 

 
1. That the Development Management Public 

Participation Scheme be amended to enable the 
opportunity for town and parish council representatives 
to speak on planning applications within their own town 
or parish provided that they abide by the same rules as 
applied for objectors and supporters; 
 

  



 Cncl 8.10.15 
 

 - 10 -
  

2. That the Site Inspection Protocol be amended to state 
that town and parish councils are able to attend site 
inspections but would no longer be invited to make 
presentations.  There would be an opportunity for one 
spokesperson representing the town or parish council 
to ask questions of clarity or to make specific points 
based on local knowledge to the Chairman; and 
 

3. That the Development Management Public 
Participation Scheme be amended so that linked 
applications presented to Committee are only allowed 
one time slot per speaker. 
 

(m) Executive 10 September 2015 
 
 E.20/15: Invest to Save: Glass Banks at Torr Quarr y 
 
 RESOLVED 

 
1. That investment in a capital spend of a maximum of 

£28,000 to build three new glass storage bays at Torr 
Quarry in order to reduce resource requirement for 
glass collections/journeys across the district.  It was 
estimated that the investment would pay back within 
year one; 

2. That Immediate Implementation in order to maximise 
the income which can be derived from the Councils 
glass recyclate; and 

3. That the spend be taken from the capital programme 
contingency reserve. 

 
 

 E.22/15: Joint Data Protection Policy  
 

RESOLVED 
 
1. That the Joint Data Protection Policy (as attached at 

Appendix A of the presented agenda report to the 
Executive) and supporting Codes of Practice and 
documentation of the presented agenda report be 
approved; and 
 

2. That the Monitoring Officer be granted delegated 
authority to make minor amendments to the Codes of 
Practice and supporting policy documentation to reflect 
the emerging working practices of the Council. 

 
 
(n) Overview and Scrutiny Panel 17 September 2015 

 
  



 Cncl 8.10.15 
 

 - 11 -
  

O&S.42/15: Development Management Service 
Update 
 
When questioned, the Head of Paid Service informed 
that the Council’s organisational structure chart was in 
the process of being finalised and would be made 
available to Members as soon as was practically 
possible. 

 
 
(Meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 3.15 pm) 
 

_________________ 
                Chairman 





MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE SOUTH HAMS DISTRICT 
COUNCIL HELD AT FOLLATON HOUSE, TOTNES ON THURSDAY 5 NOVEMBER 

2015 
 

MEMBERS 
 

* Cllr I Bramble – Chairman 
 

* Cllr P C Smerdon – Vice-Chairman 
 

Ø Cllr K J Baldry 
* Cllr N A Barnes 
* Cllr H D Bastone 
* Cllr J I G Blackler 
* Cllr J Brazil 
* Cllr D Brown 
* Cllr B F Cane 
Ø Cllr P K Cuthbert 
* Cllr R J Foss 
* Cllr R D Gilbert 
* Cllr J P Green 
* Cllr J D Hawkins 
* Cllr M J Hicks 
Ø Cllr P W Hitchins  
* Cllr J M Hodgson 

* Cllr T R Holway 
* Cllr D Horsburgh 
* Cllr D W May 
* Cllr J A Pearce 
* Cllr J T Pennington 
* Cllr K Pringle  
* Cllr R Rowe 
* Cllr M F Saltern 
* Cllr R C Steer 
* Cllr R J Tucker 
* Cllr R J Vint 
* Cllr L A H Ward 
* Cllr K R H Wingate 
* Cllr S A E Wright 

  
* Denotes attendance 

 
Ø  Denotes apology for absence 

 
Officers in attendance and participating: 

For all items: Head of Paid Service, Executive Director (Service Delivery and 
Commercial Development), Monitoring Officer and Senior Specialist – Democratic 

Services 
 
 
36/15 WELCOME 
 

On behalf of all Members, the Chairman welcomed Cllr J P Green to his 
first Council meeting since being elected on to the Council. 
 

 
37/15 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

Members were invited to declare any interests in the items of business to 
be considered during the course of the meeting and these were recorded 
as follows:- 
 
Cllr N A Barnes declared a personal interest in Item 5: ‘Appointment to 
Council Bodies and Independent Persons’ (Minute 39/15 below refers) by 
virtue of being a neighbour of one of the proposed Independent Persons 
and remained in the meeting and took part in the vote thereon. 

 
 
 



 Cncl 5.11.15 
 

 
  

38/15 OUR PLAN UPDATE 
 

A report was considered that updated Members on the status of Our 
Plan, in particular the Development Plan element of the Plan.  The report 
made recommendations for next steps, which involved an adapted 
approach focused around the Housing Market Area (HMA) and a 
strengthened Duty to Co-operate arrangement. 
 
The report was also considered by the Executive on 15 October 2015, 
with the recommendations being endorsed (subject to inclusion of some 
minor additions) at this meeting (Minute E.31/15 refers). 
 
In discussion, the following points were raised:- 
 
(a) Some Members confirmed their support for the Executive 

recommendations and emphasised the need for the Council to make 
swift progress in this regard. 
 

(b) Two additional recommendations were separately PROPOSED and 
SECONDED as follows:- 

 
- That ‘Our Plan’ be re-named ‘Our Plan: South Hams’; and 
- That a specific Duty to Co-operate arrangement be put in place 

with neighbouring authorities in immediately adjacent Housing 
Market Areas. 

 
When voted upon individually, both proposals were subsequently 
declared CARRIED and added to the substantive motion.  
 

It was then: 
 

RESOLVED 
 

1. That Option 2 for progression of South Hams Our Plan (as set 
out at section 4 of the presented agenda report) be pursued 
recognising that this will need a plan period to 2032 or 2033 or 
alignment with neighbouring authorities; 

2. That a detailed Duty to Co-operate protocol, or similar 
agreement, be established with neighbouring planning 
authorities within the Housing Market Area.  This would  
address joint approaches to strategic planning relating to 
timetable, evidence, policies, strategic allocations, 
governance, staffing, scope of Housing Market Area, viability 
and infrastructure amongst other matters;  

3. That the Local Development Scheme be reviewed and re-
issued in line with point 1 (above); 

4. That further evidence work (joint or specific) be procured as 
required;  

5. That the response to the Our Plan Topic Papers public 
consultations be published (as set out at section 4 of the 
presented agenda report); 

  



 Cncl 5.11.15 
 

 
  

6. That the remaining Strategic Housing Land Availability 
assessment work be published (as set out in section 4 of the 
presented agenda report) and options for additional sites be 
explored; 

7. That a budget provision for 2016/17 of £75,000 be made for 
Our Plan examination anticipated to be met from the Planning 
Policy and Major Development Reserve. 

8. That guidance for Neighbourhood Plan Groups be issued to 
inform their work as it relates to Our Plan 

9. That a refreshed Our Plan Engagement Strategy be issued 
10. That regular updates be provided to the Strategic Planning 

Working Group  
11. That further monitoring reports be submitted to the Executive 

every three months and the Council as and when required 
making specific proposals for future consultation, 
consideration and submission of Our Plan 

12. That those specific details to be agreed under 
recommendations 2,3,6,8 and 9 be delegated to the Lead 
Specialist – Place and Strategy in consultation with the 
Chairman of the Strategic Planning Working Group and the 
Leader of Council; 

13. That ‘Our Plan’ be re-named ‘Our Plan: South Hams’; and 
14. That a specific Duty to Co-operate arrangement be put in 

place with neighbouring authorities in immediately adjacent 
Housing Market Areas. 

39/15 APPOINTMENTS TO COUNCIL BODIES AND INDEPENDENT 
PERSONS 

 
 The Council considered a report that sought to serve two purposes: 
  

- to appoint Cllr J P Green to serve on the Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel for the remainder of the 2015/16 Municipal Year; and 

- to re-appoint Messrs George Barnicott and Mike Fowkes as the 
Council’s Independent Persons for the period until the Annual 
Council meeting in May 2019. 

 
 It was then: 
 
  RESOLVED 
 
  That with immediate effect:- 
 

1. Cllr J P Green be appointed to serve on the Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel for the remainder of the 2015/16 Municipal 
Year; and 
 

2. Messrs George Barnicott and Mike Fowkes be appointed as 
the Council’s Independent Persons for the period until the 
Annual Council meeting in May 2019. 

 
(Meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 2.20 pm) 

_________________ 
                Chairman 





 
 Our Plan: South Hams – Local Plan Arrangements 

 
 

Report to: COUNCIL 

Date: 10 December 2015 

Title: Our Plan: South Hams Local Plan 

Arrangements 

Portfolio Area: Strategy and Commissioning 

Wards Affected: All 

Relevant Scrutiny Committee:   Overview and Scrutiny 

Urgent Decision: N Approval and 

clearance obtained: 

Y  

Date next steps can be taken:       

(e.g. referral on of recommendation or 

implementation of substantive decision)   

Immediately 
after Council 

  

Author: Ross Kennerley  

 

Role: Lead Specialist – Place and 
Strategy  

Contact: 1379    ross.kennerley@swdevon.gov.uk 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

That Council be RECOMMENDED that:- 

1. The principle of a Joint Local Plan within the Housing 
Market Area (HMA) be agreed subject to appropriate 
arrangements being put in place with neighbouring 

planning authorities; 
2. A detailed Collaboration Agreement establishing the 

operation of the Joint Local Plan be developed with 

neighbouring planning authorities (and any other 
relevant organisations); 

3. The Collaboration Agreement include, but not 
necessarily be limited to, the following matters 
• Strategic Context 

• Objectives and Priorities 
• Joint Spatial Framework 

• Governance and working arrangements 
• Local Development Scheme and timescales 

• Evidence 
• Infrastructure 
• Policies 

• Allocations 



 
 Our Plan: South Hams – Local Plan Arrangements 

 
 

• Engagement and Consultation 
• Resources and Staffing 

• Examination 
• Assessments 
• Monitoring and Review;  

4. That a further report be submitted to Council setting out 
the detailed policy and allocation proposals that are to 

be subject to consultation, consideration and 
submission within the Joint Local Plan element of Our 

Plan: South Hams; and 

5. Those details to be agreed under recommendations 1, 2 
& 3 are delegated to the Lead Specialist – Place and 

Strategy in consultation with Chair of Strategic Planning 
Working Group and Leader. 

 

1. Executive summary  

 
Members considered and supported a refreshed approach to the Local Plan element 
of Our Plan: South Hams at Executive on 15 October 2015 and Council on 5 

November 2015.        
 

The substantive element of the refreshed approach was a recognition of the 
importance of planning comprehensively across the Housing Market Area (HMA) 
and, in particular, working closely under the Duty to Co-operate with neighbouring 

planning authorities. 
 

Detailed discussions have now taken place to advance this co-operative working 
approach.   The outcome of this further work is that the most effective and efficient 
manner to address the duty to co-operate is considered to be the formalisation of 

the arrangement within a Joint Local Plan across the HMA.   This approach allows 
the overall housing numbers within the HMA to be allocated, delivered, monitored 

and reviewed within a shared and clearly defined spatial framework.  This spatial 
framework will seek to identify and manage housing delivery at appropriate levels 
across the HMA. 

 
In order to advance this arrangement Members are asked to agree the principle of 

the establishment of a Joint Local Plan and that this be secured through a 
collaboration agreement.    It is anticipated that this agreement will include West 
Devon Borough Council, Plymouth City Council and Dartmoor National Park 

Authority (with precise implementation of the joint approach and Joint Plan to be 
established in the agreement).  

 
The precise details of any policies, allocations and other matters of detail to be set 
out in in the Joint Local Plan will be brought back to Executive and Council for 

agreement before publication and consultation. 
 



 

 Our Plan: South Hams – Local Plan Arrangements 
 

 
The refreshed approach agreed in November also identified a wide range of 
operational matters.  These are progressing (as reported in the Members Bulletin) 

and will continue unhindered. 
 

2. Background 
 
Our Plan: South Hams will be the single strategic plan that sets out the vision, 

objectives and activities of South Hams District Council.   It brings together all 
strategies and plans and sets out a comprehensive story of what the council wants 

to achieve through two blended and inter-related elements 

• The corporate plan establishing the Councils vision, objectives, 
priorities, actions and delivery approaches and 

• The Local Plan establishing land use planning policies and allocations 

The overarching corporate plan role was recently reviewed at Overview and 
Scrutiny.   This included a review of the 15/16 delivery plan for council wide 
activities with the recommendation to Council that this element be re-issued for the 

start of the 2016/17 financial year as a means of clarifying Council vision, 
objectives, priorities and delivery. 

 
The Local Plan element of Our Plan: South Hams was subject to review in the 
reports to Executive and Council.    This recognised the need to take account of a 

wide range of local and national issues impacting on local planning.  This led to 
members agreeing to a refreshed plan timescale based around a duty to co-operate 

approach within the Housing Market Area incorporating West Devon, Plymouth and 
relevant parts of Dartmoor National Park.   This report focusses on this Local Plan 

element. 
 
The primary recommendation in the Council resolution was to investigate a 

collaboration agreement focussed on the LPAs within the HMA.    With the 
imperative to move rapidly this matter has been pursued and been subject to 

consideration at senior officer and member level.    The duty to co-operate and the 
constraints of needing to plan across the HMA leave the Council no option but to 
work closely with neighbouring LPAs – however this can merely be at a basic level.    

To really explore the opportunities Councils are encouraged to look beyond basic 
cooperation and to consider entering into a Joint Local Plan.  In looking at this Joint 

Plan option a number of benefits have been identified including 
 

• One Process, One Examination, One Inspector  

• Aligned single strategic framework and timescales across the whole HMA. 
• Enables a sensible distribution of growth across the whole area – focused on 

Plymouth as the growth hub  
• Focusing growth on Plymouth enables the market towns and rural 

communities to focus on appropriate housing levels in the rural areas and 

establish clear context for Neighbourhood Planning 
• Joint monitoring arrangements to ensure the strategy is delivered within 

context of spatial framework 
• Duty to Cooperate & Soundness tests fully satisfied 
• Resource efficiencies and cost savings realised due to a single process.  

• A single evidence base, Sustainability appraisal and Habitats Regulations 
Assessment. 



 

 Our Plan: South Hams – Local Plan Arrangements 
 

 
 
Under these overall principles the Joint Local Plan could establish the overall housing 

and employment requirements across the HMA – and then allocate these to deliver 
specific spatial elements where there are distinctly different contexts for housing 

and employment.  The following approaches are being investigated for inclusion 
 

• Britain’s Ocean City –Plymouth and the Urban Fringe 

• Thriving Towns and Villages – South Hams and West Devon  
• Nationally Important Landscapes – AONBs and DNPA. 

 
Any Joint Local Plan would only deal with land use planning, development policies, 
allocations and related matters.  The distinct identities and roles of the participating 

Council’s would be fully retained – as would the separate corporate plans into which 
the Joint Local Plan would sit.   This can be illustrated as follows. 

 

 
 
 
 

 



 

 Our Plan: South Hams – Local Plan Arrangements 
 

 
Discussions around this approach have taken place with Plymouth City Council, 
West Devon Borough Council and Dartmoor National Park Authority and these 

authorities are also considering this Joint Local Plan approach.   The decisions for 
DNPA are complicated as it straddles two HMAs and further consideration will be 

needed.   Discussions will also be needed with Devon County Council and Cornwall 
Council to establish their role in supporting the Joint Plan approach. 
 

Any agreement by members only establishes the principle of the Joint Local Plan 
approach.  It is proposed that the final decision be delegated and be subject to full 

and detailed further investigations, the establishment of appropriate arrangements 
and a suitable and legally robust Collaboration Agreement. 
 

Detailed matters relating to policy, allocations and related development matters will 
continue to be progressed (primarily in conjunction with the Strategic Planning 

Working Group) and will still require agreement of Council prior to publication and 
consultation. 

 
In proposing the option of a Joint Local Plan it is helpful to confirm what the Joint 
Local Plan isn’t.  It isn’t 

 
• A Proposal for joint Services, or broader joint working between the Local 

Authorities – it is simply the land use planning related Local Plan work. 
• A Proposal for SHDC to accommodate ever greater amounts of housing to 

meet Plymouth’s growth – the emerging Spatial Framework anticipates 

Plymouth taking more than its share of the HMA needs 
• A delay to plan timetables – all three Councils are already broadly aligned; a 

Joint Plan won’t change that. 
• Creating new, complex governance structures – the suggestion is a Member 

group, supported by an officer group, with all decisions taken back to 

individual Executives and  Councils 
 

Although the arrangement doesn’t anticipate wider integration of services there may 
well be operational and resource benefits in the establishment of joint staff and 
resource arrangements to bring forward the Joint Local Plan.  These could be time 

limited and details will be investigated further during establishment of the 
Collaboration Agreement. 

 
3. Outcomes/outputs  
 

The main requirement is to progress Our Plan: South Hams to submission in a 
manner that will maximise the chances of it being found sound at Examination. To 

do so the Council needs to carefully consider and address a broad, and increasing, 
range of issues. 
 

These issues, and implications, were considered in depth in the previous Council 
report and aren’t re-iterated here.  What this report does is advance the specific 

matter of how to address the Duty to co-operate and makes the proposal that 
addressing this within a Joint Local Plan offers benefits that are worthy of agreeing 
in principle and subsequently looking to establish in detail. 

 
  

 



 

 Our Plan: South Hams – Local Plan Arrangements 
 

 
4. Options available and consideration of risk  
 

The previous Council resolution established a timeline and process for progressing 
the Local Plan element of Our Plan: South Hams set out as Option 1 below.  The 

proposal in this report is to take a step further and formalise the duty to co-operate 
work into a Joint Local Plan.  This is shown at Option 2. 
 

Option 1 
Work with the other 

authorities within the HMA 
to demonstrate conclusively 

that all have complied with 
the Duty to Co-operate.  
 

Potential timescale 

 

Feb 2016 
Duty to Co-operate 

principles agreed 
 
April 2016 

Duty to Co-operate agreed 
and signed up by all 

authorities 
 
July 2016 

Further consultation 
 

Autumn/Winter 2016 
Submission 
 

Pro’s 
• Enable the plan to meet the requirements to 

show a full 15 year supply 
• Ensure evidence is robust and up to date 

• Link effectively to sub-regional HMA work  
• Provide adequate time to work with 

neighbouring authorities  

• More efficient distribution of resources 
across specialist pool within the Council 

• Fulfil our Duty to Cooperate and enable a 
common approach across the HMA  which 

would make the plan more robust 
• Opportunity for further meaningful 

consultation with town and parish councils 

and local communities 
• There will be opportunities for resource 

efficiencies through joint working 
 

Cons 

• Perception of delay for NP groups, and 
others, who are awaiting plan requirements  

• Lack of certainty for new employment 
allocations 

• Need to carefully consider presentation to 

achieve co-operation without losing identity. 
• Will need to consider timing of neighbouring 

authorities and expectation for alignment 
• Uncertainty over emerging planning policies 

at national level may lead to unforeseen 

delays 

Option 2 

Work with the other 
authorities within the HMA 

on production of a Joint 
Local Plan 
Potential timescale 

Feb 2016 
Joint Local Plan 

Collaboration  principles 
agreed 
April 2016 

Joint Local Plan 
Collaboration agreed and 

signed up by all authorities 
Summer 2016 

Pro’s 

• As above but with additional clarity over 
joint working embedded in Joint Local Plan 

Collaboration Agreement 
• Comprehensive and seamless approach to 

spatial framework, policy and allocations 

• Single examination 
• Potential costs savings 

 
Cons 

• As above but requires all authorities to work 

under binding arrangement on Joint Local 
Plan thus reliance needed between 

authorities 



 

 Our Plan: South Hams – Local Plan Arrangements 
 

 

Further consultation 

Autumn/Winter 2016 
Submission 

• Potential for loss of individual identity unless 

appropriately managed 
 

 
The agreement to investigate further the Joint Local Plan is an in principle decision.   
Final agreement (under delegation) will only progress if suitable arrangements are 

fully in place supported by an appropriate Collaboration Agreement across the 
authorities.   Areas of potential risk will be identified and managed during this 

further work and prior to any final arrangement being put in place. 
 
5.  Proposed Way Forward 

  
Members have already agreed the principle of collaborative working on the Local 

Plan.    This report seeks the agreement of members to take a further step and 
endorse the principle of a Joint Local Plan within the Housing Market Area. 
 

The establishment of an updated Local Plan – allied to a clear policy basis to support 
housing delivery is a key focus.    The use of a Joint Local Plan is considered to be 

the most appropriate mechanism. 
 
6. Implications  

 

Implications 

 

Relevant  

to  
proposals  

Y/N  

Details and proposed measures to address  

Legal/Governance 

 

 Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) 

(England) Regulations 2012  
National Planning Policy Framework 2012  

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
(2004)  
Environmental Assessment of Plans and 
Programmes Regulations 2004 

Financial 
 

 No further costs identified at this stage    

Risk  See section 4. 

Comprehensive Impact Assessment Implications 

 

Equality and 

Diversity 
 

 There are no direct implications relating to this 

report on equality and human rights. However, 
these issues will be considered as the plan is 

developed 

Safeguarding 

 

 There are no direct implications relating to this 

report on safeguarding 

Community 

Safety, Crime 
and Disorder 

 Policies will include positive measures to address 

Community safety, crime and disorder 
 

Health and 
Wellbeing 

 Policies will include positive measures to address 
Health and wellbeing 

Other 
implications 

 None identified 
 



 

 Our Plan: South Hams – Local Plan Arrangements 
 

 
 
Supporting Information 

 
None 

 
Background Papers: 
 

National Planning Policy Framework 
National Planning Policy Guidance 

Fixing the Foundations(July 2015) 
Towards a one nation economy: A 10 point plan for boosting productivity in rural 
areas (August 2015) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

 
 

Report to: COUNCIL  

Date: 8 December 2015 

Title: Heart of the South West Formal Devolution 
Bid 

Portfolio Area: Strategy and Commissioning 

 

Wards Affected: All 

Relevant Scrutiny Committee: N/A 

 

Urgent Decision: N Approval and 
clearance obtained: 

N/A 

Date next steps can be taken: 
(e.g. referral on of recommendation or 
implementation of substantive decision) 

Immediately 
following this 
meeting. 

  

Author: Steve Jorden Role: Executive Director 

(Strategy and 
Commissioning) 

Contact: steve.jorden@swdevon.gov.uk 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

That Council be RECOMMENDED to: 
 

1. Endorse the Leader’s current approach to devolution and the 
drafting of proposals, their submission and negotiation of  a 

deal for the Heart of the South West, namely: 
 

Working with local authorities, National Parks and the Heart 

of the South West Local Enterprise Partnership to deliver full 
proposals for devolution which will seek a formal agreement 

with Government on a formal devolution deal as set out in 
Appendix 1; and 
 

2. in the event of timescales changing, delegate authority to the 
Head of Paid Service, in consultation with the Leader of the 

Council, to approve the final proposal.  



 

 
 

(NOTE: this report was also considered by the Hub Committee at its 
meeting on 1 December 2015 (Minute HC 37 refers)). 

 
1. Executive summary  

• Devolution for the Heart of the South West (HotSW) is being led 
by the Leaders of Somerset and Devon County Councils, all 

Somerset and Devon Districts, Torbay Council, Plymouth City 
Council, Dartmoor and Exmoor National Parks and the Local 

Enterprise Partnership.  
 

• Our shared Devolution Statement of Intent was submitted to 
Government on 4 September in response to announcements in 

the July Budget and a deadline set by the Chancellor of the 
Exchequer. The Government received 38 bids from cities, towns 

and counties across England. There is strong competition for 
devolution powers and some bids are further advanced than 

HotSW. Nevertheless, the Government has subsequently asked 

us to produce detailed devolution proposals by the end of 2015 
with a view to negotiating a formal deal thereafter. 

 
• The process to produce formal proposals is now under way and is 

being coproduced across the HotSW. This report updates the 
Council on the necessary activity to date and seeks endorsement 

of the council’s role in producing formal proposals to the 
Government’s timescales. 

 
• Any final devolution deal with government will be subject to 

further approval / ratification by all partners individually.  
 

2. Background  
• The Government has declared its desire to devolve powers and 

budgets from Westminster to local authorities, along Local 
Enterprise Partnership geographies. The Chancellor of the 

Exchequer is particularly interested in devolution as a driver of 
economic growth and reducing reliance on the public purse.  

 

• In general, devolution is expected to support the following areas 
of government policy: 

o Increased productivity 
o Skills and employment 

o Housing 
o Reducing the cost of the public sector 

 
• Many devolution deals are being developed by consortia of local 

authorities and their Local Enterprise Partnerships. The largest 
agreed deal so far is the Greater Manchester Devolution 

Agreement. Known as the ‘Northern Powerhouse’ this deal will: 



 

 
 

o Join up economic growth agendas and public service 

reform 
o Health and social care integration 

o Devolve business support and 
skills/training/apprenticeship budgets 

o Create a directly elected Mayor with transport, strategic 
planning, housing development and Police and Crime 

Commissioner powers 
 

• Cornwall Council have also recently agreed a devolution deal to 
give them greater power and influence over business support, 

skills and employment support, EU funding, and health and social 
care integration. During tough negotiations with Government they 

demonstrated that an elected Mayor for Cornwall was not 
required for their area. 

 

• During August, Heart of the South West Leaders agreed to 
produce a high-level set of ambitions stating our desire to 

negotiate a devolution deal with government where we would 
make improvements to our area in return for increased powers 

and responsibilities.  
 

• The Heart of the South West Devolution Statement of Intent was 
submitted to Government and made public on 4 September 2015. 

 
• The Government praised our statement of intent for its clarity and 

ambition and asked us to move forward swiftly to produce 
detailed, formal proposals and begin negotiation with them on a 

formal deal.  
 

• Government’s expectation is that we will submit proposals before 

the end of 2015 and carry out formal negotiation in early 2016. 
 

• Therefore, partners are now working on formal proposals and 
preparing for high-level discussions with Government. 

 
 

3. Outcomes/outputs  
 

The Council has an opportunity to benefit from devolution across a 
wide range of topics and services. Benefits may include increased 

powers over decision-making and funding, leading to decision-
making that more closely reflects local needs, improves services 

and reduces costs.  
 



 

 
 

Devolution has clear links to, and potential to enhance the benefit of 

the Council ‘Our Plan’ strategy and links into the Councils 
transformation programme T18. 

 
These recommendations seek to gain authority to pursue solutions 

that help the Council maximise the opportunities of devolution. They 
do not commit the Council to a formal devolution deal, only to make 

and negotiate on proposals. 
 

At this stage of the process the Council is not required to take 
decisions on the detail of what would be delivered under any 

devolution deal or possible future governance arrangements but 
rather to be actively aware and involved in discussions.  

 
Consultations undertaken 

Despite the Government’s challenging timescales to date, efforts 

have been made to keep Members informed on the development of 
the proposals and this will continue going forward.  

 
Any final devolution deal with government will be subject to: 

• Further approval / ratification by all partners 
• Consultation, as appropriate, before delivery of parts of the 

deal 
 

 
4. Options available and consideration of risk  

 
• Options considered and reasons for rejecting them 

 
Alternative approach 
 

Reason for rejection 

Not to participate There is significant potential 
benefit to West Devon 

through devolution which 
can be explored with 

minimal risk. 
 

To submit proposals based on 

a different geography 

Government has confirmed 

that the preferred geography 
for proposals is based on 

Local Enterprise Partnership 
boundaries.    

 

  
• Failure to secure a deal may affect delivery of the Council’s 

ambitions.  Implications will be addressed as any devolution deal 
is developed and agreed. 



 

 
 

• One or more partners may choose not to proceed with a formal 

bid which could result in the bid floundering. 
• There are not considered to be any other implications at this 

stage however the whole population of our authority could be 
affected by a devolution deal.   

• Any final devolution deal with government will be subject to 
further approval/ratification by all partners, and will require other 

implications and impacts to be considered at that stage. 
 

5.  Proposed Way Forward  
 

Next Steps:  Producing formal devolution proposals  

• At a meeting on 5 October it was agreed to write our Statement 

of Intent by ‘themes’ so partners could share the load of 
producing detailed proposals for the final bid document. 

 

• A governance theme will ensure that governance for the 
devolution deal is acceptable and equitable to all partners and will 

be brought back to partners for final decision. 
 

• A Programme Management Office is overseeing delivery of each 
chapter and maintaining communications between partners. 

Currently this Office is funded through existing resources. It is 
important to note that each partner remains responsible for their 

own governance processes and public/in-house communications. 
 

• Each theme ‘chapter’ will demonstrate a thorough understanding 
of the issues and the difference that devolved powers and 

funding would make, including:   
• A robust evidence base 

• A series of ‘offers’ to government and ‘asks’ from 

government showing: 
– Stretching targets 

– Demonstrable outcomes for the Heart of the South 
West area 

• Resource requirements including an analysis of costs and 
benefits 

• Impact assessments 
• Proven capacity and capability to deliver 

 
Engagement with Members and partners 

• Producing the formal bid is a fast moving process involving 
many organisations and individuals. In order to keep Members 

informed and provide background information for partners, 
the Devolution Programme Management Office produce a 

weekly newsletter for all partners as well as more detailed 
updates as they become available.  

 



 

 
 

 

• Council Members will be kept informed as work continues, 
including through regular updates, member events and 

informal briefings 
 

• There is significant discussion under way between partners to 
produce proposals acceptable to all and more will be known as 

the bid develops. Furthermore the Statement of Intent’s 
working principles include an agreement that proposals will do 

no harm, even if a particular proposal offers no advantage to 
a given area. 

  
 

6. Implications  
 

Implications 

 

Relevant  

to  
proposal

s  
Y/N  

Details and proposed measures to address  

Legal/Governan

ce 
 

 None at this stage. Implications will be 

addressed as any devolution deal is developed 
and agreed 

 

HR  None at this stage. Implications will be 

addressed as any devolution deal is developed 
and agreed 

Financial 

 

 Until detailed devolution proposals are 

developed, financial implications can only be 
generalised. They fall into three categories: 

 
1. The Government requires devolution to 

be a fiscally neutral process – power over 
funding may be transferred but no new 

government money will be made available 
except potentially for ‘pump priming’ activity 

2. There is potential for savings across the 
public sector in the Heart of the South West 

and proposals are being developed with this in 
mind 

3. The Government may however attempt 

to negotiate additional spending by the council 
or other partners as a requirement of one or 

more parts of the final deal 

Risk  As noted in para 4 

 

Comprehensive Impact Assessment Implications 



 

 
 

 

Equality and 
Diversity 

 

 None at this stage 

Safeguarding 
 

 None at this stage 

Community 
Safety, Crime 

and Disorder 
 

 None at this stage 
 

Health, Safety 

and Wellbeing 

 None at this stage 

Other 

implications 

 None at this stage 

 

 
 

 
Supporting Information 

 
Appendices: Draft Proposal – Appendix 1 

 
 

Background Papers: 
Statement of Intent – e-mailed to Members on 5 October 2015 

Draft Proposal  
Draft Governance paper 

 

 
 

 
 

Process checklist Completed 

Portfolio Holder briefed  Yes 

SLT Rep briefed Yes 

Relevant  Exec Director sign off (draft) Yes 

Data protection issues considered Yes 

If exempt information, public (part 1) 

report also drafted. (Cabinet/Scrutiny) 

N/A 

 

















































































































Report to: Council     

Date: 10 December 2015  

Title: Corporate Enforcement Policy  

Portfolio Area: Customer First  

Wards Affected: All 

 

Urgent Decision: N Approval and 
clearance obtained: 

N/a 

Date next steps can be taken:   Immediately   

     following this   
     meeting 

 

  

Author: Catherine Bowen  Role: Lead Specialist for Legal  

Contact: Catherine.Bowen@swdevon.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

That the Council be recommended that the Corporate 
Enforcement Policy (as attached at Appendix A) be adopted. 

  

 

1. Executive summary  
• The purpose of this report is to recommend that Members adopt the 

attached Corporate Enforcement Policy in respect of the Council’s wide-

ranging enforcement powers and duties (Appendix A). 
• The proposed Policy covers all of the Council’s enforcement 

responsibilities in one document instead of individual policies for each 
relevant area (e.g. planning, environmental health etc). 

• The single Policy will ensure that the Council takes a consistent, 

accountable and proportionate approach to its enforcement duties and 
powers, and explains to individuals and businesses the range of options 

that the Council may take in relation to non-compliance, potential 
breaches of the law and Council Policy.   

 

2. Background and Outcomes 

• The Council has previously adopted Enforcement Policies relating to its 

different service areas and in some instances these have been internal 
working documents.  



• Following the T18 restructure, these policies are due for review, and it 
is considered best practice to include the Council’s approach to its wide-

ranging powers and duties in respect of enforcement in one public 
document. This will ensure that the Council takes a consistent and 

transparent approach to regulatory and enforcement action in a 
proportionate way, and one that is easily understood by the public and 
businesses potentially affected by enforcement action.  

• In drafting the Policy, regard has been given to the Regulators’ Code 
(which is now a Government requirement), together with other relevant 

legislation such as Code for Crown Prosecutors’ and the Human Rights 
Act.  

• Appendices which relate to a specific area only, and which have not 

been covered elsewhere in the Policy, are attached at the end of the 
Policy.    

 
3. Options available and consideration of risk  
• It is important to have a consistent Corporate Enforcement Policy with 

regards to the way that the Council approaches and responds to non-
compliance with various legislative requirements. 

• One option is not to adopt any Policy, but there are serious risks to the 
Council, including potential challenges for inconsistent approaches or 

unreasonable and disproportionate action being taken (or the risk of no 
action being taken at all resulting in a breach of the Councils statutory 
duties). 

• A further option is to adopt separate enforcement policies for the 
Council’s various and wide-ranging enforcement and regulatory 

functions (such as planning, environmental health, the environment, 
street scene, revenue and benefits etc) but the risk here is an 
inconsistent approach to enforcement in their application by a range of 

officers, together with the difficulties that this presents to the public as 
to the Council’s approach to enforcement. Neither would this support 

the Council’s business approach under T18.  
• All relevant Senior Officers who deal with non-compliance have been 

consulted and have had the opportunity to input into this Policy.  

 
4.  Proposed Way Forward 

• It is recommended that the Council adopts a single Corporate 
Enforcement Policy as attached at Appendix A, which will minimise the 
risks set out above and provide a consistent and proportionate 

approach to enforcement and non-compliance and which supports the 
Councils cohesive way of working under the T18 structure.  

 
5. Implications  
 

Implications 
 

Relevant  
to  

proposals  
Y/N  

Details and proposed measures to address  

Legal/Governance 
 

Y The Council’s overarching statutory obligations are 
set out in the body of the report and more 

specifically, in the Enforcement Policy.  
 



Financial 

 

N There are no direct financial implications to the 

adoption of the Policy.  
 

Risk Y These are set out in paragraph 3 of the report. 
 

Comprehensive Impact Assessment Implications 
 

Equality and 
Diversity 

 The Council is committed to equality of opportunity, 
promoting diversity and eliminating discrimination. 
Enforcement decisions will be fair and objective and 
not influenced by ethnicity or national origin, 
gender, religious beliefs, political views or the 
sexual orientation of the suspect, victim, witness or 
offender. Decisions will not be influenced by 
improper or undue pressure from any source.  

Safeguarding 
 

 The Council will ensure that it deals appropriately 
with vulnerable people in making enforcement 
decisions, having regard to its Safeguarding Policy    

Community 
Safety, Crime 

and Disorder 

 These will be considered in relation to specific 
enforcement cases   

Health, Safety 

and Wellbeing 

 These will be considered in relation to specific 

enforcement cases   

 

 
 

Supporting Information 
 
Appendices: 

 
Appendix A: Corporate Enforcement Policy  

 
Background Papers: 
 

None  
 





 

 

South Hams District Council and West Devon Borough Council  
 

Enforcement Policy  
 

1. Introduction  
 

This Enforcement Policy sets out how South Hams District Council and West Devon 
Borough Council (‘the Councils’) deal with non-compliance with the wide-ranging 
legislation that we have a duty to enforce as local authorities. This Policy is available 
on our website and copies can be obtained from our offices (details of which are 
given at the end of this document). 

 
This Policy complies with the requirements of the Regulators’ Code, introduced by 
Government in April 2014. All local authority regulators and many other public 
enforcement bodies must have regard to this. This Enforcement Policy is a living 
document and will evolve in the light of feedback from businesses, emerging best 
practice and Government Guidance.  

 
The Councils are committed to good enforcement practice as set out in the 
Legislative and Regulatory Reform Act 2006, and we aim to exercise our regulatory 
activities in a way which is: 
 
• Proportionate: our activities will reflect the level of risk to the public and 

enforcement action taken will relate to the seriousness of the offence, 
 

• Accountable: our activities will be open to public scrutiny, with clear and 
accessible policies, and fair and efficient complaints procedures, 
 

• Consistent: our advice to those we regulate will be robust and reliable and we 
will respect advice provided by others. Where circumstances are similar, we will 
endeavour to act in similar ways to other local authorities, 
 

• Transparent: we will ensure that those we regulate are able to understand what 
is expected of them and what they can anticipate in return, and 
 

• Targeted: we will focus our resources on higher risk enterprises and activities, 
reflecting local need and national priorities. 

 
In drawing up and developing our enforcement policy we have had regard to: 

 
The Regulators’ Code 2014 (as set out by Department for Business Innovation 
&Skills): in certain circumstances it  may be appropriate to deviate from the Code, 
but any such cases will be reasoned and documented. 

 
Human Rights Act 1998 and the European Convention o n Human Rights: in 



 

 

particular, decisions need to have regard to the right to a fair trial and the right to 
respect for private and family life, home and correspondence. 

 
Data Protection Act 1998: details the provisions to be followed where there is a 
need for the Council to share information about enforcement with other agencies. 

 
Code for Crown Prosecutors (as set out by the Crown Prosecution Service): a 
public document that sets out the general principles to follow when decisions are 
made in respect of prosecuting offenders. The Code sets out two tests that must be 
satisfied; commonly referred to as the ‘Evidential Test’ and the ‘Public Interest Test’. 
 
Legal Aid, Sentencing and Punishment of Offenders A ct 2012 (Fines on 
Summary Conviction) Regulations 2015: changes to some fines and wording of 
notices. 

Revised Home Office Code of Practice on PACE part B: powers of entry and 
provision of Notice of Powers and Rights when entering land. 

The Councils are fully committed to the Devon and Somerset Better Business for All 
(BBfA) Regulatory Services Partnership, which is endorsed by the Better Regulatory 
Delivery Office (BRDO), part of the Department for Business, Innovation and Skills 
(BIS).  The purpose is to build a local partnership between businesses and 
regulators across Devon and Somerset to promote economic prosperity, whilst 
maintaining public protection.  This document will ensure that the Regulator will work 
in accordance with the BBfA principles.  In doing so the Councils will create an 
environment and culture which will support our local businesses by making the 
activity that is being regulated easy to access, simple and clear to understand, whilst 
ensuring public protection.   
 
The Councils will listen to business needs and act in an open and transparent way to 
help shape the way support is provided, this will be done following business 
consultations and throughout service use. 

 
Better Business for All is business-focused, using business-led improvements to 
create better regulation, support business growth and create a level playing field for 
businesses.  In order to achieve this, the Policy will be implemented in a consistent 
manner with competent enforcement staff who are working with the right attitudes 
and behaviours for the benefit of our Communities. 

We are committed to avoid imposing unnecessary regulatory burdens, and to 
assessing whether similar social, environmental and economic outcomes could be 
achieved by a less burdensome means. We will adopt a proportionate approach to 
those we regulate based on relevant factors, for example, business size and 
capacity. 

 
We will review our approach to regulatory activities from time to time, in order to 
remove any unnecessary burdens. We will also monitor our approach to ensure 



 

 

compliance with our stated policy.  
 

    Equality 
 

We are committed to equality of opportunity, promoting diversity and eliminating 
discrimination. Enforcement decisions will be fair and objective and not be 
influenced by ethnicity or national origin, gender, religious beliefs, political views or 
the sexual orientation of the suspect, victim, witness or offender. Decisions will not 
be influenced by improper or undue pressure from any source. A copy of our 
Equality and Diversity Strategy is available on our website or can be obtained 
from our offices. 

 

2. What is this policy for? 
 

This Policy seeks to clarify, communicate and explain our enforcement approach, to 
businesses, residents, consumers and others affected by our enforcement activities, 
and also sets out a consistent and transparent policy as to how the Council will 
approach Enforcement.  

 
This Policy is intended to promote efficient and effective approaches to regulatory 
inspection and enforcement which improve regulatory outcomes without imposing 
unnecessary burdens. We recognise the positive impact that our services can have 
on economic progress and growth within the local economy and see it as part of 
our role to encourage and support the growth of legitimate business activity within 
the legal framework provided by central government. 

 
Our staff are aware of this Policy and associated service standards and will act in 
accordance with this Policy and the standards set. 

 
The overall aim of our services engaged in regulatory activity (where appropriate): 
 
• To support good practice and promote growth for business. 
• To protect our community from unsafe, unfair or illegal trading practices or 

unlawful activities. 
• To intervene with individuals who cause nuisance or environmental crime in our 

communities. 
• To protect the environment and amenity in our communities 
• To safeguard persons in the workplace and those affected by work activities. 
• To improve health and well-being across the community. 

  
There may be legitimate circumstances where it is not possible to follow this Policy but 
if this is the case, we will justify the decision and record it. 
 
The appendices to this Policy reflect practices specific to individual areas, such as 
Environmental Health and Planning Enforcement.  



 

 

3. When does this policy apply? 
 

We recognise that the majority of businesses and residents want to meet their 
legal requirements without being faced with unnecessary burdens. We are keen 
to be supportive by adopting a pragmatic approach through advice and guidance 
where we can. This Policy is our overarching approach to enforcement and is 
supplemented where necessary by service-specific policies. 

 
4. Our approach to dealing with non-compliance  

 

Where a breach of legislation, Government Guidance or Council Policy is 
identified, by far the most common outcome is for advice to be given to the 
business or individual concerned. This may be at a very early stage or after some 
further investigation. However we are committed to dealing firmly with those that 
deliberately or persistently fail to comply with the law or policy. 

 

     Communication 
We will provide general information, advice and guidance to make it easier for 
businesses and members of the public to understand and meet their legal 
obligations. This will be provided promptly, in clear, concise and accessible 
language, using a range of appropriate formats and media. Information will cover 
legal requirements relating to our regulatory and enforcement activities, as well 
as changes to legal requirements. Where there are significant changes, we will 
look at the best ways of informing businesses and the public of the changes. 

 
We will provide targeted and practical advice by telephone and, where practicable 
and reasonable, promote self-service via our website. Where appropriate, we will 
provide this advice by personal visit. We will try to maximise the accessibility and 
effectiveness of advice to ensure efficient use of resources and we will involve 
businesses and members of the public in developing both the content and style 
of regulatory or enforcement guidance to ensure that it meets their needs. 

 
Businesses and individuals can confidently request advice from us on non-
compliance without directly triggering enforcement action where they show a 
willingness to resolve the non-compliance and we encourage those we regulate 
/ enforce against to contact us for advice. 

 
Our staff are committed to explaining clearly the non-compliance and any 
advice being given, actions required or decisions taken, with reasons for these. 
There will be an opportunity for dialogue in relation to this. If formal action is 
likely to be considered as an option that dialogue may be need to be by way of 
a formal recorded interview as the Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 
requires. This is a legal process but it is used to provide fairness and clarity to 
anyone who is at risk of prosecution. 

        



 

 

       Delegated powers 
The Council delegates the powers it has to enforce various pieces of legislation, 
so that individual Council ‘enforcement’ officers with the appropriate levels of 
competence, have specific authority to act. Officers with enforcement powers carry 
identification and confirmation of their authorisation. 

 
Investigations are overseen by team managers and qualified senior officers, in 
line with the adopted Scheme of Delegation. 

 
       Sharing information/intelligence 

We will refer matters to other authorities or enforcement bodies where we believe 
they are the most appropriate to deal with a matter. We will also accept referrals 
from others where we are the most appropriate enforcement body to deal with 
something effectively. We are committed to liaising with these bodies to target our 
resources and rationalise our approach. Where we refer matters to another body, 
we will advise the business or member of the public accordingly. 

 
In order to maximize the effectiveness of any enforcement, we will share 
intelligence relating to regulatory matters both within the Councils and more 
widely with: 

 
• Government agencies 
• Police  
• Fire authorities 
• Local authorities 
• Other statutory bodies 

 
       Conflict of interest 

In the event of a possible conflict of interest, for example, where a key 
enforcement decision involves parts of the Council or its staff, we will if deemed 
appropriate involve another local authority in ensuring an impartial decision is 
made. 

 
     Publicity 

In the event of a business or individual being prosecuted and sentenced as a result 
of enforcement action, the Council will usually issue a media release, which may 
also appear on the Council’s website. 
 
Risk assessment          
We will ensure that our resources are targeted where they will be most effective. 
We will ensure that intelligence and risk assessment inform all aspects of our 
approach to regulatory or enforcement activity, including (where relevant): 

  



 

 

 

• Data collection and other information requirements; 
• Inspection programmes; 
• Advice and support programmes; 
• Enforcement activity and sanctions; 

 
Where appropriate and relevant to the non-compliance, we will use the appropriate 
Government risk assessment scheme to inform any inspection programme or 
intervention but, where these do not exist, we will consult and involve businesses 
and other interested parties in designing any risk methodologies that we create, 
and publish the details. In the absence of other factors when determining risk, we 
will consider: 

 

• Compliance history and potential future risks 
• The existence of effective management systems 
• Evidence of recognised external accreditation 
• Management competence and willingness to comply 
• Use of complaints/investigation filters. 

 
We will also use intelligence to direct inspection based projects, targeting activities 
or businesses or individuals where there are known issues. However, complaints 
may also trigger a visit if that is the most appropriate response.  

 
5. Conduct of investigations  

 
Investigations are subject to controls on how evidence is gathered and used and 
give a range of protection to members of the public and potential defendants. 
Our investigations will be carried out in accordance with the following legislation 
and in accordance with any associated guidance or codes of practice, including: 
 
• Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 
• Criminal Procedure and Investigations Act 1996 
• Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 
• Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 
• Human Rights Act 1998 

 
We will comply with the requirements of the particular legislation under which 
we are acting and any associated guidance or codes of practice.  
 

Where any business has a ‘Primary Authority’ relationship established with a 
local authority regulatory service, our officers will communicate with that service 
at the earliest opportunity. 

 
       
  



 

 

Powers of officers  
Under certain pieces of legislation that we enforce, officers are given particular 
powers to carry out certain activities including, for example, sampling; 
inspection of premises, land, buildings, goods, equipment or documents. In 
certain circumstances, where offences are suspected or evidence required, 
legislation gives our officers powers to seize items and documents. Powers vary 
depending on the legislation being used. 

 
Where any items are seized officers will supply written confirmation of anything 
taken at the time or if not practical as soon as possible afterwards. 

 
       Obstruction of officers 

The legislation we enforce can include offences of obstructing officers involved in 
enforcement activities and this can include failure to give appropriate assistance 
in some circumstances. We will view obstruction as a serious matter. 

 
Occasionally, our officers work with the Police and in some circumstances the 
Police may use their powers of arrest. Our officers do not directly have the power 
of arrest or detention of persons. Failure to give Council officers appropriate 
assistance or information may result in prosecution proceedings in its own right. 

 
       Interviews of potential defendants and evidence pro cessing 

Where a person, company or other legal entity is suspected of breaching legal 
requirements and formal action remains under consideration, wherever possible 
(and relevant) they will: 
 
• be formally interviewed in accordance with the Police and Criminal Evidence 

Act 1984 (usually but not exclusively audio recorded)  
• be given the opportunity to demonstrate if a statutory defence is available to 

them;  
• have the opportunity to give an explanation or make any additional comments 

about the alleged breach. 
 
      Time limits for action 

Individual pieces of legislation usually stipulate time limits within which 
prosecutions can be brought. This is dependent upon the particular piece of 
legislation. We will seek to conclude our investigation in a timely manner and 
advise the potential defendant of the outcome without undue delay. 

 
      Review of evidence 

Before a decision to prosecute is taken, the alleged offence(s) will be fully 
investigated, evidence gathered and a confidential report compiled by the 
investigating officer that will include the evidence obtained. This will be reviewed 
by the appropriate specialist. Cases in which a prosecution is to be pursued will 
be reviewed by our Legal Services team. The prosecution will then be managed 
through the court system by a member of the Legal Services team, with other 



 

 

legal representation being appointed or advice sought if required. 
 
     Keeping in touch 

Alleged offenders (or their legal representatives) are encouraged to contact the 
investigating officer or a member of the Legal Services team if they wish to know 
the progress on their investigation. Any person interviewed under caution will be 
informed in writing of decisions on enforcement action and the matter should not 
be considered as concluded until confirmed in writing, or a court hearing taken 
place. 

 
Witnesses will be kept informed of the progress in accordance with our service 
standards. 

 
6. Decisions on Enforcement Action  

 
We recognise that most businesses and the public wish to comply with the 
law. We will endeavour to help people to meet their legal obligations without 
unnecessary expense. When a business or individual does break the law, we 
will consider all the surrounding circumstances before deciding whether 
formal action is appropriate. 

 
Formal action is more likely to be pursued in instances where the offender has: 
 
• acted fraudulently 
• put the safety or health of consumers, neighbours or others at risk 
• put the environment or amenity at risk 
• acted irresponsibly and negligently 
• failed to heed advice or previous warning, or 
• failed to take reasonable steps to avoid offences being committed. 

 
Our approach to enforcement action will aim to: 
 
• change the behaviour of the offender; 
• eliminate any damage, risk or harm caused as a result of any offences 
• eliminate any financial gain or benefit from non-compliance; 
• be responsive and appropriate for the particular offender and regulatory / 

enforcement issue; 
• be proportionate to the nature of the offence and the harm caused; 
• restore the harm caused by non-compliance, where appropriate; and  
• aim to deter future non-compliance. 

 
We will take into account the views of any victim, injured party or relevant person 
to establish the nature and extent of any harm or loss, including potential harm 
and loss and its significance in making the decision to take formal action. Our 
approach will be based on risk and expediency. 



 

 

 
In respect of action under health and safety laws we will adopt the Enforcement 
Management Model (EMM) developed by the Health and Safety Executive. 
 
There are a range of enforcement options available to us through the legislation we 
enforce. These vary depending on the particular circumstances and legislation and 
one or more options may be relevant in each case. The level of the action taken 
varies from ‘no action’ through to proceedings in Court. Examples of the main types 
of action that can be considered are: 

 
• No action; 
• Compliance advice, guidance and support; 
• Voluntary undertakings; 
• Statutory (Legal) notices (including Direct Action); 
• Financial penalties; 
• Injunctive actions 
• Enforcement orders and notices etc; 
• Simple Caution; 
• Anti-social Behaviour notices, order 
• Prosecution; and 
• Refusal/suspension/revocation of licence or registration. 

 
A. No Action 

 
There will be circumstances where a contravention may not warrant action, or it 
may be inappropriate or not in the wider public interest. Many minor 
contraventions can most appropriately be dealt with via advice and guidance.  

 
B.    Compliance Advice, Guidance and Support 

For minor breaches of the law we will give advice on how to put matters right, 
including a deadline by which this must be done. The time allowed to put things 
right will be reasonable, and take into account the seriousness of the breach and 
the implications of the non-compliance. Advice is usually provided in the form of 
a ‘warning letter’, to assist individuals and businesses in rectifying breaches as 
quickly and efficiently as possible, avoiding the need for further enforcement 
action. A warning letter (sometimes called an ‘informal notice’) will set out what 
should be done to rectify the breach and to prevent re-occurrence. Failure to 
comply could result in an escalation of enforcement action. 

 
If a similar breach is identified in the future, this letter will be persuasive in 
considering the most appropriate enforcement action to take on that occasion. 
Such a letter cannot be cited in court as a previous conviction but it may be 
presented in evidence. 



 

 

Where ever possible we will advise offenders about ‘good practice’, but we will 
clearly distinguish between what offenders must do to comply with the law and 
what is recommended. 
  
We recognise that where a business has entered into a partnership with a primary 
authority, the primary authority will provide compliance advice and support, and 
we will take such advice into account when considering the most appropriate 
enforcement action for it to take. It may discuss any need for compliance advice 
and support with the primary authority. 

Where more formal enforcement action, such as a simple caution or prosecution, 
is taken, we recognise that there is likely to be an ongoing need for compliance 
advice and support to prevent further breaches. 

C.     Voluntary Undertakings 

We may accept voluntary undertakings that breaches will be rectified and/or 
recurrences prevented. We will take any failure to honour voluntary undertakings 
very seriously and enforcement action is likely to result. 

D.   Statutory (Legal) Notices 

In respect of many breaches, our authorised officers have powers to issue 
statutory notices. Such notices are legally binding. Failure to comply with a 
statutory notice can be a criminal offence and may lead to prosecution and/ or, 
where appropriate, the carrying out of work in default ( sometimes known as 
Direct Action) . This means that if a notice is not complied with (a breach of the 
notice), we may carry out any necessary works to satisfy the requirements of the 
notice ourselves. Where the law allows, we may then charge the person / 
business served with the notice for any cost we incur in carrying out the work. 
 
A statutory notice will clearly set out actions which must be taken and the timescale 
within which they must be taken. It is likely to require that any breach is rectified 
and/or prevented from recurring. It may also prohibit specified activities until the 
breach has been rectified and/or safeguards have been put in place to prevent 
future breaches. 

Notices may require immediate action where, for example, there are risks to 
public health or health and safety of persons, or an immediate risk of 
environmental damage or serious nuisance.  
 
In certain limited circumstances (for example, under the provisions of food safety 
legislation) where an authorised officer is satisfied that there is an imminent risk 
of injury to health from the condition of the premises, the officer may serve 
notice to close the premises. This is followed by an application to a Magistrates 
Court to confirm the closure. 
 
 



 

 

Some notices issued in respect of premises may be affixed to the premises and/or 
registered as local land charges. 

Where a statutory notice is issued, an explanation of the relevant appeals process 
will be provided to the recipient.  

E. Financial penalties 

Certain offences are subject to fixed penalty notices where prescribed by 
legislation. These notices are recognised as a low-level enforcement tool and 
avoid the defendant obtaining a criminal record. Where legislation permits an 
offence to be dealt with by way of a Fixed Penalty Notice (FPN), we may choose 
to administer a FPN on a first occasion, without issuing a warning. They will be 
used in appropriate circumstances to give a fast and measured response to the 
situation. 
 
If a Fixed Penalty is paid in respect of a breach, we will not take any further 
enforcement action in respect of that breach. Payment of a fixed penalty does not 
provide immunity from prosecution in respect of similar or recurrent breaches.  

 
If a fixed penalty is not paid, we may commence criminal proceedings or take 
other enforcement action in respect of the breach. 
 
F. Injunctive Actions, Enforcement Orders etc. 
 
In some circumstances we may seek a direction from the court (in the form of an 
order or an injunction) that a breach is rectified and/or prevented from recurring. 
The court may also direct that specified activities be suspended until the breach 
has been rectified and/or safeguards have been put in place to prevent future 
breaches. 

Failure to comply with a court order constitutes contempt of court, a serious 
offence which may lead to imprisonment. 

We are required to seek enforcement orders after issuing some enforcement 
notices, providing the court with an opportunity to confirm the restrictions imposed 
by the notice. Otherwise, we will usually only seek a court order if it has serious 
concerns about compliance with voluntary undertakings or a notice. 

G. Simple Caution 

We have the power to issue Simple Cautions (previously known as ‘Formal 
Cautions’) as an alternative to prosecution for some less serious offences, where 
a person admits an offence and consents to the Simple Caution. Where a Simple 
Caution is offered and declined, prosecution is likely. 

A Simple Caution will appear on the offender’s criminal record. It is likely to 
influence how we and others deal with any similar breaches in the future, and 



 

 

may be cited in court if the offender is subsequently prosecuted for a similar 
offence. If a Simple Caution is issued to an individual (rather than a corporation) 
it may have consequences if that individual seeks certain types of employment. 
Offenders will be made aware of this before agreeing to accept a simple caution.  
 

Simple Cautions will be used in accordance with the Home Office Circular and 
other relevant guidance issued by the relevant Lead Specialist. 

H.  Anti-Social Behaviour  

Anti-social behaviour will be dealt with in accordance with the statutory guidance 
issued by the Home Office ‘Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014: 
reform of anti-social behaviour powers – statutory guidance for professionals’.  
We will liaise with our statutory partners to ensure that Anti-social Behaviour is 
effectively dealt with and that our actions are proportionate.  

     I.   Prosecution 

We are more likely to prosecute in respect of serious or recurrent breaches, or 
where other enforcement actions, such as voluntary undertakings or statutory 
notices have failed to secure compliance. When deciding whether to prosecute we 
will have regard to the provisions of the Code for Crown Prosecutors issued by the 
Director of Public Prosecutions.  

Under normal circumstances, a process of escalation will be used until either 
compliance is reached or there is no option other than to instigate proceedings. 
Exceptions would be where there is a serious risk to personal safety or the 
environment, or the offences have been committed deliberately or negligently or 
involve deception, or where there is significant economic detriment. Each case 
will be considered on its own facts and merits. 
  
Once an officer has completed their investigation, s/he will submit a case report 
to a senior officer, who will decide the most appropriate course of action. 

 
The senior officer will take into consideration the requirements of the Code for 
Crown Prosecutors and other relevant codes before deciding whether or not to 
authorise the institution of legal proceedings.   

 
The Legal Lead Specialist (in consultation with the relevant Senior Lead 
Specialist) must be satisfied that there is sufficient evidence to provide a 
reasonable prospect of conviction against each defendant on each charge (i.e. 
that a jury or bench of Magistrates, properly directed in accordance with the law, 
is more likely than not to convict the defendant of the charge alleged).  To this 
end, the Legal Lead Specialist (in consultation with the relevant Lead Specialist)  
will look at all the available evidence, reliability of witnesses, supporting 
documentation and any other matters relating to the investigation. Only when 



 

 

this evidential test has been satisfied will the public interest to proceed with the 
prosecution be considered. 

 
In deciding whether a prosecution will serve the public interest, the senior officer 
will balance factors for and against the prosecution carefully, fairly and 
impartially. Some factors may increase the justification to prosecute whereas 
others may militate against.   

 
A successful prosecution will result in a criminal record. The court may impose a 
fine and in respect of particularly serious breaches a prison sentence. Prosecution 
may also lead, in some circumstances, to the disqualification of individuals from 
acting as company directors or, in the case of food safety laws, from managing a 
food business. 

The Council will always seek to recover all prosecution costs where possible. 
 
In some cases we are likely to make applications to the Court under the 
Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 (POCA) for confiscation of assets. These are the 
most serious cases or where there is persistence of offending over a long period 
of time or where the offences are deemed to be ‘lifestyle crime’ under POCA. 
Their purpose is to recover the financial benefit that the offender has obtained 
from his criminal conduct.  

 
J. Refusal/Suspension/Revocation of Licences 
 
We issue a variety of licences and permits and register certain persons/activities. 
Many of these include conditions which require the licence holder to take steps to 
ensure that, for example, a business or activity is properly run. Breach of these 
conditions may lead to a review of the licence which may result in its revocation or 
amendment. 

When considering future licence applications, we may take previous breaches and 
enforcement action into account. 

We will provide a timely explanation in writing to any rights of representation or 
appeal to our enforcement action and provide practical information on the 
process involved. 
 
Where legislation allows and information arises which goes to the heart of the 
licensing legislation then a case may be brought for immediate revocation of the 
licence. 

 
  



 

 

7. Review of this Policy 
 

This Policy will be updated should any changes in legislation or relevant codes of 
practice require it to be updated, and we welcome any comments on the Policy at 
any time. 

 

We will adopt mechanisms to engage with those we regulate; including 
businesses and individuals to offer views and contribute to the development of our 
policy and service standards. Before changing our policy, practice or service 
standards, we will consider the impact on business and engage with business 
representatives. 

 
8. Comments and Complaints  
 
If a matter has not yet reached court or in any other case where a person affected 
by an enforcement decision is dissatisfied, as with other complaints about our 
service or staff, one of our managers will be able to discuss the cause of the 
dissatisfaction, and will try to find a solution.  

 
We have a Complaints Procedure and any person aggrieved by the enforcement 
action taken by the Council in connection with our enforcement activity (or any other 
actions) may register their complaint in accordance with that procedure.  Copies of 
this document (and other documents referred to in this Policy) are available upon 
request by writing to either: 

 
• South Hams District Council, Follaton House, Plymouth Road, Totnes TQ9 5NE 

or telephoning 01803 861234 or via the Council’s website at 
www.southhams.gov.uk or, 
 

• West Devon Borough Council, Kilworthy Park, Drake Road, Tavistock  PL19 0BZ 
or, telephoning 01822 813600 or via the Council’s website at 
www.westdevon.gov.uk. 

 
     All our publications are available in alternative formats, such as large print or a 

language other than English. Please contact us using the above contact details or 
email:  

     customer.services@southhams.gov.uk or, customer.services@westdevon.gov.uk. 
 
 
  



 

 

Appendix 1 
 
Environmental Health  
 
A separate document (available on the website) details our Service Standards and how 
we can support businesses. 
 
Primary Authority Scheme: (developed by the Better Regulation Delivery Office): when 
considering taking enforcement action against any business or organisation that has a 
‘Primary Authority’ agreement, we will have regard to guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State in relation to the Primary Authority scheme pursuant to the 
Regulatory Enforcement and Sanctions Act 2008. 
 
Home Authority Principle (as set out by Local Government Regulation): we 
support this principle which is to promote good enforcement practice and reduce 
burdens on business. (It was (developed for food and trading standards authorities 
and applies to a local authority where the decision making base for a large multi-
site business is located). Under this we will: 

 
• provide businesses for whom we are the ‘home authority’ with appropriate 

guidance and advice; 
• maintain records of our contacts with ‘home authority’ businesses to reduce the 

amount of information they have to provide to us; 
• support efficient liaison between local authorities, and 
• provide a system for the resolution of problems and disputes. 
 
We recognise that where a business has entered into a ‘primary authority’ or a ‘home 
authority’ arrangement with a particular regulatory service then that primary or home 
authority will provide compliance advice and support. We will take such advice into 
account when considering the most appropriate enforcement action. We may discuss 
any need for compliance advice and support with the primary or home authority. 
Liaison will take place at the earliest opportunity with that authority. 
  



 

 

Appendix 2 
 
Planning Enforcement  
 
1.0 Introduction  
 
1.1 South Hams District Council and West Devon Borough Council are the 

responsible Authorities for the Planning Enforcement Service within their 
administrative areas. Effective enforcement is important as a means of 
maintaining public confidence in the planning system. 

 
1.2 In order for the Councils to give the best possible service to members of the 

public, it is vital that this document clearly sets out what matters we are able to 
deal with and how we balance demands on our services against the resources 
available to us. 

 
2.0 What is Planning Enforcement?  
 
2.1 The Councils are responsible for investigating breaches of planning control 

which will ordinarily constitute the following:- 
 

• Development or change of use of land without planning permission 
• Not complying with conditions of a planning permission 
• Demolition in a Conservation Area without consent 
• Works to a Listed Building or protected tree without consent 
• Neglecting land or buildings which harms local amenity 
• Advertisements which harm amenity or public safety 

 
 What is not Planning Enforcement? 
 
2.2 The planning enforcement team will not investigate:- 
 

• Boundary disputes/trespass 
• Destruction of property during the building process 
• Devaluation of property 
• Competition to other business 
• Squatting 
• Unsafe structures 
• Fly tipping 
• Civil disputes 
• Party wall disputes 

 



 

 

3.0 The Council’s Approach to Planning Enforcement 
 
3.1 Local Authorities have a general discretion to take enforcement action, when 

they regard it as expedient. In considering any enforcement action, the decisive 
issue for the Councils will be whether the breach of control would unacceptably 
affect public amenity or an existing use of land and buildings meriting protection 
in the public interest 

 
3.2 Planning legislation and policies will be enforced in a fair, equitable and 

consistent manner, although care will be taken to ensure that the merits of each 
case are carefully considered. The emphasis of South Hams District Council and 
West Devon Borough Council policy is on persuasion, influence and education 
to secure the aims of the above legislation and planning policies.  

 
3.3 Where serious harm is being caused by the breach of planning control, both 

Councils will take firm action and may not enter into any negotiations before 
doing so. 

 
3.4 Enforcement action should always be commensurate with the breach of 

planning control to which it relates. The Councils will not normally take 
enforcement action in order to remedy only a slight variation in excess of what 
would have been permitted by virtue of the Permitted Development Legislation 
or Planning Permission. 

 
3.5 Section 70c of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) provides 

that a local planning authority may decline to determine an application where 
any part of that application relates in whole or part to the matters specified in an 
enforcement notice as constituting a breach of planning control. The purpose of 
the provision is to stop time being taken with repeat applications for slightly 
amended schemes, each subsequently being taken to appeal which delays full 
compliance with an existing enforcement notice. Both Councils will use this 
power where any proposed application fails to sufficiently address the breaches 
of planning control set out within the existing enforcement notice on the land.  

 
4.0 What action can the Councils take? 
 
4.1 In every case it investigates, the Councils must first establish whether or not a 

breach of planning control has in fact taken place. In some cases this will not 
always be clear and in such circumstances the authority may serve a ‘Planning 
Contravention Notice’ on the owner/occupier of land or property which will 
require answers to specific questions relating to any alleged breach of planning 
control. 

  



 

 

 
4.2 If a breach of planning control is established and it is considered expedient to do 

so then the Councils can take formal enforcement action this can be through: 
 

• Service of an ‘Enforcement Notice’ 
• Service of a ‘Breach of Condition Notice’  
• Service of a ‘Section 215 Notice’  
• Service of a ‘Listed Building Enforcement Notice’  
• Service of a ‘Conservation Area Enforcement Notice’  
• Service of a ‘Section 207 Notice’ requiring the replacement of a protected 

tree which has been felled without permission. 
 

Failure to comply with any of the above notices is a criminal offence  
 
4.3 A copy of any Enforcement Notice served will be kept on a publicly available 

Enforcement Register, a copy of the Notice will also be placed on the Land 
Charges Register. The Notice will remain on public record and will be revealed 
on any property searches.  

 
4.4 Where the requirements of any Enforcement Notices are not complied with 

within the specified time frame the Councils will take appropriate action which 
can take the form of a Criminal Prosecution, Injunctive Relief or Direct Action. 

 
4.5 In cases where it appears that there has been significant financial benefit in 

failing to comply with any enforcement notice, the Council will use the Proceeds 
of Crime Act 2002 to seek to recover any monies or assets gained during the 
time the Enforcement Notice has been breached. 

 
4.6 Prior to taking any formal enforcement action or instigating any prosecution 

proceedings in relation to planning enforcement, the Councils will give careful 
consideration to the provisions of the Human Rights Act 1988 and will have due 
regard to Public Sector Quality Duty as set out within s.149, Equality Act 2010. 

 
5.0 Complaints of Breaches of Planning Control 
 
5.1 The Councils will investigate complaints of a breach of planning control if they 

are provided with: 
 

• The exact address / location of the property or land affected  
• (if the property / land is not correctly identified Council officer may not be 

able to inspect the site) 
• Details of the alleged breach 
• Any other relevant information 
• Your name and address 

 



 

 

5.2 Complaints can be forwarded by email, by telephone, in writing or through the 
South Hams District Council and West Devon Borough Council websites. 
Contact details are available at the end of this Policy. South Hams District 
Council and West Devon Borough Council have a policy of maintaining the 
confidentiality of the complainant in all cases.  

 
5.3 Anonymous complaints will not be accepted.  If you are concerned about 

submitting your details, please contact your Local Councillor who can submit a 
complaint on your behalf. We will then be able to use the Councillor as the point 
of contact and they in turn can update you on the complaint. 

 
5.4 The Councils receives approximately 700 planning enforcement complaints 

every year which must be investigated. When assessing your complaint the 
Councils will take into account whether the works are: 

 
• to a Listed Building 
• causing a serious risk to public health 
• to a Protected Tree 
• within a Conservation Area 
• contrary to a Planning Condition 
• unauthorised display of an Advertisement in a prominent location 
• contrary to Local and National Policy 
• to a building that adversely affects the amenity of adjacent properties 
• conversion of a building into flats 
• a High Hedge complaint 
• a breach of planning control 
• sufficient to warrant any action by the Council 

 
6.0  Contact Information 
 
If you have any further questions relating to the planning enforcement process please 
do not hesitate to contact us using the following methods: 
 
By Email:  PlanningEnforcement@swdevon.gov.uk   
 
By Phone :  Customer Services 01803 861234  
 
By Post:  South Hams District Council 

Follaton House 
Plymouth Road 
Totnes 
Devon 
TQ9 5NE 





Dev Management   23.09.15           
 
 

 
 

    MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE DEVELOPMENT MANAG EMENT 
COMMITTEE HELD AT FOLLATON HOUSE, TOTNES, ON WEDNES DAY, 
    23 SEPTEMBER 2015 

 
Members in attendance  

* Denotes attendance      Ø Denotes apology for absence                    
* Cllr I Bramble * Cllr J M Hodgson 
* Cllr J Brazil (pm only) * Cllr T R Holway 
* Cllr B F Cane * Cllr J A Pearce 
Ø Cllr P K Cuthbert * Cllr R Rowe 
* Cllr R J Foss (Vice Chairman) * Cllr R C Steer (Chairman) 
* Cllr P W Hitchins * Cllr R J Vint 

 
Other Members in attendance  

Cllrs Baldry, Blackler, Saltern, Ward and Wright   
 

Item No Minute Ref or App. No. 
below refers 

Officers in attendance and 
participating 

All agenda 
items 

 Planning Officers, Solicitor and Senior 
Case Manager 

 37/2548/14/O Senior Specialist Place and Strategy, 
Highways Officer 

 57/2472/14/O Senior Specialist Environmental Health, 
Highways Officer 

 27/1159/15/F Highways Officer 
 
DM.28/15 MINUTES 
 

The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 2 September 2015 
were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

 
 
DM.29/15 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

Members and officers were invited to declare any interests in the items of 
business to be considered and the following were made: 
 
The Chairman declared a personal interest on behalf of all Committee 
Members in application 37/2548/14/O:  Outline application (with some 
matters reserved) for mixed use development of 70 dwelling, allotments, 
community facility, recreation and employment land – SX 5670 4944, West 
of Collaton Park, Newton Ferrers by virtue of the applicant being an 
Honorary Alderman of the Council.  Members remained in the meeting and 
took part in the debate and vote thereon;   
 
Cllr Steer declared a further reason for his personal interest in this 
application by virtue of knowing the applicant’s son through his work as a 
land agent.  He remained in the meeting and took part in the debate and 
vote thereon; 
 
 



Dev Management   23.09.15           
 
 

 
 

Cllr Hitchins declared a disclosable pecuniary interest in application 
57/2472/14/O Outline application for mixed use development of approx. 198 
no. dwellings, public open space, employment uses (including Health 
Centre), a neighbourhood centre and new roundabout on Exeter Road 
(access to be considered) – Land at SX6483 5632, off Rutt Lane, Ivybridge, 
by virtue of the applicant working on his behalf.  He left the meeting for the 
duration of this application; 
 
Cllrs Rowe and Cane both declared a personal interest in the following 
applications by virtue of being the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the 
South Devon AONB Partnership Committee within which the applications 
were sited.  They remained in the meeting and took part in the debate and 
vote on each of these applications:- 

 
37/2548/14/O:  Outline application (with some matters reserved) for mixed 
use development of 70 dwellings, allotments, community facility, recreation 
and employment land – SX 5670 4944, West of Collaton Park, Newton 
Ferrers; 
52/0782/15/F:  Change of use to domestic curtilage and erection of 
greenhouse and shed – Land adjacent to 8 Andrews Park, Stoke Gabriel; 
41/1023/15/F:  READVERTISEMENT (Revised Plans Received) Demolition 
of existing dwelling and erection of building to contain 6 no. apartments with 
associated landscaping and car parking – Spion Lodge, Bennett Road, 
Salcombe; and 
41/1262/15/F:  Demolition of existing stone boundary wall and 
redevelopment of site to form 300sqm of A1, A2 and A3 ground floor 
commercial space and 5no. residential units above, new vehicular access 
and parking – Development site at SX 738 392, Forer Gars Works, Gould 
Road, Salcombe. 

 
 
DM.30/15 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

The Chairman proceeded to announce that the following members of the 
public had registered their wish to speak at the meeting:- 

• 37/2548/14/O:  Objector – Mr John Tighe:  Supporter – Mr Richard 
Yonge:  Parish Council Representative – Cllr Alan Cooper:  Outline 
application (with some matters reserved) for mixed use development of 
70 dwellings, allotments, community facility, recreation and employment 
land SX 5670 4944, West of Collaton Park, Newton Ferrers; 

• 57/2472/14/O:  Supporter – Mr Mike Craggs:  Outline application for 
mixed use development of approx. 198 no. dwellings, public open space, 
employment uses (including Health Centre), a neighbourhood centre and 
new roundabout on Exeter Road (access to be considered) – Land at 
SX6483 5632, off Rutt Lane, Ivybridge; 

• 27/1159/15/F:  Objector – Mrs Dee Marshall:  Supporter – Ms Tamzin 
Wood: Town Council Representative – Cllr Tom Bowden:  Change of use 
of redundant barn to 2 no. dwellings, erection of garages, additional 
access and associated alterations –b Proposed development site at SX 
624 562, Woodland Barn, Woodland Farm, Ivybridge; 
 



Dev Management   23.09.15           
 
 

 
 

• 52/0782/15/F:  Objector – Mrs Barbara Heath:  Supporter – Mr Mark 
Newell:  Change of use to domestic curtilage and erection of greenhouse 
and shed – Land adj. to 8 Andrews Park, Stoke Gabriel, Totnes; 

• 41/1023/15/F:  Supporter – Mr Jan Tribble:  READVERTISEMENT 
(Revised Plans Received) Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of 
building to contain 6 no. apartments with associated landscaping and car 
parking – Spion Lodge, Bennett Road, Salcombe; 

• 41/1262/15/F:  Supporter – Mr Paul Fong:  Demolition of existing stone 
boundary wall and redevelopment of site to form 300sqm of A1, A2 and 
A3 ground floor commercial space and 5 no. residential units above, new 
vehicular access and parking – Development site at SX 738 392, former 
Gas Works, Gould Road, Salcombe. 

 
 
DM.31/15 PLANNING APPLICATIONS  
 

The Planning Case Officers submitted details of the planning applications 
as presented in the agenda papers.   

   
During discussion of the planning applications, the following motions (which 
were in contradiction to the planning officer recommendation in the 
published agenda report), were PROPOSED and SECONDED and on 
being put to the vote were either CARRIED or LOST:- 

 
a) In respect of application 37/2548/14/O:  Outline application (with some 

matters reserved) for mixed use development of 70 dwellings, 
allotments, community facility, recreation and employment land – SX 
5670 4944, West of Collaton Park, Newton Ferrers, the following motion 
was PROPOSED and SECONDED and on being put to the vote 
declared CARRIED:- 

 
‘That the application be deferred’ 

 
 

b) In respect of application 52/0782/15/F: Change of use to domestic 
curtilage and erection of greenhouse and shed – Land adj. to 8 Andrews 
Park, Stoke Gabriel, Totnes, the Case Officer introduced the application 
and set out the background to the site which should have been planted 
as part of the landscaping plan of the original Rowes Meadow 
development.   A plan and elevations of the proposal were shown and 
Members asked a number of questions in relation to the ownership of 
the land and the condition that related to the current planning 
permission.   
 
The local Ward Member advised Members of the misunderstandings 
around the site, and also the concerns of resident’s in terms of the 
unneighbourly impact of the proposal as the site was originally 
designated a buffer zone.  The Ward Member concluded her 
presentation by proposing that the application be refused, contrary to 
officer recommendation. 
 
 



Dev Management   23.09.15           
 
 

 
 

Members discussed the application in detail.  It was then PROPOSED, 
SECONDED and on being put to the vote and determined by way of 
Chairman’s casting vote, declared LOST  

 
‘That application 52/0782/15/F be refused’ 
 
It was then PROPOSED, SECONDED and on being put to the vote and 
determined by way of Chairman’s casting vote, declared CARRIED:- 
 
‘That application 52/0782/15/F be conditionally approved in line with the 
case officer recommendation’. 
 

 
DM.32/15 PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE  

 
There were no planning appeals to update at this meeting.  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

(Meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 4:20 pm) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_______________ 
        Chairman 



Dev Management   23.09.15           
 
 

 
 

Voting Analysis for Planning Applications – DM Comm ittee 23 September 2015    

Application No:  Site Address  Vote Councillors who Voted  
Yes 

Councillors who Voted 
No 

Councillors who 
Voted Abstain 

Absent  

37/2548/14/O 

SX 5670 4944, West of 
Collaton Park, Newton 
Ferrers 

Deferral Cllrs Bramble, Cane, Foss, Hitchins, 
Hodgson, Holway, Pearce, Rowe, Vint (9) 

Cllr Steer (1) (0) Cllrs Cuthbert, 
Brazil (2) 

57/2472/14/O 

Land at SX 6483 5632, 
off Rutt Lane, Ivybridge 

Conditional 
Approval  

Cllrs Bramble, Cane, Foss, Pearce, Rowe, 
Steer (6) 

Cllrs Hodgson, Holway (2) Cllr Vint (1) Cllrs Cuthbert, 
Brazil; Cllr Hitchins 
was absent for this 
item as a result of 
a DPI (3) 

27/1159/15/F 

Proposed development 
site at SX 624 562, 
Woodland Barn, 
Woodland Farm, 
Ivybridge 

Conditional 
Approval 

Cllrs Bramble, Cane, Foss, Pearce, 
Hitchins, Holway, Rowe, Steer (8) 

Cllrs Hodgson, Vint (2) (0) Cllrs Cuthbert, 
Brazil (2) 

52/0782/15/F 

Land adj 8 Andrews 
Park, Stoke Gabriel 

Refusal Cllrs Hodgson, Vint, Bramble, Pearce, 
Rowe (5) 

Cllrs Cane, Foss, Hitchins, 
Holway, Steer (5) 
 
Lost by Chairmans casting 
Vote 

(0) Cllrs Cuthbert, 
Brazil (2) 

52/0782/15/F 

Land adj 8 Andrews 
Park, Stoke Gabriel 

Conditional 
Approval 

Cllrs Cane, Foss, Hitchins, Holway, Steer 
(5)  
 
Carried by Chairmans casting Vote 

Cllrs Hodgson, Vint, 
Bramble, Pearce, Rowe (5) 

(0) Cllrs Cuthbert,  
Brazil (2) 

41/1023/15/F 

Spion Lodge, Bennett 
Road, Salcombe 

Conditional 
Approval 

Cllrs Bramble, Cane, Steer, Foss, Hitchins, 
Holway, Vint (7) 

Cllr Pearce (1) Cllr Brazil 
(entered the 
meeting part 
way through the 
presentation); 
Cllr Rowe (2) 

Cllrs Cuthbert,  
Hodgson (2) 

41/1262/15/F 

Development site at SX 
738 392, Former Gas 
Works, Gould Road, 
Salcombe 

Conditional 
Approval 

Cllrs Bramble, Cane, Steer, Foss, Hitchins, 
Holway, Pearce, Rowe (8) 

Cllr Brazil (1) Cllr Vint (1) Cllrs Cuthbert, 
Hodgson (2) 



Dev Management   23.09.15           
 
 

 
 

56/1693/15/AD 

16 Leechwell Street, 
Totnes 

Conditional 
Approval 

Cllrs Bramble, Cane, Steer, Foss, Hitchins, 
Holway, Pearce, Rowe, Brazil, Vint (10) 

(0) (0) Cllrs Cuthbert, 
Hodgson (2) 

56/1694/15/LB 

16 Leechwell Street, 
Totnes 

Conditional 
Approval 

Cllrs Bramble, Cane, Steer, Foss, Hitchins, 
Holway, Pearce, Rowe, Brazil, Vint (10) 

(0) (0) Cllrs Cuthbert, 
Hodgson (2) 



Dev Management   23.09.15           
 
 

 
 

 
                                 APPENDIX A  

 
37/2548/14/O  

Outline application (with some matters reserved) for mixed use development of 70 
dwellings, allotments, community facility, recreation and employment land  
 
Parish or Town Council  – Newton and Noss 
 
Parish Council’s Views  – Objection 
 
Officer Update  

Officers provided updates with respect to the detail of the Affordable Housing 
(AH) offer; the consideration of an alternative sites assessment (ASA) that 
had been submitted by the applicant; and the previous use of the land. 

With respect to AH it was confirmed that the applicant was offering 50% and 
that the housing would be an appropriate mix of shared ownership and social 
rented properties.  The applicant’s representative later described the AH 
element as ‘self-build’ / ‘custom-build’, which contradicted Officer advice to 
Members. 

With respect to the ASA Officers advised that this had been reviewed to an 
extent, but not thoroughly due to it only being available ten days prior to 
Committee.  The initial view of Officers was reported as not disputing the 
conclusion of the report that the site was potentially the best to deliver a major 
development in the AONB in Newton and Noss Parish, but that the report was 
limited in its validity since it had not considered sites outside the AONB and 
was, in any case based on a quantum of development the need for which had 
not been demonstrated. 

Officers advised that, based on the definition of pdl in the National Planning 
Policy Framework, the site is partly pdl. 

 
Recommendation  – Refusal 
 
Recommended Conditions  – N/A 
 
Committee Decision  - Deferral 
 

 
 
57/2472/14/O 
 
Outline application for mixed use development of approx 198 no. dwellings, 
public open space, employment uses (including Health Centre), a 
neighbourhood centre and new roundabout on Exeter Road (access to be 
considered) 
 
Parish or Town Council - Ugborough 



Dev Management   23.09.15           
 
 

 
 

 
Parish Council’s Views - Objection 
 
Officer Update 

Officers provided an update with respect to the review of the Affordable 
Housing (AH) / s106 offer; the design of the roundabout; and the medical 
centre.  In addition a petition with some 300 signatures was handed to the 
Chair by Cllr Holloway.  The petition requested highway safety measures on 
the A38 at Bittaford and Wrangaton. 

With respect to the review of the AH / s106 offer Officers advised that a 
comprehensive review had now been completed and that the applicant had 
provided more detail about costs, including abnormal costs.  The review 
concluded that the applicant would not make an unreasonable profit. 

Officers confirmed that the design of the roundabout now met highway safety 
standards. 

Officers advised that the proposal was to provide land for the medical centre, 
not its construction, and that the phasing plan would seek to ensure it could 
be delivered during the first phase of development. 

 

Recommendation – Conditional Approval 
 
Recommended Conditions 
 

1. Standard time limit for commencement; 
2. Accord with Plans, Drawings and FRA; 
3. GPDO Exclusion; 
4. Unsuspected Contamination; 
5. On-site highway works in accordance with plans / drawings; 
6. Construction Management Plan to be submitted and approved prior to 

commencement; 
7. Construction Method Plan to be submitted and approved prior to commencement; 
8. Phasing Plan to be submitted and approved prior to commencement; 
9. Surface water drainage layout and details to be submitted prior to commencement 

and the approved details completed and operational prior to occupation; 
10. Adherence to the Arboricultural Impact Assessment, Tree Protection Plan and 

Arboricultural Methodology Statements; 
11. Submission, prior to commencement, of a Lighting Strategy; 
12. Tree / hedge protection; 
13. Submission and agreement, prior to commencement, of a Landscape and  

Ecological Management Plan. 
14. Adherence to measures within Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, and Bat 
1. Activity Survey Report; 
15. As part of any Reserved Matters application for this site, the applicant shall 

undertake an acoustic assessment of the proposal and provide details of any 
attenuation necessary in accordance with BS8233:2014, to the Local Planning 
Authority for approval.  This scheme once approved shall be implemented and 
maintained in perpetuity; 

16. A link road to the remainder of the allocation site; 



Dev Management   23.09.15           
 
 

 
 

17. Construction method statement and management plan; 
18. Phasing plan; 
19. Highway works to be completed in accordance with approved details to be 

submitted to the LPA; 
20. Submission of a stage 2 highway safety audit; 
21. Details of retaining walls/structures; 
22. Details of boundary treatments; 
23. Lifetime homes; 
24. Use of employment land; and 
25. Inclusion of a review mechanism to allow a revision upwards of s106 payments/ the 

proportion of AH with respect to any uplift in plot value that may arise if more 
valuable alternative land use(s) are, subsequently, permitted; 

26. A foot and cycle path will be provided to link the site to the existing residential area 
to the west. 

 
S106 
1. 20% Affordable Housing; 
2. Affordable Housing occupancy; 
3. Green Travel Plan and Vouchers; 
4. Education; 
5. Solar pv; 
6. Play space; 
7. Off site sports; 
8. Applicant and LPA legal fees; and 
9. A ‘claw back’ mechanism with respect to any uplift in plot value that may 
arise if more valuable alternative land use(s) are, subsequently, permitted 
 
Committee Decision  – Authority to grant conditional approval be delegated 
to the Lead Specialist (Development Management) in consultation with the 
Chairman of Development Management Committee, subject to conditions and 
the signing of a Section 106 Agreement 
 

 
 
27/1159/15/F 
 
Change of use of redundant barn to 2no.dwellings, erection of garages, 
additional access and associated alterations 
 
Parish or Town Council  – Ivybridge 
 
Parish Council’s Views  – Objection 
 
Officer Update 
 
Mr Jones drew the committee’s attention to a late letter received from an 
objector and comments made by Ivybridge Town Council. He responded as 
follows: 
 



Dev Management   23.09.15           
 
 

 
 

- Acknowledged factual inaccuracies within the submitted Design and Access 
Statement, however, they were not deemed to prejudice assessment of the 
application 

- Agreement that extant TRO prohibits all vehicular movements 
- Emphasised that both SHDC and DCC officers have considered merits of 

application on basis that TRO restricts all vehicular movements  
- Regardless of existence or otherwise of separate access members must 

assess the application as it is before them 
- Clarified, as within officer report, that revised plans encompass small scale 

alterations to scheme which did not require formal readvertisement 
 
Recommendation  – Conditional Approval 
 
Recommended Conditions 
 
1. Time 
2. Accord with Plans 
3. Removal of Permitted Development Rights 
4. Parking and garaging retained in perpetuity  
5. Details of dividing boundary treatment prior to commencement of 

development  
6. Confirmation of granting of licence prior to commencement  
7. Removal of hedgerow outside of nesting season  
8. Bathroom/toilet windows on north elevation obscure glazed  
9. Joinery details prior to installation  
10. Natural slate, sample prior to installation  
11. Natural stone, matching existing  
12. Unsuspected contamination  
13. Landscape plan prior to commencement of development  
14. Soakaway specification prior to commencement of development  
15. Construction Environment Management Plan prior to commencement of 

development  
 
Committee Decision  – Conditional Approval 
 

 
 
52/0782/15/F 
 
Change of use to domestic curtilage and erection of greenhouse and shed 
 
Parish or Town Council  – Stoke Gabriel 
 
Parish Council’s Views  – Objection 
 
Officer Update  – None 
 
Recommendation  – Conditional Approval 
 
 



Dev Management   23.09.15           
 
 

 
 

Recommended Conditions 
 

1. Time Limit 
2. Accord with Plans 
3. Boundary planting to be implemented in first available planting season and 

thereafter 
4. Use as garden area only 
5. Removal of permitted development rights for additional structures 

 
Committee Decision  – Conditional Approval 
 

 
 
41/1023/15/F 
 
Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of building to contain 6No 
apartments with associated landscaping and car parking 
 
Parish or Town Council - Salcombe 
 
Parish Council’s Views – No objection 
 
Officer Update – Additional comments received from Town Council who raise 
no objection; two further letters of representation objecting to the application; 
error in calculation for affordable housing contribution as the net gain of units 
is five, not six as calculated.  Revised figure of £130,783; comment of Town 
Council in report refers to 6 parking spaces which should be 8 and error in 
Highways/Access section which incorrectly refers to no cycle parking which is 
incorrect as the proposal does provide secure cycle parking.  
 
Recommendation – Conditional approval subject to the completion of 
Section 106 Legal Agreement 
 
Recommended Conditions 
1. Time Limit for commencement 
2. In accordance with plans 
3. Materials 
4. Unsuspected contamination 
5. Works to adhere to measures within Ecological Survey 
6. Landscaping 
7. Construction Management Plan 

 
Committee Decision – Authority to grant Conditional Approval be delegated 
to the Lead Specialist (Development Management) in consultation with the 
Chairman of Development Management Committee subject to completion of 
Section 106 Agreement 
 

 
 
 



Dev Management   23.09.15           
 
 

 
 

41/1262/15/F 
 
Demolition of existing stone boundary wall and redevelopment of site to form 
300sqm of A1, A2 and A3 ground floor commercial space and 5no residential 
unites above, new vehicular access and parking 
 
Parish or Town Council  - Salcombe 

 
Parish Council’s Views - Objection 
 
Officer Update – Comments received from Environmental Health who raise 
no objection subject to condition regarding details of extraction equipment for 
the commercial use (s); one further letter of representation objecting on the 
basis of overlooking of ‘Jilmar’ which would be hemmed in by the 
development.  
 
Recommendation – Conditional approval subject to Section 106 Legal 
Agreement in respect of financial contribution 
 
Recommended Conditions 
 
1. Time limit for commencement 
2. In accordance with plans 
3. Materials 
4. Details of surfacing 
5. Construction Management Plan 
6. Highway works to be completed prior to occupation 
7. Submission of combined Stage 1 and Stage 2 safety audit 
8. Use Class of commercial units to be A1/A2/A3 and no other permitted changes. 
9. Flood Warning and Evacuation 
10. Contaminated Land 
11. Unsuspected Contamination 
12. Details of inbuilt provisions for birds to be agreed. 
13. Vegetation removal to be outside of bird nesting season 

 
Committee Decision – Authority to grant Conditional Approval be delegated 
to the Lead Specialist (Development Management) in consultation with the 
Chairman of Development Management Committee subject to completion of 
Section 106 Agreement 
 

 
 
56/1693/15/AD 
 
Advertisement consent for 2no. hanging signs and to add text to window and 
door 
 
Parish or Town Council - Totnes 

 
Parish Council’s Views – No objection 



Dev Management   23.09.15           
 
 

 
 

 
Officer Update - None 
 
Recommendation – Conditional Approval 
 
Recommended Conditions 
 
1-5 Standard Advert conditions 
 
Committee Decision – Conditional Approval 
 

 
 
56/1694/15/LB 
 
Listed building consent for 2no. hanging signs and to add text to window and 
door 
 
Parish or Town Council - Totnes 

 
Parish Council’s Views – No objection 
 
Officer Update - None 
 
Recommendation – Conditional Approval 
 
Recommended Conditions 
 
1. Time Limit 
2. Accord with approved plans 
3. External redecoration to be in a cream colour 

 
Committee Decision – Conditional Approval 
 
 





 
Audit 24.9.15 

 
 
 

 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
HELD AT FOLLATON HOUSE, TOTNES ON THURSDAY 24 SEPTEMBER 2015 

 
Members in attendance 
* Denotes attendance 

Ø Denotes apology for absence 
 

* Cllr I Bramble * Cllr J T Pennington (Chairman) 
* Cllr J Brazil * Cllr K R H Wingate (Vice-Chairman) 
* Cllr R J Foss   

 
Members also in attendance: 

 
Cllrs H D Bastone, R J Tucker, L A H Ward and S A E Wright 

 
Item No Minute 

Ref No below 
refers 

Officers and Visitors in attendance 

All 
Items 

 
 

Executive Director (Service Delivery and Commercial 
Development); Group Manager – Support Services, 
S151 Officer, Grant Thornton Representatives, Devon 
Audit Partnership Manager, Senior Specialist – 
Democratic Services and Finance Business Partner 

5 A.16/15 Assistant County Treasurer, Investments and 
Treasury Management – Devon County Council 

 
 
A.14/15 MINUTES 
 

 The minutes of the meeting held on 30 July 2015 were confirmed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman.  

 
 
A.15/15 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

Members and officers were invited to declare any interests in the items of 
business to be considered during the course of the meeting, but none were 
made. 

 
 
A.16/15 PRESENTATION FROM MARK GAYLER (ASSISTANT COUNTY 

TREASURER, INVESTMENTS AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT) OF 
DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL ON THE PENSION FUND 
 
The Committee received a presentation from Mr Mark Gayler (Assistant 
County Treasurer, Investments and Treasury Management) of Devon 
County Council on the Devon Pension Fund Investments and Risk. 
 

  



 
Audit 24.9.15 

 
 
 

 
 

The presentation concluded by looking to the future and made reference 
to: 
 
- The Pension Fund having a long term horizon over which to invest; 
- A need to invest in return seeking assets to reduce deficit position; 
- The Fund needing to adapt to a changing world and increasing volatility 

of markets; 
- Negative cashflow (contributions less benefits) needing to be factored 

into investment strategy for future years; 
- Greater emphasis on cost savings (proposals for pooled investments / 

greater collaboration); and 
- Long term performance still being the overriding objective. 
 
In discussion, reference was made to:- 

 
(a) the Deficit Recovery Position.  The Committee was advised that the 

County Council was more than happy to open up dialogue with the 
Council if it wished to consider reducing its deficit recovery period 
(which currently stood at 27 years (the Devon Pension Fund average 
was 25 years)); 
 

(b) the increase in net pension liability from £32,704 million (at 1 April 
2014) to £46,671 million (at 31 March 2015).  Whilst acknowledging 
that this was attributed to a change in actuarial assumptions in 
2014/15, Members still wished to express their concern at the 
substantial increase in total liability.  The reduction in the discount rate 
from 4.4% to 3.3% was the main reason for the increase in the net 
pension liability and Mr Gayler explained that the discount rate 
fluctuated on a daily basis and a snapshot was taken on 31 March each 
year.  In response, Mr Gayler informed that the actuary would look in a 
much more holistic way at this issue during its next actuarial review;  

 
(c) the Council decision to invest £17 million in its pension fund in 2003.  

Mr Gayler reassured the Committee that this had been a good decision 
and had resulted in the Council paying considerably less in its annual 
contribution rates; 

 
(d) the impact of the Transformation Programme.  Throughout the 

Programme, the S151 Officer confirmed that the actuary was kept fully 
informed of the impact on the pension fund and, as a consequence, the 
Council had accurately predicted the strain of all employees over the 
age of 55 leaving the authority and had budgeted accordingly.  In the 
ensuing general discussion, Mr Gayler confirmed that he would let 
officers know the cost of seeking actuary opinion on the merits of 
making a future capital payment.  In addition, the Committee 
acknowledged that the age profile of the organisation was now 
significantly lower and this would also have an impact; 

 
  



 
Audit 24.9.15 

 
 
 

 
 

(e) the performance of the Fund.  In comparison to other Funds, Mr Gayler 
informed that the Devon County Council Pension Fund had not 
performed as well in recent years.  However, with the government 
direction of travel appearing to be to pool pension funds across the 
South West region, then there was not felt to be any value in changing 
investment managers at this time.     

   
In conclusion, the Chairman thanked Mr Gayler for his informative 
presentation and interesting responses to Committee questions.   

   
  

A.17/15 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2014/15 
 

The Committee considered a report that informed that no changes were 
required to the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) from the version that 
was considered and approved at the July 2015 Audit Committee meeting 
(Minute A.10/15 refers). 
 
In discussion, reference was made to:- 
 
(a) the identified issue in relation to Land Charges.  In light of legal advice, 

it was noted that reference to the settlement figures had been removed 
from the Code of Corporate Governance; 
 

(b) the role of the S151 Officer at meetings of the Senior Leadership Team 
(SLT).  The Committee was advised that the S151 Officer had access 
to the weekly SLT agenda and also had an open invitation to attend 
SLT meetings.  

 
It was then: 

 
   RESOLVED 
 

That it be noted that no changes were required to the Annual 
Governance Statement 2014/15 from the version considered 
and approved at the July 2015 Audit Committee. 

 
 

A.18/15 ANNUAL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2014/15 
 

Members considered a report that presented a summary of net revenue 
and capital expenditure. 
 
During discussion, it was confirmed that the published version of the 
Statement of Accounts would be updated to reflect the fact that the job title 
of the S151 Officer had changed from the ‘Head of Finance’ to the ‘Finance 
Community Of Practice Lead’. 
 

  



 
Audit 24.9.15 

 
 
 

 
 

It was then: 
 

RESOLVED 
 
1. That the wording of the Letter of Representation (as 

outlined at Appendix A of the presented agenda report) be 
approved; and 

2. That the audited Statement of Accounts for the financial 
year ended 31 March 2015 (as outlined at Appendix B of 
the presented agenda report) also be approved.  

 
 
A.19/15 THE AUDIT FINDINGS FOR SOUTH HAMS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

A Grant Thornton report was considered that highlighted the key matters 
arising from their audit of the Council’s financial statements for the year 
ended 31 March 2015. 
 
Once the Grant Thornton Audit Manager had taken the Committee through 
the report, Members emphasised the excellent outcome and wished for 
their congratulations and thanks to be extended to the Section 151 Officer 
and her finance colleagues. 
 
It was then: 
 
  RESOLVED 
 
  That the paper be noted.  

 
 
A.20/15 THE USE OF AGENCY STAFF 
 
 A report was considered that provided the Committee with an update on the 

Council’s use of agency staff. 
 
 In discussion, the following points were raised:- 
 

(a) Some Members expressed their concerns at the upward trend in the 
percentage of agency staff (increased from 6.0% in 2012/13 to 9.9% in 
2014/15) and the subsequent costs arising from using agency staff.  In 
response, officers advised that this trend was being reversed in light of 
Environment Services (which had been employing a number of agency 
staff) now permanently filling their vacancies.  In addition, the recent 
completion of Phase 2 of the Transformation Programme had enabled 
the Council to be in a position to advertise to fill its vacancies. 
 
However, the Committee also recognised that the percentage of agency 
staff in the future may stay fairly constant in light of there being less 
permanent total staff numbers on the Council’s establishment; 
 

(b) It was the future aim of officers to be in a position to reduce the total 
staffing costs to £10 million; 



 
Audit 24.9.15 

 
 
 

 
 

 
(c) Such was the importance of this issue, the Committee was of the view 

that it would like to be in a position to review the trends again via a 
further report in six months’ time.  For the next report, officers also 
agreed to give consideration to methods of better illustrating the 
percentage and cost splits between South Hams District Council and 
West Devon Borough Council. 

 
 It was then: 
 
  RESOLVED 
 

1. That the contents of the report be noted; 
 

2. That the Senior Leadership Team continue to monitor the 
use and cost of using agency workers; and 

 
3. That an update report be presented to the Committee in 

six months’ time. 
 
 
A.21/15 UPDATE ON PROGRESS ON THE 2015/16 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 
 
 The Committee considered a report that informed it of the principal activities 

and findings of the Council’s Internal Audit team for 2015/16 to 31 August 
2015. 

 
 In discussion, the following points were raised:- 
 

(a) Whilst it would be formally reported to the next Committee meeting, the 
Group Manager – Support Services advised that the Council had just 
received a ‘good’ audit finding from central government in respect of its 
IT security compliance; 
 

(b) The Committee was given assurances that the cash collection audit 
findings were in no way linked to the Council changing its bank account; 

 
(c) With regard to the 50 days unplanned audit work for the Greater 

Dartmoor Local Enterprise Action Fund (LEAF) and South Devon 
Coastal Local Action Group (LAG), some Members commented that this 
seemed to be excessive.  In reply, officers advised that these were 
funded from EU Grants and, as a result of EU legislative requirements, 
were very resource intensive. 

 
  



 
Audit 24.9.15 

 
 
 

 
 

 It was then: 
 
  RESOLVED 
 

That the progress made against the 2015/16 internal audit 
plan, and any key issues, be noted.  

 
 
(Meeting commenced at 10.00 am and finished at 12 noon)  
 
 
 
                                                                                                       ________________ 

Chairman 



Salc Harb 28.09.15 

 

      MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF 

THE SALCOMBE HARBOUR BOARD 

HELD AT CLIFF HOUSE, SALCOMBE ON MONDAY 28 SEPTEMBER 2015 
 

Members in attendance 
* Denotes attendance             Ø  Denotes apology for absence 

* Cllr J Brazil (Chairman) *   Mr G Burrell 
* Cllr J A Pearce * Dr C C Harling (Vice Chairman) 
Ø Cllr K R H Wingate   Ø Mr M Mackley 
* Cllr S A E Wright Ø Mr H Marriage 
  * Mr A Thomson 
  * Mr M Taylor 

 
 

Item No Minute Ref No 
 below refers 

Officers in attendance and participating 

All 
agenda 
items 

 Salcombe Harbour Master,  Group Manager – 
Commercial Services, Finance Business Partner and 
Senior Case Manager 

 
 
SH.11/15 MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting of the Salcombe Harbour Board held on  
13 July 2015 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the 
Chairman. 

 
 
SH.12/15 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
Members were invited to declare any interests in the items of business to 
be considered during the course of the meeting, and the following were 
made: 
 
Cllr Wright, Dr Harling, Mr Burrell, Mr Taylor and Mr Thomson all declared 
a disclosable pecuniary interest in all related agenda items by virtue of 
having moorings or paying harbour dues to the Council.  As a result of the 
Solicitor granting each Board Member a dispensation, they were all able to 
take part in the debate and vote on any related matters (Minute SH.05/15 
refers).    

 
 
SH.13/15 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 

 
The following issues were raised during Public Question Time: 
 
1. A representative from Kingsbridge Estuary Boat Club asked that the 

Club be included on the list of e-recipients who received a copy of the 
Salcombe Harbour Annual Report; 

2. Mr Jonno Barrett updated the Board with the news that Mr Peter 
Goldsworthy had recently passed away.  Mr Goldsworthy had been a 
Chair of the Estuary Association and had played an important role 
during the Municipal Ports review.   



Salc Harb 28.09.15 

 

The Chairman thanked Mr Barrett for bringing this to the Boards 
attention and asked that the minutes reflect the appreciation of the 
Board for the work that Mr Goldsworthy had undertaken. 

3. Mr Richard Martin updated the Board on the forthcoming visit in 
relation to the export of crab to China.  Part of the process was to show 
that crab was wild and not farmed.  The visit would be important to 
local trade.  In replying  to a query regarding any support that the Board 
could give, Mr Martin responded that the support offered so far had 
been more than adequate.       

 
 
SH.14/15 FEEDBACK FROM HARBOUR COMMUNITY FORUMS 

 
The Board received verbal update reports from the Board Members who 
attended the Harbour Community Forums.  The updates were as follows: 

 
 
Salcombe Kingsbridge Estuary Association (SKEA) 
There was no update to give at this meeting. 

 
Salcombe Kingsbridge Estuary Conservation Forum (SKECF) 
The Forum would be meeting later that week.  The recent Bioblitz event 
had been successful. 

 
South Devon & Channel Shellfishermen 
The Shellfishermen had stated that they were comfortable with the recent 
changes. 
 
Kingsbridge and Salcombe Marine Business Forum 

 There was no update to give at this meeting. 
 

Kingsbridge Estuary Boat Club (KEBC) 
There was no update to give at this meeting. 

 
 
SH.15/15 PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/17 
 
 The Board was presented with a report that sought a recommendation to 

Council in respect of the proposed 2016/17 budget.  The Harbour Master 
introduced the report and highlighted the key areas of particular note.  
He responded to questions.  The Finance Business Partner brought 
Members attention to the budget forecast which had been included in the 
agenda papers at the request of the Board.  Members discussed the 
Marine Infrastructure Reserve and it was agreed that the Lead Specialist 
Assets should attend and present a report on infrastructure matters 
within the Salcombe Kingsbridge area at a future Board meeting.  To 
conclude this item Members praised the work of the Finance team in 
producing the presented budget. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Salc Harb 28.09.15 

 

 It was then: 
 
  RECOMMENDED 
 

That Council be RECOMMENDED that the proposed 2016/17 
budget set out within the presented agenda report be approved, 
subject to agreement of the fees and charges to enable a 
balanced budget. 

 
SH.16/15 FEES AND CHARGES 2016/17 
  
 The Harbour Master presented a report that sought to recommend 

changes to the current charging policy and proposed fees and charges 
for implementation from 1 April 2016. 

 
 Members discussed the proposed charging strategy, particularly in 

relation to overnight berthing charges, and whether a percentage or flat 
fee increase would be more appropriate.  During discussion, Members 
were mindful not to return to the days of the reputation of Salcombe 
being that of a ‘rip off’ destination.  Members also noted that the 
forthcoming workshop event would present an opportunity for a more 
specific strategy to be produced.   

 
  It was then: 
   

RECOMMENDED 
 
That Council be RECOMMENDED that:- 

 
1. the changes to the charging policy (set out in 

paragraph 3 of the presented agenda report) be 
approved; and     

2. the proposed fees and charges (as presented in 
the Appendix to these minutes) be approved for 
implementation from 1 April 2016. 

 
 
SH.17/15 ANNUAL REPORT 
 
 The Harbour Master presented a report that sought to publish the Annual 

Report which covered the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015 and 
reported the progress made against the Board’s Strategic Objectives up 
to 31 March 2015. 

 
 A Member asked that the report be forwarded to the yachting press. 
 
  It was then: 
   

 RESOLVED 
 

That the Annual Report be published. 
 
 
 
 



Salc Harb 28.09.15 

 

SH.18/15 PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 
 Members were asked to consider a report that proposed a revised set of 

Performance Indicators (PIs) and reported progress made in the first 
quarter of this financial year against both the proposed and existing PIs. 

 
 The Harbour Master introduced the report, and then advised Members that 

all PIs had either met or exceeded their target.  He particularly drew 
attention to the visiting boat income.  Members thanked the Harbour 
Master for the new format.  The issue of speeding within the Harbour was 
also raised and the Harbour Master reiterated the importance of receiving 
a report at the time of the incident. 

  
 It was then: 
 
  RESOLVED 
 
   That the latest PIs be noted. 
 
 
SH.19/15 EGREMONT 
 
 The Board was asked to consider a report that updated it on the situation 

regarding the MV Egremont and outlined potential future courses of action.  
The Trustee Chairman, Mr Martin, was in attendance, and at the invitation 
of the Chairman, updated the Board on the latest position.  He advised 
that the process of making a bid to the Heritage Lottery Fund had now 
stopped.  There was a plan of the work needed to be undertaken to make 
the ship secure and the Trust were working towards a spring departure.   

 
 Members had a detailed discussion and asked further questions of clarity 

of the Trust Chairman. 
 
 It was then: 
 
  RESOLVED 
 
  That the report be noted.  
 
 
SH.20/15 SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
 
 The Harbour Master introduced a report that sought to update the Safety 

Management System for adoption by the Board in the role as the 
Harbour’s ‘duty holder’. 

 
 The Chairman advised that this was the first time that the document had 

been signed off by the new Designated Person.  Members asked that the 
risk assessment be a topic for discussion at the forthcoming workshop. 

 
 It was then: 
 
  RESOLVED 
 
  That the updated Safety Management System be adopted. 



Salc Harb 28.09.15 

 

 
 
SH.21/15 OPTIONS IN RELATION TO WIFI 
 
 The Board was asked to consider a report that provided an update on the 

provision of WiFi by the Harbour Authority and outlined potential 
alternatives. 

 
 The Harbour Master introduced the report and drew Members attention to 

the graph within the report that identified the pattern of WiFi take up over 
the year.  Members agreed with the conclusions reached within the report 
and felt that visitors should be encouraged to come ashore to take 
advantage of WiFi hotspots. 

 
 It was then: 
 
  RESOLVED 
 
  That the report be noted. 
 
 
SH.22/15 MATTERS OF TOPICAL INTEREST 
 
 Members were asked to consider a report that updated them on a number 

of issues of topical interest which did not merit a separate report in their 
own right.  Several Members raised concerns and disappointment with the 
incidences of pollution in the estuary. 

 
   It was then: 
   

 RESOLVED 
 

That the report be noted. 
 
 
 
SH.23/15 MATTERS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION 
 
 A report was considered that highlighted matters for future consideration 

by the Board. Members were reminded that the workshop was tol take 
place on 20 October 2015. 

 
 

RESOLVED 
 

That the report be noted. 
 
 
(Meeting commenced at 2.30 pm and concluded at 4.15 pm) 

 
 
 
 

____________ 
         Chairman 





APPENDIX A - SALCOMBE HARBOUR - PROPOSED CHARGES FOR 2016/2017 (excluding VAT)

DETAIL 2015/16 NET RATE Proposed   Increase NET RATE VAT 20% Gross Charge ROUNDED NET RATE VAT 20% Gross Charge Actual
£ Increase % £ £ £ £ £ £ £ Increase %

Section A
Canoes, kayaks, Sailboards, Stand Up Paddle Boards and rowing boats £9.00 0.00% 0.00 9.00 1.80 £10.80 £10.80 9.00 1.80 10.80 0.00%
Sailing dinghies and any vessel without an engine upto 4.5 metres in length £18.00 0.00% 0.00 18.00 3.60 £21.60 £21.60 18.00 3.60 21.60 0.00%
Dues up to 4.5 m A £26.33 0.00% 0.00 26.33 5.27 £31.60 £31.60 26.33 5.27 31.60 0.00%
Over 4.5 m B £20.00 0.00% 0.00 20.00 4.00 £24.00 £24.00 20.00 4.00 24.00 0.00%

High Powered Craft up to 4.5 m =Ax1.5 £39.50 0.00% 0.00 39.50 7.90 £47.40 £47.40 39.50 7.90 47.40 0.00%
Over 4.5 m =Bx1.5 £30.00 0.00% 0.00 30.00 6.00 £36.00 £36.00 30.00 6.00 36.00 0.00%

Daily Charge (Maximum 7 days) All craft without engine or engine under 40hp £4.25 0.00% 0.00 4.25 0.85 £5.10 £5.10 4.25 0.85 5.10 0.00%
Daily Charge (Maximum 7 days) All craft with engines over 40HP £8.50 0.00% 0.00 8.50 1.70 £10.20 £10.20 8.50 1.70 10.20 0.00%
Daily dues £0.75 0.00% 0.00 0.75 0.15 £0.90 £0.90 0.75 0.15 0.90 0.00%
Daily mooring and dues £1.54 0.00% 0.00 1.54 0.31 £1.85 £1.85 1.54 0.31 1.85 0.00%

Weekly dues £3.75 0.00% 0.00 3.75 0.75 £4.50 £4.50 3.75 0.75 4.50 0.00%

Weekly mooring and dues £7.71 0.00% 0.00 7.71 1.54 £9.25 £9.25 7.71 1.54 9.25 0.00%
Part Day £4.58 0.00% 0.00 4.58 0.92 £5.50 £5.50 4.58 0.92 5.50 0.00%
Whitestrand and Normandy Town Landing + 50%
SECTION B    Commercial Passenger Vessels - visiting

per metre £0.87 1.00% 0.01 0.88 0.18 £1.06 £1.06 0.88 0.18 1.06 1.15%
plus per passenger landed £0.55 1.00% 0.01 0.56 0.11 £0.67 £0.67 0.56 0.11 0.67 1.82%

SECTION C
Merchant Vessels under 100 tons £0.49 1.00% 0.00 0.49 0.10 £0.59 £0.59 0.49 0.10 0.59 0.00%
Of 100 tons or over £0.56 1.00% 0.01 0.57 0.11 £0.68 £0.68 0.57 0.11 0.68 1.79%

SECTION D
Houseboats up to 4.5 metres =Ax2 £52.66 0.00% 0.00 52.66 10.53 £63.19 £63.20 52.67 10.53 63.20 0.02%
Over 4.5 metres =bx2 £40.00 0.00% 0.00 40.00 8.00 £48.00 £48.00 40.00 8.00 48.00 0.00%

SECTION E
Tugs £24.36 1.00% 0.24 24.60 4.92 £29.52 £29.52 24.60 4.92 29.52 0.99%

SECTION F
Laying up Merchant Vessels ashore £15.70 1.00% 0.16 15.86 3.17 £19.03 £19.03 15.86 3.17 19.03 1.02%
Laying up Merchant Vessels afloat £0.97 1.00% 0.01 0.98 0.20 £1.18 £1.18 0.98 0.20 1.18 1.03%

SECTION G
Goods shipped £1.46 1.00% 0.01 1.47 0.29 £1.76 £1.76 1.47 0.29 1.76 0.68%
                                              
SECTION H
Foreshore mooring licence £6.08 1.00% 0.06 6.14 1.23 £7.37 £7.37 6.14 1.23 7.37 0.99%
(Minimum charge payable) x6 £36.47 1.00% 0.36 36.83 7.37 £44.20 £44.20 36.83 7.37 44.20 0.99%
Boatyard Mooring Charge/metre £9.10 1.00% 0.09 9.19 1.84 £11.03 £11.03 9.19 1.84 11.03 0.99%
(Minimum charge payable) x6 £54.60 1.00% 0.54 55.14 11.03 £66.17 £66.17 55.14 11.03 66.17 0.99%

Deep Water mooring licence £10.10 1.00% 0.10 10.20 2.04 £12.24 £12.24 10.20 2.04 12.24 0.99%
(Minimum charge payable) x6 £60.59 1.00% 0.61 61.20 12.24 £73.44 £73.44 61.20 12.24 73.44 1.01%
Boatyard Mooring Charge/metre £12.67 1.00% 0.13 12.80 2.56 £15.36 £15.36 12.80 2.56 15.36 1.03%
(Minimum charge payable) x6 £76.02 1.00% 0.76 76.80 15.36 £92.16 £92.16 76.80 15.36 92.16 1.03%

Calculated 2016/17 increases based on proposed % increase Proposed Charges for 2016/17 



APPENDIX A - SALCOMBE HARBOUR - PROPOSED CHARGES FOR 2016/2017 (excluding VAT)

DETAIL 2015/16 NET RATE Proposed   Increase NET RATE VAT 20% Gross Charge ROUNDED NET RATE VAT 20% Gross Charge Actual
£ Increase % £ £ £ £ £ £ £ Increase %

Calculated 2016/17 increases based on proposed % increase Proposed Charges for 2016/17 

SECTION I

Laying up private vessels £10.53 1.00% 0.11 10.64 2.13 £12.77 £12.77 10.64 2.13 12.77 1.04%

SECTION J - Crime Prevention charges 
                  Category 1 £4.89 1.00% 0.05 4.94 0.99 £5.93 £5.93 4.94 0.99 5.93 1.02%

Category 2 £32.10 1.00% 0.32 32.42 6.48 £38.90 £38.90 32.42 6.48 38.90 1.00%
Category 3 £13.60 1.00% 0.14 13.74 2.75 £16.49 £16.49 13.74 2.75 16.49 1.03%

SECTION K - Whitestrand Pontoon Licence (Resident Commercial)
Category A £220.15 1.00% 2.20 222.35 44.47 £266.82 £266.82 222.35 44.47 266.82 1.00%
Category A1 £440.28 1.00% 4.40 444.68 88.94 £533.62 £533.62 444.68 88.94 533.62 1.00%
CategoryA2 £1,761.07 1.00% 17.61 1,778.68 355.74 £2,134.42 £2,134.42 1,778.68 355.74 2,134.42 1.00%
Category B £440.28 1.00% 4.40 444.68 88.94 £533.62 £533.62 444.68 88.94 533.62 1.00%
Category B1 £880.53 1.00% 8.81 889.34 177.87 £1,067.21 £1,067.21 889.34 177.87 1,067.21 1.00%
Category B2 £3,522.14 1.00% 35.22 3,557.36 711.47 £4,268.83 £4,268.83 3,557.36 711.47 4,268.83 1.00%
Category C £880.53 1.00% 8.81 889.34 177.87 £1,067.21 £1,067.21 889.34 177.87 1,067.21 1.00%
Category C1 £1,761.07 1.00% 17.61 1,778.68 355.74 £2,134.42 £2,134.42 1,778.68 355.74 2,134.42 1.00%

SECTION L

Marine Advertising Boards at Whitestrand £51.47 0.00% 0.00 51.47 0.00 £51.47 £51.47 51.47 0.00 51.47 0.00%

Mooring Hire Deep Water

Above Tosnos C £55.43 1.00% 0.55 55.98 11.20 £67.18 £67.18 55.98 11.20 67.18 0.99%
(Minimum charge payable) =Cx7.5 £415.73 1.00% 4.16 419.89 83.98 £503.87 £503.85 £419.85 83.97 503.82 0.99%
Boatyard Above Tosnos D=Cx1.5 £83.14 1.00% 0.83 83.97 16.79 £100.76 £100.76 83.97 16.79 100.76 1.00%
(Minimum charge payable) =Dx7.5 £623.56 1.00% 6.24 629.80 125.96 £755.76 £755.76 629.80 125.96 755.76 1.00%
All other areas including pontoons E £65.95 1.00% 0.66 66.61 13.32 £79.93 £79.93 66.61 13.32 79.93 1.00%
(Minimum charge payable) =Ex7.5 £494.65 1.00% 4.95 499.60 99.92 £599.52 £599.52 499.60 99.92 599.52 1.00%
Boatyard Mooring F=Ex1.5 £98.93 1.00% 0.99 99.92 19.98 £119.90 £119.90 99.92 19.98 119.90 1.00%
(Minimum charge payable) =Fx7.5 £741.98 1.00% 7.42 749.40 149.88 £899.28 £899.28 749.40 149.88 899.28 1.00%

Mooring Hire Foreshore

Visitors per day £11.39 0.00 11.39 2.28 £13.67 £13.70 11.42 2.28 13.70 0.26%
Visitors per week £62.73 0.00 62.73 12.55 £75.28 £75.25 62.71 12.54 75.25 -0.03%

Resident G £39.74 1.00% 0.40 40.14 8.03 £48.17 £48.17 40.14 8.03 48.17 1.01%
 (Minimum charge payable) =Gx4.5 £178.83 1.00% 1.79 180.62 36.12 £216.74 £216.74 180.62 36.12 216.74 1.00%
Boatyard Mooring H=Gx1.5 £59.62 1.00% 0.60 60.22 12.04 £72.26 £72.26 60.22 12.04 72.26 1.01%
(Minimum charge payable) =Hx4.5 £268.29 1.00% 2.68 270.97 54.19 £325.16 £325.16 270.99 54.20 325.19 1.01%

Batson & Victoria Quay Pontoon (per season)
Single Category max 2.0 metre wide berth £250.39 1.00% 2.50 252.89 50.58 £303.47 £303.47 252.89 50.58 303.47 1.00%
Category 4 - 2.3 metre wide berth (Batson Only) £319.50 1.00% 3.20 322.70 64.54 £387.24 £387.24 322.70 64.54 387.24 1.00%
Boatyard Mooring - 2.0 metre wide berth £375.57 1.00% 3.76 379.33 75.87 £455.20 £455.20 379.33 75.87 455.20 1.00%
Boatyard Mooring - 2.3 metre wide berth £479.27 1.00% 4.79 484.06 96.81 £580.87 £580.87 484.06 96.81 580.87 1.00%



APPENDIX A - SALCOMBE HARBOUR - PROPOSED CHARGES FOR 2016/2017 (excluding VAT)

DETAIL 2015/16 NET RATE Proposed   Increase NET RATE VAT 20% Gross Charge ROUNDED NET RATE VAT 20% Gross Charge Actual
£ Increase % £ £ £ £ £ £ £ Increase %

Calculated 2016/17 increases based on proposed % increase Proposed Charges for 2016/17 

Shadycombe Pontoons (annual)

Category 3 £250.39 1.00% 2.50 252.89 50.58 £303.47 £303.47 252.89 50.58 303.47 1.00%
Category 4 £319.50 1.00% 3.20 322.70 64.54 £387.24 £387.24 322.70 64.54 387.24 1.00%

Boatyard Category 3 £375.57 1.00% 3.76 379.33 75.87 £455.20 £455.20 379.33 75.87 455.20 1.00%
Boatyard Category 4 £479.27 1.00% 4.79 484.06 96.81 £580.87 £580.87 484.06 96.81 580.87 1.00%

Kingsbridge Pontoon 

Berth Charge £250.39 1.00% 2.50 252.89 50.58 £303.47 £303.47 252.89 50.58 303.47 1.00%

Boatyard Charge £375.57 1.00% 3.76 379.33 75.87 £455.20 £455.20 379.33 75.87 455.20 1.00%

Storebox Mooring Rental £133.33 1.00% 1.33 134.66 26.93 £161.59 £161.59 134.66 26.93 161.59 1.00%
Stoorbox Registration Fee £10.20 1.00% 0.10 10.30 2.06 £12.36 £12.36 10.30 2.06 12.36 0.98%
Fish Quay Pontoon £61.32 1.00% 0.61 61.93 12.39 £74.32 £74.32 61.93 12.39 74.32 0.99%
Whitestrand Boat Park £135.56 1.00% 1.36 136.92 27.38 £164.30 £164.30 136.92 27.38 164.30 1.00%

Water Taxi Charges
Childs fare from any point £0.42 0.00% 0.00 0.42 0.08 £0.50 £0.50 0.42 0.08 0.50 0.00%
Adult Fares
Off Town £1.25 0.00% 0.00 1.25 0.25 £1.50 £1.50 1.25 0.25 1.50 0.00%
The Bag £1.67 0.00% 0.00 1.67 0.33 £2.00 £2.00 1.67 0.33 2.00 0.00%
Trips to and from areas above Tosnos Point £2.50 0.00% 0.00 2.50 0.50 £3.00 £3.00 2.50 0.50 3.00 0.00%

Discount 20x Water Taxi Tickets
Off Town £16.67 0.00% 0.00 16.67 3.33 £20.00 £20.00 16.67 3.33 20.00 0.00%
The Bag £25.00 0.00% 0.00 25.00 5.00 £30.00 £30.00 25.00 5.00 30.00 0.00%
Trips to and from areas above Tosnos Point £33.33 0.00% 0.00 33.33 6.67 £40.00 £40.00 33.33 6.67 40.00 0.00%

Whitestrand Pontoon Charge July & August
Residents & Visitors Per Month £28.33 1.00% 0.28 28.61 5.72 £34.33 £34.50 28.75 5.75 34.50 1.48%

Charges Appendix A 



APPENDIX A - SALCOMBE HARBOUR - PROPOSED CHARGES FOR 2016/2017 (excluding VAT)

DETAIL 2015/16 NET RATE Proposed   Increase NET RATE VAT 20% Gross Charge ROUNDED NET RATE VAT 20% Gross Charge Actual
£ Increase % £ £ £ £ £ £ £ Increase %

Calculated 2016/17 increases based on proposed % increase Proposed Charges for 2016/17 

Harbour Authority Services charges

Barge Hire Minimum 4 hours £552.68 1.00% 5.53 558.21 111.64 669.85 558.21 111.64 669.85 1.00%
Barge Hire Per Day £1,105.35 1.00% 11.05 1,116.40 223.28 1,339.68 1,116.40 223.28 1,339.68 1.00%
Barge Hire per week £5,526.77 1.00% 55.27 5,582.04 1,116.41 6,698.45 5,582.04 1,116.41 6,698.45 1.00%
Launch hire minimum 1 hour £69.08 1.00% 0.69 69.77 13.95 83.72 69.77 13.95 83.72 1.00%
Launch Hire per day £552.68 1.00% 5.53 558.21 111.64 669.85 558.21 111.64 669.85 1.00%
Launch Hire per week £2,763.38 1.00% 27.63 2,791.01 558.20 3,349.21 2,791.01 558.20 3,349.21 1.00%
Launch routine towage (less than 30 mins) £26.53 1.00% 0.27 26.80 5.36 32.16 26.80 5.36 32.16 1.02%
FLT hire minimum 1 hour £69.08 1.00% 0.69 69.77 13.95 83.72 69.77 13.95 83.72 1.00%
FLT Hire per day £552.68 1.00% 5.53 558.21 111.64 669.85 558.21 111.64 669.85 1.00%
FLT Hire per week £2,763.38 1.00% 27.63 2,791.01 558.20 3,349.21 2,791.01 558.20 3,349.21 1.00%
FLT Small task (less than 30 mins) £26.53 1.00% 0.27 26.80 5.36 32.16 26.80 5.36 32.16 1.02%
Crane Hire minimum 1 Hours £94.02 1.00% 0.94 94.96 18.99 113.95 94.96 18.99 113.95 1.00%
Crane Hire per day £752.19 1.00% 7.52 759.71 151.94 911.65 759.71 151.94 911.65 1.00%
Crane hire per week £3,760.92 1.00% 37.61 3,798.53 759.71 4,558.24 3,798.53 759.71 4,558.24 1.00%
Hourly rate for additional member of staff £24.94 1.00% 0.25 25.19 5.04 30.23 25.19 5.04 30.23 1.00%
Salcombe Town Landings - Electricity £2.65 1.00% 0.03 2.68 0.54 3.22 2.68 0.54 3.22 1.13%
Winter Storage Afloat 1 Oct to 31 March Annual Dues + 50% Annual Mooring



 Executive 15.10.15 
 

 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF 
THE EXECUTIVE 

HELD AT FOLLATON HOUSE ON THURSDAY, 15 OCTOBER 2015  
 

Members in attendance : 
* Denotes attendance 

* Cllr H D Bastone * Cllr R J Tucker  
* Cllr R D Gilbert * Cllr L A H Ward 
* Cllr M J Hicks  * Cllr S A E Wright 

 
 

Also in attendance and participating  
Item 7 E.31/15 Cllrs Bramble, Brazil, Hodgson, Pearce, Pennington 

and Saltern  
Item 9 E.33/15 Cllr Pearce 
Item 10 E.34/15 Cllrs Brazil, Hodgson, Pennington and Saltern 
Item 11 E.35/15 Cllrs Baldry, Brazil, Hodgson, Pearce and Pennington 
Item 12  E.36/15 Cllrs Brazil, Hawkins and Hodgson 
Item 13 E.37/15 Cllrs Baldry, Brazil, Cuthbert, Hodgson, Holway, 

Pearce and Saltern 
Item 15 E.39/15 Cllr Hawkins 
Item 16 E.40/15 Cllrs Hodgson, Holway and Saltern 
Item 17 E.41/15 Cllr Pennington 

 Also in attendance and not participating  
Cllrs Barnes, Brown, Green, May, Smerdon, Steer and Vint  
 
 

Officers in attendance  and participating  
All items  Executive Director Strategy & Commissioning (SJ), 

Executive Director Service Delivery and Commercial 
Development (SD&CD) (SH) and Senior Case Manager 
(KT) 

Item 7 E.31/15 COP Lead Specialist Place and Strategy (RK) 
Item 8 E.32/15 COP Lead Specialist Assets (CB) 
Item 9 E.33/15 Group Manager Commercial Services (HD) 
Item 10  E.34/15 COP Lead Specialist Housing, Revenues and Benefits 

(IB), Case Manager (AL) 
Item 11 E.35/15 COP Lead Specialist Finance (S151 Officer) (LB) 
Item 12 E.36/15 COP Lead Specialist Finance (S151 Officer) (LB), COP 

Lead Specialist Assets (CB) 
Item 13, 
14 and 
15 

E.37/15, 
E.38/15, 
E.39/15 

Operational Manager (Environment Services) (CA) 

 
 
E.26/15 MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on 10 September 2015 

were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
  
 
E.27/15 URGENT BUSINESS – NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN PROCEDURES  



 Executive 15.10.15 
 

 
 

 
 The Leader advised that he had agreed that an urgent report could be 

considered at this meeting entitled Neighbourhood Plan Procedures.  This 
item was considered urgent in light of the associated time constraints and 
this would be taken as the next agenda item (Minute E.28/15 below refers).  

 
 
E.28/15 NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN PROCEDURES 
 

Members were asked to consider an urgent report that sought agreement 
to approve the Neighbourhood Plan Procedures as set out in the 
presented report. 
 
The Portfolio Holder introduced the report and proposed a slight correction 
to the first recommendation to amend the Portfolio Holder title.  He took 
Members through the key parts of the report, and then the Lead Specialist 
– Place and Strategy confirmed that approval of this report would help to 
speed up the Neighbourhood Plan process, which was in line with the 
recently published central government intention to have Local Plan 
documents in place by 2017.  

 
  It was then: 
 

RESOLVED 
 

1. That authority to approve the neighbourhood Plan 
procedures set out in Appendix 1 of the presented report 
be delegated to the Lead Specialist, Place and Strategy, in 
consultation with the Customer First Portfolio Holder and 
the local ward member(s) for the designated 
Neighbourhood Plan area; and  

2. That, subject to agreement of recommendation 1, 
appropriate changes be made to the Council’s 
Neighbourhood Plan Protocol. 

 
 
E.29/15 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

Members and officers were invited to declare any interests in the items 
of business to be considered during the course of this meeting but none 
were made.  In accordance with the Council Constitution, r Cllr Bastone 
advised that he would abstain from the vote on agenda Items 14 
‘Operational Amendments to Off Street Parking Order’ (Minute E.38/15 
refers) and 15 ‘Dartmouth Park & Ride Service Review’ (Minute E.39/15 
refers) as both Items referred to matters within his local ward.  He also 
abstained from the vote on Item 11: ‘Medium Term Financial Strategy’ 
(Minute E.35/15 refers). 

 
 
E.30/15 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  
 

 It was noted that no public questions had been received. 
E.31/15 OUR PLAN UPDATE  



 Executive 15.10.15 
 

 
 

  
  Members considered a report that updated them on the status of Our 
Plan, in particular the Development Plan element of the Plan.  It made 
recommendations for next steps which involved an adapted approach 
focussed around the Housing Market Area (HMA) and a strengthened 
Duty to Co-operate arrangement.  This would require an amendment to 
the Local Development Scheme which was the document that established 
the timescale for Our Plan. 
 
The Leader introduced the report and confirmed that this matter would be 
on the agenda for the regular meetings held between the Leader, Deputy 
Leader and Executive Directors to enable monitoring of progress, capacity 
and resources. 
 
The Chairman of the Strategic Planning Working Group added a number 
of comments, including that there had been some concern over the length 
of time taken over Our Plan, but it was a complex issue with a range of 
subjects within it, which had been interfered with by the myriad of changes 
in central government policy.  
 
During discussion, the following points were raised: 
 

• One Member hoped that the Council would be proactive and would 
encourage sites to come forward.  The Chairman of the Strategic 
Planning Working Group confirmed that there may be an 
opportunity to review previously discounted sites.  The Lead 
Specialist Place and Strategy confirmed that officers would go back 
over the existing evidence and be more proactive with sites; 

 
• The Leader stated that Members could have a role in bringing sites 

forward.  The Lead Specialist Place and Strategy stated that the 
guidance to Neighbourhood Plan groups would be refreshed; 

 
• A Member requested quarterly reports on progress be brought back 

to the Executive.  This was proposed, seconded and on being put to 
the vote carried and the recommendation was duly amended; 

 
• Members noted that the Duty to Co-operate would be central to the 

process.  Members also discussed the inclusion of Torbay within the 
defined Housing Market Area; 

 
• One Member raised concerns over the level of infrastructure in 

place and noted that the Highways Authority and South West Water 
had a key role in this regard; 

 
• The Leader asked that officers produce a briefing paper on the 

impact of the recently published Housing and Planning Bill; 
 

• Members discussed the importance of objectively assessed housing 
need numbers and how policy objectives would be governed from 
this definitive number; 



 Executive 15.10.15 
 

 
 

• One Member stated that the support of the Neighbourhood Plan 
groups would give security to Our Plan on the ground; 

 
• One Member suggested that the name Our Plan should be 

revisited, but there was no support for this at this stage amongst his 
Executive colleagues. 

 
It was then: 
 
 RECOMMENDED 
 
 That Council be RECOMMENDED that: 
 

1. Option 2 for progression of South Hams Our Plan, as set out 
at section 4 of the presented agenda report, be pursued 
recognising that this will need a plan period to 2032 or 2033 
or alignment with neighbouring authorities; 

2. a detailed Duty to Co-operate protocol, or similar agreement, 
be established with neighbouring planning authorities within 
the Housing Market Area.  This would  address joint 
approaches to strategic planning relating to timetable, 
evidence, policies, strategic allocations, governance, staffing, 
scope of Housing Market Area, viability and infrastructure 
amongst other matters;  

3. the Local Development Scheme be reviewed and re-issued 
in line with recommendation 1; 

4. further evidence work (joint or specific) be procured as 
required;  

5. the response to the  Our Plan Topic Papers public 
consultations be published as set out at section 4 of the 
presented agenda report;  

6. remaining Strategic Housing Land Availability assessment 
work be published as set out in section 4 of the presented 
agenda report and options for additional sites be explored; 

7. a budget provision for 2016/17 of £75,000 be made for Our 
Plan examination anticipated to be met from the Planning 
Policy and Major Development Reserve. 

8. guidance for Neighbourhood Plan Groups be issued to 
inform their work as it relates to Our Plan 

9. a refreshed Our Plan Engagement Strategy be issued 
10. regular updates be provided to the Strategic Planning 

Working Group  
11. further monitoring reports be submitted to the Executive 

every three months and the Council as and when required 
making specific proposals for future consultation, 
consideration and submission of Our Plan 

12. those specific details to be agreed under recommendations 
2,3,6,8 and 9 be delegated to the Lead Specialist – Place 
and Strategy in consultation with the Chairman of the 
Strategic Planning Working Group and the Leader of 
Council. 



 Executive 15.10.15 
 

 
 

E.32/15 BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT – ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY  
 

Members were asked to consider a report that sought approval of the 
updated Asset Management Strategy as detailed in the presented 
agenda report. 

 
The Portfolio Holder for Business Development introduced the report. It 
was confirmed that a robust business plan would be expected in 
respect of any proposal to devolve assets.  

 
  It was then: 
 

RECOMMENDED 
 

That the updated Asset Management Strategy (as 
detailed in Appendix 1 of the presented agenda report) 
be approved. 

 
 
E.33/15 PROVISION OF DISCRETIONARY INSPECTION SERVICES BY 

DEVON BUILDING CONTROL PARTNERSHIP  
 

Members were asked to consider a report that sought agreement that 
the Devon Building Control Partnership provide inspections on behalf 
of new homes warranty providers where requested as set out in the 
presented report.  
 
The Portfolio Holder for Commercial Services introduced the report 
and the Group Manager Commercial Services responded to questions 
relating to the Partnership acting in the capacity of providing New 
Homes Business Warranties when they had or had not assessed the 
progress of the build. 
 

  It was then: 
 

RESOLVED 
 

That the Devon Building Control Partnership provide inspections 
on behalf of new homes warranty providers where requested as 
set out in Section 2 of the presented agenda report. 

 
 
E.34/15 COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME  
 

Members were asked to consider a report that recommended to agree 
to continue with the existing Council Tax Reduction scheme for 
2016/17, and for delegated authority to be given to the Finance COP 
Lead in consultation with the Portfolio Holder to make amendments to 
the policy to take account of any further changes in law, government 
guidance or policy that required urgent attention. 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Customer First introduced the report and 
advised that the recommendation should be amended for clarity to 



 Executive 15.10.15 
 

 
 

include ‘Support Services’ after Portfolio Holder.  Members discussed 
the exceptional hardship fund and officers were congratulated on how 
well the process was working and how the communication of the 
scheme when it was first introduced had been successful. The officer 
confirmed that they expected the amount spent of the exceptional 
hardship fund to increase as the year progressed. 
 
A Member asked that the Overview and Scrutiny Panel include the 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme as an item on their future work 
programme.  The Chairman responded by advising of the process to 
enable that to happen. 
 
It was then: 
 
 RECOMMENDED 

 
   That Council be RECOMMENDED to:- 
 

1. agree to continue with the existing Council Tax Reduction 
scheme for 2016/17 with: 

- 80% maximum liability restriction meaning that working age 
claimants pay a minimum of 20% towards their council tax 
bill; 

- a property valuation band D restriction meaning that working 
age claimants living in larger properties do not receive 
greater levels of support than those living in small properties; 
and 

- an exceptional hardship fund to help those claimants 
experiencing severe financial difficulties; 

 
2. delegate authority to the Finance Community of Practice 

Lead (s151 officer), in consultation with the Portfolio Holder 
(Support Services), to make amendments to the policy 
document to take account of any further changes in law, 
government guidance or policy that required urgent 
amendment. 

 
 
E.35/15 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY  
 

Members were presented with a report that asked them to consider the 
five year Medium Term Financial Strategy and provided an indication of 
the budget principles to be adopted. 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Support Services introduced the report.   
 
The COP Lead Specialist Finance explained that the Financial 
Strategy was an iterative process and responded to a number of 
questions regarding the use of New Homes Bonus to be included in the 
base budget and how there would still be a budget gap in future years, 
even after accounting for the savings delivered from the 
Transformation Programme. 
   



 Executive 15.10.15 
 

 
 

Members also discussed the possible future position in respect of 
business rates and the Executive Director (CD&SD) advised Members 
that they should not expect the changes to result in a net gain. 
 
It was then: 

 
RESOLVED 

 
That the five year Medium Term Financial Strategy be 
considered and the presented budget principles be adopted with 
particular reference to: 

 
• the level of council tax increase; 
• the use of New Homes bonus to support the revenue 

budget; 
• the outcomes of the Budget Workshop held on 30 

September summarised in Appendix D of the presented 
report; 

• the amount of Council Tax Support Grant to be passed 
on to Parish and Town Councils (appendix E of the 
presented agenda report refers); 

• bringing forward income generation and budget savings; 
and 

• maintaining the current Council policy on the minimum 
level of unearmarked reserves being £1.5 million.    

 
 
E.36/15 CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING REPORT  
 

Members were asked to consider a report that advised them of the 
progress on individual schemes within the approved capital 
programme, including an assessment of their financial position. 

 
 The Portfolio Holder for Support Services introduced the report.  A local 
Ward Member for Dartmouth raised questions relating to the use of 
funds allocated to the public slipway to be transferred to fund a link 
corridor between the leisure centre at Dartmouth and the proposed new 
indoor swimming pool.  The Executive Director (S&C) confirmed that 
the link was important and the funding of this was best explored 
through the procurement process.   
 
A Member asked for further information on the redeployment of 
employment units, and another Member sought clarification on a 
project on Salcombe.  In response to a query on updates on the leisure 
procurement project being circulated to town and parish clerks, the 
Executive Director (S&C) advised that updates would be sent when 
possible, but at this stage it was important not to breach commercial 
sensitivity. 

 
 It was then: 
 
  RESOLVED 
 



 Executive 15.10.15 
 

 
 

1. That the report be noted; 
 

  That Council be RECOMMENDED that: 
 

2. £153,000 of the capital programme contingency budget of 
£300,000 is approved to be allocated to the capital projects 
as set out in Appendix A of the presented agenda report; and 

3. the capital budget for the purchase of a recycling depot is 
withdrawn from the Capital Programme as set out in 
Appendix A of the presented agenda report. 

 
 
E.37/15 IVYBRIDGE PAY AND DISPLAY TARIFF REVIEW  
 

Members were asked to consider a report that recommended approval 
of new Pay and Display tariffs for all car parks in Ivybridge, in response 
to the Ivybridge community requesting that South Hams District Council 
consider reviewing the tariffs so that community led tariffs are 
implemented.  It was thought that this would encourage more footfall in 
the town and encourage visitors and shoppers to stay for longer. 

 
 The Portfolio Holder for Commercial Services introduced the report and 
outlined the proposed scheme.  The Operations Manager Environment 
Services explained the financial modelling that supported the pilot.  A 
local Ward Member advised Members of the background to the 
initiative and the detail of the proposal.  He confirmed that local Ward 
Members had worked together with the Town Council and traders. 
 
Members noted that the proposal was not cost neutral.  It was also 
confirmed that commuter vehicles would be monitored and if the 
scheme was abused then the pilot would not be rolled out as a 
permanent scheme.  If the pilot was successful, then the Town Council 
may consider supporting the scheme to cover any future financial 
shortfall.  

 
 It was then: 
 
  RESOLVED 
 

That the proposed new Pay and Display tariffs for all car parks 
in Ivybridge, as detailed in paragraph 3 of the presented agenda 
report, be approved. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E.38/15 OPERATIONAL AMENDMENTS TO OFF STREET PARKING ORDER  
 

Members were asked to consider a report that requested that 
amendments be made to the South Hams Off Street Parking Places 



 Executive 15.10.15 
 

 
 

Order in respect of reserved parking bays in Mayor’s Avenue Car Park 
Dartmouth, the provision of reserved parking for Leisure Centre 
customers at Dartmouth Park and Ride site, and the provision of 
parking on Dartmouth South Embankment. 

 
 The Portfolio Holder Commercial Services introduced the report.  In 
discussion, Members asked that parking regulations on Dartmouth 
South Embankment be enforced. 

 
 It was then: 
 
  RECOMMENDED 
 
  That Council be RECOMMENDED that: 
 

a) the provision of the new reserved bays at Mayor’s Avenue 
Car Park, Dartmouth, be added to the South Hams Off Street 
Parking Places Order; 

b) the provision of reserved bays for leisure centre customers, 
at Dartmouth Park & Ride site, be added to the South Hams 
Off Street Parking Places Order; and 

c) the provision of parking on the fish quay area on Dartmouth 
South Embankment to generate a revenue towards the 
maintenance of the structure be added to the South Hams 
Off Street Parking Places Order. 

 
 
E.39/15 DARTMOUTH PARK & RIDE SERVICE  
 

Members were asked to consider a report that sought approval of the 
proposal to carry out a tender exercise to appoint a contractor for the 
provision of the bus service for Dartmouth Park and Ride. 

 
 The Portfolio Holder for Commercial Services introduced the report and 
a local Ward Member asked that existing s106 funds be used to 
provide lighting to improve security in the area.  The Leader responded 
that as Park and Ride was a Devon County Council (DCC) function, 
then perhaps DCC could be approached for support.  

 
 It was then: 
 
  RESOLVED 
 

That the proposal to carry out a tender exercise in order to 
appoint a contractor for the provision of the bus service for 
Dartmouth Park and Ride be approved. 

 
 
 
E.40/15 HEALTH AND SAFETY MANAGEMENT  
 



 Executive 15.10.15 
 

 
 

Members were asked to consider a report that sought approval and 
recommendation of the Health and Safety Statement of Policy, and that 
the Statement of Policy be reviewed annually. 

 
 The Leader introduced the report and Members raised a small number 
of queries. 

 
 It was then: 
 
  RECOMMENDED  
 
  That Council be RECOMMENDED that: 
 

1. the Health and Safety Statement of Policy be accepted and 
signed by the Head of Paid Service and the Leader of 
Council; and 

2. The Health and Safety Statement of Policy be reviewed and 
signed annually on the occasion of the Annual Council 
Meeting. 

   
 
E.41/15 REPORTS OF OTHER BODIES  

 
RESOLVED 
 
That the following be received and that any recommendations 
contained therein be approved: 

 
a) Overview and Scrutiny Panel –  17 September 2015  

 
 

i. O&S.39/15 (2) SOUTH HAMS CVS MONITORING 
 
RECOMMENDED 
 
That Council be RECOMMENDED that the existing 
Service Level Agreement be renewed for a further twelve 
months on the existing terms (in accordance with clause 
15.2 of the Service Level Agreement) 

 
(NOTE: THESE DECISIONS, WITH THE EXCEPTION OF E.31/15, E.32/15, 
E.34/15, E,36/15 (2) and (3), E.38/15, E.40/15 AND E.41/15 a) i) WHICH ARE 
RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE COUNCIL MEETING TO BE HELD O N 10 
DECEMBER 2015, WILL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM 5.00PM ON  MONDAY, 26 
OCTOBER 2015 UNLESS CALLED IN, IN ACCORDANCE WITH S CRUTINY 
PROCEDURE RULE 18). 
 
(Meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 12.30 pm) 
 
        _____________ 
          Chairman 
 



Dev Management   21.10.15           
 
 

 
 

    MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE DEVELOPMENT MANAG EMENT 
COMMITTEE HELD AT FOLLATON HOUSE, TOTNES, ON WEDNES DAY, 
    21 OCTOBER 2015 

 
 

Members in attendance  
* Denotes attendance      Ø Denotes apology for absence                    

* Cllr I Bramble * Cllr J M Hodgson 
* Cllr J Brazil * Cllr T R Holway 
* Cllr B F Cane * Cllr J A Pearce 
* Cllr P K Cuthbert * Cllr R Rowe 
* Cllr R J Foss (Vice Chairman) * Cllr R C Steer (Chairman) 
* Cllr P W Hitchins Ø Cllr R J Vint 

 
Other Members in attendance  

Cllrs Baldry, Blackler, Brown, Green and Tucker 
 

Item No Minute Ref or App. No. 
below refers 

Officers in attendance and 
participating 

All agenda 
items 

 COP Lead Specialist – Planning, Planning 
Officers, Solicitor and Senior Case 
Manager 

 37/2548/14/O Senior Specialist Place and Strategy 
 
 
DM.33/15 MINUTES 
 

The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 23 September 2015 
were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

 
 
DM.34/15 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

Members and officers were invited to declare any interests in the items of 
business to be considered and the following were made: 
 
The Chairman declared a personal interest on behalf of all Committee 
Members in application 37/2548/14/O:  Outline application (with some 
matters reserved) for mixed use development of 70 dwellings, allotments, 
community facility, recreation and employment land – SX 5670 4944, West 
of Collaton Park, Newton Ferrers by virtue of the applicant being an 
Honorary Alderman of the Council.  Members remained in the meeting and 
took part in the debate and vote thereon;   
 
Cllr Steer declared a further reason for his personal interest in this 
application by virtue of knowing the applicant’s son through his work as a 
land agent.  He remained in the meeting and took part in the debate and 
vote thereon; 

 
 
 



Dev Management   21.10.15           
 
 

 
 

Cllr Hitchins declared a disclosable pecuniary interest in application 
58/1014/15/F:  Redevelopment of site to provide replacement public house 
and restaurant and 10 no. holiday units with owner’s apartment.  
Construction of 6no. 2 bed apartments on associated land – The Eddystone 
Inn, Heybrook Bay, Plymouth by virtue of having commercial dealings with 
the applicant’s relatives and knowing the objectors well.  He left the meeting 
for the duration of this application; 
 
Cllrs Rowe and Cane both declared a personal interest in the following 
applications by virtue of being the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the 
South Devon AONB Partnership Committee within which the applications 
were sited.  They remained in the meeting and took part in the debate and 
vote on each of these applications:- 

 
37/2548/14/O:  Outline application (with some matters reserved) for mixed 
use development of 70 dwellings, allotments, community facility, recreation 
and employment land – SX 5670 4944, West of Collaton Park, Newton 
Ferrers; 
58/1014/15/F:  Redevelopment of site to provide replacement public house 
and restaurant and 10no. 2 holiday units with owner’s apartment.  
Construction of 6no. 2 bed apartments on associated land – The Eddystone 
Inn, Heybrook Bay, Plymouth; and 
37/1621/15/F:  Householder application for proposed erection of a garage 
and boat store – 3 Beacon Hill, Newton Ferrers, Plymouth. 

 
 
DM.35/15 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

The Chairman proceeded to announce that the following members of the 
public had registered their wish to speak at the meeting:- 

• 58/1014/15/F:  Objector – Mrs Lizzie Bowman:  Supporter – Mr Mark 
Evans:  Parish Council Representative – Cllr Dermod Drought:  
Redevelopment of site to provide replacement public house and 
restaurant and 10no. holiday units with owners apartment.  Construction 
of 6no. 2 bed apartments on associated land – The Eddystone Inn, 
Heybrook Bay, Plymouth; 

• 14/1687/15/VAR:  Objector – Mr Chris Edwards:  Variation of condition 6 
(Traffic Management Plan) and removal of condition 7 (Closure of 
Access) of planning consent 14/3161/14/F – Stables, Lownard Mill, 
Dartington; 

• 37/1621/15/F:  Objector – Mrs Townley:  Supporter – Cdr Simon Hallett: 
Parish Council Representative – Cllr Alan Cooper:  Householder 
application for proposed erection of a garage and boat store – 3 Beacon 
Hill, Newton Ferrers, Plymouth; 

• 32/1742/15/F:  Supporter – Mr Norman Brown:  Proposed siting of mobile 
home – Land at SX 718 489 adjacent to Robins Park Industrial Estate, 
South Brent Road, Loddiswell. 

 
 
 
 



Dev Management   21.10.15           
 
 

 
 

DM.36/15 PLANNING APPLICATIONS  
 

The Planning Case Officers submitted details of the planning applications 
as presented in the agenda papers.   

   
During discussion of the planning applications, the following motions (which 
were in contradiction to the planning officer recommendation in the 
published agenda report), were PROPOSED and SECONDED and on 
being put to the vote were either CARRIED or LOST:- 

 
a) In respect of application 37/2548/14/O:  Outline application (with some 

matters reserved) for mixed use development of 70 dwellings, 
allotments, community facility, recreation and employment land – SX 
5670 4944, West of Collaton Park, Newton Ferrers, the Case Officer 
began by reminding Members that this application had been deferred 
from the previous meeting (23 September, 2015, minute DM.31/15 
refers) to enable further information and clarification.  The Case Officer 
introduced his updated report and advised Members of the key issues 
for consideration.  He outlined the reasons for recommending refusal of 
the application.   
 
The Lead Specialist Place and Strategy advised Members that the 
proposal was policy compliant as it was offering 50% affordable 
housing. The Case Officer added that some weight should be given to 
the position in respect of the five year land supply and the housing 
needs survey.   
 
During discussion, Members were advised that, if minded to approve the 
proposals, an additional condition for Reserved Matters application to be 
received within 18 months was suggested, and it was confirmed that the 
s106 would be drawn up on the basis of 50% affordable housing 
provision.  Any change to that prior to signing would require Committee 
approval.  It was confirmed that the affordable houses would remain 
affordable in perpetuity as the landowner intended to manage them.  
Clarification was sought on the elements to be included in the 
application and at what stage they would be built out.   
 
Both Ward Members, whilst recognising the local objections to the 
application, spoke in favour of the proposal.  A number of Members 
thought the proposal offered a generous opportunity for affordable 
homes and associated elements. 
 
It was then PROPOSED, SECONDED and on being put to the vote 
declared CARRIED: 
 
‘That application 37/2548/14/O be conditionally approved’ 
 
Reasons: 
Whilst paragraph 115 of the NPPF requires great weight to be given to 
conserving landscape and scenic beauty in National Parks, the Broads 
and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty, it was the consideration of 
Committee that the provisions of paragraph 116 are met in the respect 



Dev Management   21.10.15           
 
 

 
 

that exceptional circumstances exist to justify development in the AONB, 
and development is considered to be in the public interest.  Specifically, 
need is demonstrated by the 2008 Parish Housing Needs Survey and 
the absence of a five year housing land supply; that no other site is 
available in the Parish to meet the need; that the quality of development 
is of a very high standard; that the site is previously developed land; and 
the impact on the landscape and biodiversity would be limited.  With 
respect to the latter point, appropriate parameters and design standards 
would be secured through a s106 Agreement and conditions. 

 
Conditions as detailed in Appendix A. 

 
 

b) In respect of application 14/1687/15/VAR:  Variation of condition 6 
(Traffic Management Plan) and removal of condition 7 (Closure of 
Access) of planning consent 14/3161/14/F – Stables, Lownard Mill, 
Dartington, the following motion was PROPOSED, SECONDED and on 
being put to the vote declared CARRIED: 
 
‘That a site inspection be held’ 
 
 

 
DM.37/15 PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE  

 
The COP Lead Specialist Planning advised Members of updates relating to 
the presented list of appeals and she and the Solicitor responded to 
questions. 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

(Meeting commenced at 12 noon and concluded at 4:00 pm) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_______________ 
        Chairman 



Dev Management   21.10.15           
 
 

 
 

Voting Analysis for Planning Applications – DM Comm ittee 21 October 2015    

Application No:  Site Address  Vote Councillors who Voted  
Yes 

Councillors who Voted 
No 

Councillors who 
Voted Abstain 

Absent  

37/2548/14/O 

SX 5670 4944, West of 
Collaton Park, Newton 
Ferrers 

Approval 

Cllrs Bramble, Cane, Foss, Hitchins, 
Hodgson, Holway, Rowe (7) 

(0) Cllrs Pearce, Steer 
(2)        Also: 
Cllrs Brazil, 
Cuthbert (2) who 
had not heard the 
previous 
presentation so had 
to abstain 

Cllr Vint (1) 

58/1014/15/F 

The Eddystone Inn, 
Heybrook Bay 

Conditional 
Approval  

Cllrs Cuthbert, Holway, Cane, Foss, Rowe, 
Steer (6) 

Cllrs Hodgson, Brazil (2) Cllrs Pearce, 
Bramble (2) 

Cllr Vint:  Cllr 
Hitchins was 
absent for this item 
as a result of a DPI 
(2) 

14/1687/15/VAR 

Stables, Lownard Mill, 
Dartington Site 

Inspection 

Cllrs Bramble, Cane, Foss, Pearce, 
Hitchins, Holway, Rowe, Steer, Hodgson, 
Cuthbert, Brazil (11) 

(0) (0) Cllr Vint (1) 

37/1621/15/F 

3 Beacon Hill, Newton 
Ferrers 

Site 
Inspection 

Cllrs Hodgson, Holway, Hitchins, Cane (4) Cllrs Steer, Foss, Brazil, 
Pearce, Rowe, Bramble, 
Cuthbert (7) 
 
 

(0) Cllr Vint (1) 

37/1621/15/F 

3 Beacon Hill, Newton 
Ferrers Conditional 

Approval 

Cllrs Steer, Rowe, Holway, Cuthbert, 
Bramble, Pearce (6) 

Cllrs Brazil, Hitchins, Foss, 
Hodgson, Cane (5) 
 
 

(0) Cllr Vint (1) 

32/1742/15/F 

Land at SX 718 489 adj 
to Robins Park Industrial 
Estate, South Brent 
Road, Loddiswell 

Refusal 

Cllrs Cane, Foss, Hitchins, Rowe, Steer, 
Cuthbert (6)  
 
 

Cllrs Hodgson, Bramble, 
Holway (3) 

Cllrs Brazil, 
Pearce (2) 

Cllr Vint (1) 



Dev Management   21.10.15           
 
 

 
 

 
Appendix A 

 
37/2548/14/O 
Outline application (with some matters reserved) for mixed-use development of 70 
dwellings, allotments, community facility, recreation and employment land.  
 
Parish or Town Council  – Newton and Noss Parish Council 
Parish Council’s Views  - Objection 
Officer Update- The DM Specialist provided a verbal update and reminder 
with respect to the key issues as outlined below: 
 
Affordable Housing 
The AH Offer meets policy requirements and Officers are satisfied that appropriate 
scope and detail can be secured in a s106 Agreement. 
 
Need 
That, with respect to the tests of paragraph 116 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF), some need exists, but this did not amount, in the opinion of the 
DM Specialist, to exceptional circumstances. 
 
Alternative Sites Assessment 
That, with respect to the tests of paragraph 116 of the NPPF, if the quantum of 
development were justified that the site represented the best opportunity to meet that 
need at this time. 
 
Environmental impact 
That, with respect to the tests of paragraph 116 of the NPPF, environmental impacts 
are acceptable and that the high quality of design and biodiversity enhancements 
contributed to a degree to establishing exceptional circumstances. 
 
Sustainable development 
That whilst the site is, to a degree, isolated, the balance of sustainability is 
favourable due to the following factors. 
 
Recommendation  – Refusal 
 
Committee Decision  – Authority to grant conditional approval be delegated 
to the Lead Specialist (Development Management) in consultation with the 
Chairman of Development Management Committee, subject to conditions and 
the signing of a Section 106 Agreement 
 
Conditions  

1. 18 months for Reserved Matters; 
2. Time limit for commencement; 
3. Accord with Plans, Drawings and FRA; 
4. Detailed design for all development; 
5. GPDO Exclusion; 
6. Unsuspected Contamination; 
7. On-site highway works in accordance with plans / drawings; 



Dev Management   21.10.15           
 
 

 
 

8. Details for a safe crossing of the A379 to be approved prior to commencement 
and provided before occupancy of any buildings; 

9. Construction Management / Method Plan to be submitted and approved prior to 
commencement; 

10. Phasing Plan to be submitted and approved prior to commencement (secure 
AH and employment vs OM; 

11. Surface water drainage layout and details to be submitted prior to 
commencement and the approved details completed and operational prior to 
occupation; 

12. Arb and tree plans ... subsequently adherence to the Arboricultural Impact 
Assessment, Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Methodology Statements; 

13. Lighting Strategy;  
14. Renewable energy / energy efficiency details to be submitted and approved 

prior to commencement (EcoHomes Level 4 or equivalent); 
15. Revised ecology assessment / surveys (as necessary); 
16. Landscape and Ecological Management Plan; 
17. Adherence to measures within Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, and Bat 

Activity Survey Report; and 
18. Transport Assessment; 
19. Noise; 

 
S106: 

1. Affordable Housing 
 
50% of the residential units to be delivered in accordance with SHDC affordable 
housing policy and the Devon Home Choice Policy, affordable in perpetuity. 
 
Tenure: 30% rented homes and 70% intermediate housing. 
Unit size / mix: 5 x 2 bed, 6 x 3 bed (to be let at affordable rents) and 7 x 2 bed, 
17 x 3 bed (intermediate affordable for discounted open market sale or shared 
ownership or affordable self build). 
 
All intermediate units to be retained as intermediate affordable dwellings in 
perpetuity. 
 
Affordability of units: rents are restricted to a maximum rent of 80% of market 
rents (inclusive of any service charges), intermediate sale is restricted to 60% of 
open market value in perpetuity. 
 
Delivery of the affordable housing would be linked to delivery of the market units 
as agreed with SHDC. 
 
2. Allotments 
 
20 allotments for residents of the development / residents of the local area. 
 
 
 
 



Dev Management   21.10.15           
 
 

 
 

3. Site for Outdoor Community Use 
 
1000m2 area of land for the purposes of holding a outdoor community events 
(including farmers' markets and similar type events) 
 
4. Public Open Space and Play Provision 
 
Areas of land within the development will be provided as Public Open Space / 
community woodland / community orchard.  This area to be a minimum of 
10,000m2 in association with local planning authority's Public Open Space 
requirement. 
 
Play space / equipment to be provided on site within the development. 
 
The developer will submit plans to the Local Planning Authority for the 
management and maintenance of the Play and Public Open Space. 
 
The owner will secure public access to the Play and Public Space. 
 
5. On Site Sport/Community Facility Provision 
 
5000m2 of land which could be used to accommodate a leisure / community 
facility / activity for the benefit of the local community subject to a community 
group coming forward with the funds to build and a viable strategy to maintain 
the facility. 
 
6. Employment Element 
 
To provide within the development a minimum of 750m2 of business units for B1 
/ B2 and B8 (as considered appropriate by the LPA) 
 
7. Education Contribution 
 
Contribution towards secondary school education of £191,530.50. 
 
Contribution towards the cost of transportation to school (Ivybridge) for 
secondary school aged children living at the development of £33,335.50. 
 
£500 towards Devon County Council legal costs 
 
8. Sustainable Transport Contribution 
 
Contribution towards the retention of the number 94 bus. Total contribution 
£125,000 to be provided over a 5 year period (£25,000 per annum) 
 
9. Boat Storage (Community Use) 
 
Covered storage within the development for the storage of boats for the use of 
the residents of the development / local community (to be used to store the 
regatta boats and gig boats owned by the regatta committee and gig club) 



Dev Management   21.10.15           
 
 

 
 

10. Cycle path and footpath upgrade 
 
11. Barn Owls 
 
New barn owl habitat and accommodation to a specification agreed with the 
Barn Owl Trust. 
 
12. Landscape and Ecological Management Plan, including retention and 
management of semi-improved grassland 

 
 

 
58/1014/15/F 
Redevelopment of site to provide replacement public house and restaurant 
and 10no. holiday units with owners apartment. Construction of 6no. 2 bed 
apartments on associated land  
 
Parish or Town Council  – Wembury Parish Council 
Parish Council’s Views  – No objection 
Officer Update 

1. Natural England are satisfied with ecological information and withdraw their 
concerns regarding the impact on Wembury Point SSSI. They now raise no 
objection. 

2. The recommendation is therefore now changed to Conditional Approval. 
3. The AONB Unit have commented raising no objection. 
4. One further letter of representation objecting to the application raising concern 

regarding highway safety and scale of development. 
5. Additional condition requiring the owner’s apartment to be tied as being for the 

managers of the site only. 
6. Additional condition removing Permitted Development Rights to restrict 

change of use away from pub/restaurant. 
 
Recommendation  - Conditional approval delegated to the Community of 
Practice Lead, subject to Natural England withdrawing their objection 
 
Recommended Conditions  

1. Time limit for commencement  
2. In accordance with plans  
3. Holiday use restriction for holiday units  
4. Materials  
5. Construction Management Plan  
6. Contaminated land  
7. Percolation tests 
8. Additional condition requiring the owner’s apartment to be tied as being for the 

managers of the site only. 
9. Additional condition removing Permitted Development Rights to restrict 

change of use away from pub/restaurant. 
 
Committee Decision  – Conditional Approval 

 



Dev Management   21.10.15           
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
14/1687/15/VAR 
 Variation of condition 6 (Traffic Management Plan) and removal of 
condition 7 (Closure of Access) of planning consent 14/3161/14/F  
 
Parish or Town Council  – Dartington Parish Council 
Parish Council’s Views  - Objection 
Officer Update  
The DM Specialist provided an update to the Members with regards to an 
amended Site Location Plan 
Recommendation  – Conditional Approval 
Recommended Conditions 

1. Accord with plans  
2. Unsuspected Contamination  
3. Holiday accommodation  
4. Access and parking in accordance with approved plans  
5. Details of traffic movements and construction  
6. Development carried out in accordance with Preliminary Ecological 
Assessment  

 
Committee Decision  – Deferral for site inspection 

 
 
37/1621/15/F 
 Householder application for proposed erection of a garage and boat store  
 
Parish or Town Council  – Newton and Noss Parish Council 
Parish Council’s Views  - Objection 
Officer Update - The DM Specialist updated the Committee on an additional 
Letters of Representations received objecting to the Planning Application 
Recommendation  – Conditional Approval 
Recommended Conditions 

1. Standard time limit  
2. Adherence to plans  
3. Retention of parking for boats and motor cars in perpetuity  
4. Timber sample prior to installation  
5. Adherence to arboricultural mitigation  
6. To be used ancillary or incidental to main house only 

 
Committee Decision  – Conditional Approval 

 
 
32/1742/15/F 
Proposed siting of mobile 
home  
 
Parish or Town Council  – Loddiswell 
Parish Council’s Views  – No objection 



Dev Management   21.10.15           
 
 

 
 

Officer Update  – N/A 
Recommendation  - Refusal 
Committee Decision  - Refusal 
 
 
 
 
 





Salc Harb 2.11.15 

 

      MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF 

THE SALCOMBE HARBOUR BOARD 

HELD AT QUAY HOUSE, KINGSBRIDGE ON MONDAY, 2 NOVEMBER 2015 
 

Members in attendance 
* Denotes attendance             Ø  Denotes apology for absence 

* Cllr J Brazil (Chairman) *   Mr G Burrell 
* Cllr J A Pearce * Dr C C Harling (Vice Chairman) 
* Cllr K R H Wingate   * Mr M Mackley 
* Cllr S A E Wright * Mr H Marriage 
  * Mr A Thomson 
  * Mr M Taylor 

Ø   Cllr R D Gilbert (lead Executive 
Member) 

  

 
 

Item No Minute Ref No 
 below refers 

Officers in attendance and participating 

All 
agenda 
items 

 Salcombe Harbour Master, Assistant Salcombe 
Harbour Master (Logistics and Maintenance), COP 
Lead – Assets and Senior Specialist – Democratic 
Services 

 
 
SH.24/15 MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting of the Salcombe Harbour Board held on  
28 September 2015 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the 
Chairman. 

 
 
SH.25/15 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
Members were invited to declare any interests in the items of business to 
be considered during the course of the meeting, and the following were 
made: 
 
Cllrs Wingate and Wright and Dr Harling, Mr Burrell, Mr Mackley, Mr 
Marriage, Mr Taylor and Mr Thomson all declared a disclosable pecuniary 
interest in all related agenda items by virtue of having moorings or paying 
harbour dues to the Council.  As a result of the Solicitor granting each 
Board Member a dispensation, they were all able to take part in the 
debate and vote on any related matters (Minute SH.05/15 refers).    

 
 
SH.26/15 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 

 
There were no issues raised in accordance with the Public Question Time 
procedure rules. 

 
 
  



Salc Harb 2.11.15 

 

SH.27/15 FEEDBACK FROM HARBOUR COMMUNITY FORUMS 
 
The Board received verbal update reports from the Board Members who 
attended the Harbour Community Forums.  The updates were given as 
follows: 
 
Salcombe Kingsbridge Estuary Association (SKEA) 
The representative made reference to the sad recent passing of Mr Peter 
Goldsworthy.  Following his passing, and in recognising the prominent role 
played by Mr Goldsworthy on the Forum, the representative felt it would be 
fitting for tributes to be uploaded on to the SKEA Forum website. 

 
Salcombe Kingsbridge Estuary Conservation Forum (SKECF) 
At its last meeting, the Forum considered at great length the matter of 
nitrate levels at Gerston.  A set of annual nitrate figures were requested 
during the meeting to enable for some trend analysis to be undertaken.  
The Salcombe Harbour Master added that the sewage system for 
Salcombe was intended to be restructured during the winter months and 
Whitestrand was therefore to be closed for a time during this period. 
 
Forum representatives also expressed their concerns at the meeting 
regarding speeding in the upper Estuary. 
 
Finally, litter complaints (specifically rubber litter) were also raised by the 
Forum.  In reply, the Harbour Master advised that this related to a trawler 
race and, in the future, biodegradable balloons would be used. 

 
South Devon & Channel Shellfishermen 
The representative made reference to the upcoming visit from a Chinese 
delegation that was due to take place on Wednesday, 4 November 2015.  
In discussion, the Board stated its hope that the visit would prove to be 
successful.  
 
Kingsbridge and Salcombe Marine Business Forum 

 There was no update to give at this meeting. 
 

Kingsbridge Estuary Boat Club (KEBC) 
There was no update to give at this meeting. 

 
 
SH.28/15 MARINE INFRASTRUCTURE UPDATE 
 
 The Board was presented with a report that sought to approve the 

continuation of an annual contribution to South Hams District Council to 
be held in reserve for spending on Council-owned marine infrastructure 
in the Salcombe Estuary. 

 
 In discussion, reference was made to:- 
  



Salc Harb 2.11.15 

 

(a) the state of Kingsbridge Quay Wall.  Some Members stated their 
concerns in respect of the poor state of the Quay Wall and felt that an 
engineering report should be undertaken to ascertain its condition.  In 
reply, officers advised that, as part of the five year maintenance plan, 
the state of the wall was known and was underpinned by supporting 
data.  Furthermore, officers confirmed that they were comfortable with 
the monies allocated as indicated in the exempt Appendix A for the 
planned maintenance works.  Finally, officers also recognised the 
need for these works to be co-ordinated in line with the new business 
that was intended to start-up in the area during the summer of 2016; 
 

(b) Kingsbridge Slipway.  A lengthy debate ensued on the Slipway during 
which it was acknowledged that the:- 

 
- huge drop-off at the end of the Slipway was causing problems; 
- Council did not own the bottom eighth of the slipway, which was 

leased from the Duchy; 
- surface of the Slipway could not be cleaned and there were 

consequent potential health and safety implications;   
- Slipway was a back-up for Batson and therefore needed to be of 

sufficient standard; 
- area should be part of the Masterplanning exercise for 

development site K2; and 
- Slipway would not be seen as a priority for the Council. 

 
In conclusion, it was PROPOSED and SECONDED that the Board 
endorse the Harbour Master to commission an engineering scoping 
report on Kingsbridge Slipway, with the findings included as part of a 
further report to be presented to a future Board meeting. 

 
(c) Batson Slipway.  A Members wished to stress to the COP Lead 

Assets that the Batson Slipway area was a huge pressure point; 
 

(d) Jubilee Pier.  Some Members highlighted the potential funding stream 
for the Pier and felt that it was incumbent upon the Board to be 
innovative in looking at future options in this regard. 

 
 It was then: 
 

RESOLVED 
   
1. That an annual contribution continue to be approved to 

South Hams District Council (SHDC) to be held in reserve 
for spending on SHDC owned marine infrastructure in the 
Kingsbridge and Salcombe Estuary; and 
 

2. That it be endorsed that the Harbour Master commission an 
engineering scoping report on Kingsbridge Slipway, with the 
findings included as part of a further report to be presented 
to a future Board meeting. 

 
 
  



Salc Harb 2.11.15 

 

SH.29/15 CRANE REFURBISHMENT 
  
 Consideration was given to a report that sought to approve expenditure 

from the Renewals Reserve to refurbish the Harbour Authority crane. 
 
 In discussion, officers clarified that the crane had a life span of at least a 

further five years.  A number of Members proceeded to confirm their 
support for the officer recommendation.  
 

  It was then: 
   

RESOLVED 
 
That expenditure be approved from the Renewals Reserve to 
refurbish the Harbour Authority crane. 

 
 
SH.30/15 QUARTER 2 PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 
 The Board considered a report that advised it of progress made in the 

second quarter of the financial year against its Performance Indicators 
(PIs). 

 
 In discussion, reference was made to:- 
 

(a) verbal compliments received.  Whilst written compliments were 
formally recorded, the Harbour Master informed that verbal 
compliments were not currently; 
 

(b) the increased income generated from visiting boats.  The Board 
welcomed the increased income and recognised that, since the 
number of visiting boats had decreased, customers were now staying 
for a longer period; 

 
(c) waiting lists.  In reply to a question, the Harbour Master informed that 

the majority of those on the mooring waiting list were new applicants; 
 

(d) the instance of long term sickness absence.  Having been informed 
that he had now returned to work, the Board asked that their wishes 
be passed on to the staff member.   

 
It was then: 
   

RESOLVED 
 
That the latest Performance Indicators be noted. 

 
 
SH.31/15 CUSTOMER SATISFACTION 
 
 A report was considered that provided the results of the 2015 Opinion 

Survey. 
 
  
  



Salc Harb 2.11.15 

 

 In discussion, reference was made to:- 
 

(a) the future marketing workshop.   The Board felt that it would be 
pertinent to discuss at the upcoming marketing workshop potential 
methods of targeting harbour users to undertake surveys in future 
years.  In addition, Members also considered that it would be timely 
at the workshop to informally discuss why the water taxi discount 
tickets were under-utilised; 
 

(b) the results of the survey.  Whilst accepting that there were limitations 
in the findings, Members took comfort that there was nothing so 
significant that suggested that there were major issues with the 
Harbour; 

 
(c) anti-speeding patrol days.  The Harbour Master informed that it was 

intended in the future to run dedicated anti-speeding patrol days in an 
attempt to combat speeding vessels in the harbour.  

 
 It was then: 
 
  RESOLVED 

 
 That the report and the proposed email customer satisfaction 
survey be noted.  

 
 
SH.32/15 TOPICAL HARBOUR ISSUES 
 
 The Harbour Master provided an update on topical harbour issues which 

could be of interest to the Board.   
 
 In so doing, he made particular reference to:- 
 

(a) the recent Stand Up Paddle board race held at Kingsbridge.  It was 
noted that this national race with over 100 competitors had received 
very positive feedback and had helped to raise the profile of the 
Kingsbridge and Salcombe area; 
 

(b) the recent Future Strategy workshop.  Members commented that the 
recent workshop had been very well received and the Harbour Master 
was intending to write an outcome report and present it to the next 
Board meeting on 29 February 2016; 

 
(c) an update on the dredging programme.  The Board noted that the 

Invitation To Tender had been issued and it was intended that the 
contact would be awarded during week commencing 23 November 
2015; 

 
(d) an incident management exercise.  Members were informed that an 

exercise would be undertaken on 3 December 2015 (starting at 
8.30am and concluding at 1.30pm) and interested Members were 
more than welcome to attend this session; 

 
  



Salc Harb 2.11.15 

 

(e) an ongoing issue with the owners of the Rivermaid.  In stating their 
disappointment that there was no proper and regular service from 
Kingsbridge to Salcombe, Members felt that there was a need for 
officers to be robust in their approach and to inform the Council’s 
communications team in light of the potential public relations 
implications; 

 
(f) Egremont.  In providing an update, the Harbour Master advised that 

he had written twice to the owners of Egremont and was still awaiting 
a response.  For clarity, it was noted that the owners had paid their 
fees and changes up to 1 April 2016. 

  
 It was then: 
 
  RESOLVED 
 
  That the update be noted. 
 
 
(Meeting commenced at 2.30 pm and concluded at 4.25 pm) 

 
 

____________ 
         Chairman 



Licensing 12.11.15 
 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE HELD AT 
FOLLATON HOUSE, TOTNES ON THURSDAY 12 NOVEMBER 2015 

 
MEMBERS 

 
* Cllr D W May - Chairman 

 
* Cllr T R Holway - Vice-Chairman 

 
* Cllr N A Barnes 
*  Cllr J I G Blackler 
*  Cllr D Brown 
*  Cllr B F Cane 
Ø  Cllr P K Cuthbert 

Ø Cllr R J Foss 
Ø  Cllr P W Hitchins 
*  Cllr D Horsburgh 
*  Cllr K Pringle 
*  Cllr Rowe 

 
* Denotes attendance 

Ø Denotes apology for absence 
 

Also in attendance and participating: 
Cllr J T Pennington 

 
Officers in attendance and participating: 

All Agenda Items: Licensing Specialist, Senior Specialist – Environmental Health, 
Solicitor and Senior Specialist – Democratic Services 

 
L.01/15 MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Committee held on 25 

February 2015 and the Sub-Committees held during the period 25 
February 2015 to 20 August 2015 were all confirmed as a correct record 
and signed by the Chairman. 

 
 
L.02/15 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 Members were invited to declare any interests in the items of business 

to be considered during the course of the meeting, and the following 
were made: 

 
 Cllr R Rowe declared a personal interest in Item 8: ‘Summary of 

Licences Issued between 1 January 2015 and 30 September 2015’ 
(Minute L.06/15 below refers) by virtue of Broadleigh Farm, Stoke 
Gabriel (a premises listed in the summary) being owned by a close 
family relation and remained in the meeting during the debate on this 
item. 

 
 Cllr B F Cane declared a personal interest in Item 7: ‘Park Homes Fees 

and Charges Policy’ (Minute L.05/15 below refers) by virtue of his 
ownership of a touring site and remained in the meeting, but abstained 
from the vote, on this item.  

 
 
  



Licensing 12.11.15 
 

 
 

L.03/15 REVIEW OF STATEMEMT OF LICENSING POLICY FOR 2016-2021 
 
 A report was considered that sought to recommend that the Council 

approve the draft Licensing Policy. 
  
 In discussion, reference was made to Devon and Cornwall Police being 

in support of the draft Policy.  Furthermore, the Committee recognised 
the need for the review to revisit the Policy and also expressed its 
support for the proposed changes. 

 
  RESOLVED 
 

1. That the Committee has considered the draft Licensing 
Policy and public consultation responses received; and 
 

2. That Council be RECOMMENDED that the draft Licensing 
Policy (as outlined at Appendix A of the presented agenda 
report) be adopted for the period 7 January 2016 to 6 
January 2021. 

 
 
L.04/15 THREE-YEARLY REVIEW OF GAMBLING STATEMENT OF 
 LICENSING PRINCIPLES 
 

A report was considered that sought to recommend approval of the draft 
Gambling Statement of Licensing Principles. 
 
It was then: 

 
  RESOLVED 

 
1. That the Committee has considered the draft Statement of 

Principles and public consultation responses received; and 
 

2. That Council be RECOMMENDED that the draft Statement 
of Principles (as outlined at Appendix A of the presented 
agenda report) be adopted for the period 31 January 2016 
to 30 January 2019. 

 
 
L.05/15 PARK HOMES FEES AND CHARGES POLICY 

 
A report was considered that sought to recommend adoption of a Park 
Homes Fees and Charges Policy. 
 
In discussion, the following points were raised:- 
 
(a) The Committee queried why it was being proposed for the Gypsy and 

Traveller community to be exempted from charging.  In response, 
officers advised that central government guidance was recommending 
that, in areas where there was an identified need for sites, charges 
should not be introduced since this would result in another barrier 
from sites coming forward; 



Licensing 12.11.15 
 

 
 

 
(b) For sites that had between two and four pitches, it was being 

proposed that these would still be charged for five pitches. 
 
It was then: 
 

RECOMMENDED 
   
That Council be RECOMMENDED to adopt the Park Homes 
Fees and Charges Policy (as outlined at Appendix A of the 
presented agenda report). 

 
 
L.06/15 SUMMARY OF LICENSES ISSUED BETWEEN 1 JANUARY 2015 

AND 30 SEPTEMBER 2015 
 
The summary of licences issued between 1 January and 30 September 
2015 was presented to the Committee. 
 
In discussion, reference was made to:- 
 
(a) the licence granted at the Firewood Restaurant and Bar, Marldon.  

Having been invited by the Chairman, the local ward Member 
reiterated a number of his concerns in relation to the granting of this 
licence.  In particular, the Member expressed his disappointment that 
the Sub-Committee had failed to undertake a site inspection prior to 
reaching its decision and the public safety concerns arising from the 
access.  Following a lengthy debate, the local ward Member was 
reminded that, in the event that there was a breach of the licensing 
objectives, a review could be invoked.  Furthermore, the Member was 
encouraged to await the outcome of the planning enforcement 
investigation which was currently taking place on this site; 
 

(b) the variation licence at Endsleigh Garden Centre.  It was noted that 
the variation licence could not be implemented until the ongoing 
planning matters were resolved. 

 
 

(Meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 10.40 am). 
 

___________________ 
 Chairman



Licensing 12.11.15 
 

 
 

 



Dev Management   18.11.15           
 
 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMEN T 
COMMITTEE HELD AT FOLLATON HOUSE, TOTNES, ON WEDNES DAY, 

18 NOVEMBER 2015 
 

Members in attendance 
 

Cllr I Bramble     Cllr J M Hodgson 
Cllr J Brazil     Cllr T R Holway 
Cllr B F Cane  (pm only)   Cllr J A Pearce 
Cllr P K Cuthbert    Cllr R Rowe 
Cllr R C Steer (Chairman)   Cllr P W Hitchins  

 Cllr R J Vint 
 

Apologies 
Cllr R J Foss (Vice Chairman) 

 
Other Members in attendance 

 
Cllrs Brown, Tucker and Ward 

 
Officers in attendance and participating 

 
Item No: Application No:  
All agenda 
items 

 Planning Officers, Solicitor and Senior 
Case Manager 

 07/1196/15/F 
07/1197/15/O 

Senior Specialist Place and Strategy 
Specialist - Assets 

 14/1687/15/VAR Highways Officer 
 
 
DM.38/15 APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRMAN 
 

In the absence of the Vice Chairman, who had given apologies for this 
meeting, it was PROPOSED and SECONDED that Cllr T R Holway be 
appointed as Vice Chairman for the duration of this meeting. 

 
 
DM.39/15 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

Members and officers were invited to declare any interests in the items of 
business to be considered and the following were made: 

 
Cllr Steer declared a personal interest on behalf of all Conservative Group 
Members of the DM Committee in the following applications by virtue of the 
landowner being a fellow Conservative Group Member.  They remained in 
the meeting and took part in the debate and vote on each of the following 
applications: 

 
07/1196/15/F:  Residential development comprising 17 dwellings with 
associated access, car parking, landscaping, open space and associated 
works (Phase 2a) – Development site at SX 551 523, adjacent to Venn 
Farm, Brixton; 



Dev Management   18.11.15           
 
 

 
 

07/1197/15/O:  Outline application (with some matters reserved) for 
residential development of up to 17 dwellings, with associated means of 
access and provision of landscape buffer to south (Phase b) – Proposed 
development site at SX 550 522 adjacent to Venn Farm, Brixton; 
 
(NOTE: Since the above applications were considered on the morning 
agenda, Cllr Cane was only in attendance for the afternoon agenda items) 
 
Cllrs Rowe and Cane both declared a personal interest in the following 
applications by virtue of being the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the 
South Devon AONB Partnership Committee within which the applications 
were sited.  They remained in the meeting and took part in the debate and 
vote on each of these applications:- 

 
18/0742/15/F:  Householder application for demolition of existing extension 
and construction of 2 storey extension, alterations to dwelling with 
associated landscaping and parking – Laburnum Cottage, Manor Street, 
Dittisham; 
18/0743/15/LB :  Listed Building consent for demolition of existing extension 
and construction of 2 storey extension, alterations to dwelling with 
associated landscaping and parking – Laburnum Cottage, Manor Street, 
Dittisham; and 
05/1325/15/F:  Demolition of existing commercial building and replacement 
with two bedroom bungalow – Development site at SX 672 471, The Old 
Vineyard, Easton, Kingsbridge. 

 
 
DM.40/15 URGENT BUSINESS  
 

The Chairman advised that application 58/1736/15/F: 3A Beach View 
Crescent, Wembury had been withdrawn from the agenda, and application 
56/1085/15/F:  11-20 Burke Road, Totnes had been deferred to a future 
meeting of the Development Management Committee.   

 
DM.41/15 MINUTES 
 

The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 21 October 2015 
were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

 
 
DM.42/15 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

The Chairman announced that a list of members of the public who had 
registered their wish to speak at the meeting had been circulated. 

 
DM.43/15 PLANNING APPLICATIONS  
 

The Committee considered the details of the planning applications prepared 
by the Planning Case officers as presented in the agenda papers, and 
considered also the comments of Town and Parish Councils together with 
other representations received, which were listed within the presented 
agenda reports, and RESOLVED that: 



Dev Management   18.11.15           
 
 

 
 

 
07/1196/15/F Development site SX551 523, adj Venn F arm, 

Brixton 
   Parish:  Brixton 
 
Residential development comprising 17 dwellings with associated access, 
car parking, landscaping, open space and associated works (Phase 2a) 

 
Speakers included: Objector – Mr Terry Salisbury:  Supporter – Ms Laura 
Wilkinson:  Brixton Parish Council Representative – Cllr Michael Wills:  
Ward Member – Cllr Dan Brown 

 
Officer Update:  
• Drainage objection withdrawn subject to planning conditions 
 requiring:  

o A construction phase drainage plan; 
o Additional infiltration tests of one soakaway; 
o Section 106 obligation requiring a management and 

maintenance plan of SuDs features and establishment of a 
Management Company; 

o Correction on the access to the site – it was located to the South 
West  of the site, not South East; 

o Education contribution clarified by the Officer as £23,257.11 
towards  sports provision at Ivybridge Town Council, plus £500 
legal fees. 

 
Recommendation: Conditional Approval 

 
Committee Decision:  That authority to grant condit ional approval be 
delegated to the Lead Specialist (Development Manag ement) in 
consultation with the Chairman of Development Manag ement 
Committee, subject to conditions and the signing of  a Section 106 
Agreement 

 
 

Conditions:  
1. Standard time limit;  
2. Accord with Plans;  
3. External Finishing Materials as shown on approved plans and 
 maintained as such; 
4. Stonework to be agreed and retained in natural finish; 
5. Boundary Treatments as shown on approved plans; 
6. Hardsurfacing, highway, footway, service routes etc. details to be 
 submitted, agreed and implemented; 
7. LEMP to be submitted; 
8. Implementation of ecological mitigation measures and LEMP;  
9. Details of landscaping scheme to be agreed; 
10. Supervision of Ecological Measures;  
11. Implementation of Landscaping;  
12. Retention of Trees & Hedgerows;  
13. No works to hedgerows without evidence of appropriate consents 
 from Natural England; 



Dev Management   18.11.15           
 
 

 
 

14. Protection of Trees & Hedgerows and no storage of equipment etc. 
 within root protection areas; 
15. Open Space Provision, access and maintenance; 
16. No External Burning of Waste;  
17. External Lighting Details;  
18. Details of Energy Efficiency Measures, including details of PV 
 equipment.  PV to be provided for the affordable homes unless the 
 relevant Housing Association provides written confirmation that they 
 will not accept PV on the properties; 
19. Lifetime Homes;  
20. Completion of Highways Related Works;  
21. Garaging & Parking (Residential);  
22. Construction Management Plan; 
23. Hours of Construction Working; 
24. Unsuspected Contamination;  
25. GPDO Exclusion (roof alterations, boundary treatment, porches);  
26. Natural slates to be used in accordance with agreed details, nailed 
 not hooks; 
27. Implementation and maintenance of agreed drainage strategy; and 
28. Details of chimneys to be agreed. 
 
Section 106 
1. Affordable Housing – 4 units of intermediate sale affordable houses 
 (plots 36, 37, 38 and 39). 
2. Education – Payment of a financial contribution towards the 
 provision of secondary education at Ivybridge Community College 
 and secondary school transport. 
3. Tamar/Yealm Estuary SACs –Payment of a contribution of £603.28 
4. Sport and recreation – Payment of a contribution of £45.220 towards 
 improved facilities for off-site sport and recreation 
5. Play provision within Brixton if Phase 2b does not proceed – 
 Payment of a contribution of £42,284 towards upgrading local play 
 facilities if the play area shown in Phase 2b is not delivered - a 
 trigger for this payment to be agreed. 
6. Public Open Spaces, Landscape and Ecology – arrangements for  
 the setting up of a management company or other organisation and 
 the payment of a commuted sum of £12,000 to the Parish Council, 
 management company or other agreed organisation for the 
 maintenance of the public open spaces for a minimum period of 15 
 years 
7. Provision of a permissive footpath linking the site to the Erme Plym 
 Trail 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Dev Management   18.11.15           
 
 

 
 

07/1197/15/O Proposed Development site at SX550 522  adjacent 
to Venn Farm,  Brixton 

    Parish:  Brixton 
 
Outline application (with some matters reserved) for residential development of 
up to 17 dwellings, with associated means of access and provision of 
landscape buffer to south (Phase 2b) 
 
Speakers included: Supporter – Ms Laura Wilkinson; Ward Member – Cllr Dan 
Brown 
 
 
Officer Update: 
o Phase 2b land not owned by the Council Member 
o Drainage objection withdrawn subject to planning conditions requiring: 
o A construction phase drainage plan 
o Additional infiltration tests of one soakaway 
o Section 106 obligation requiring a management and maintenance plan of 

SuDs features and establishment of a Management Company 
o Education contribution clarified by the Officer as £23,257.11 towards sports 

provision at Ivybridge Town Council, plus £500 legal fees 
 
Recommendation: Conditional Approval 
 
During discussion, Members raised concerns over the urban feel of the 
proposal, design of the properties and that orientation of the properties be such 
to maximise solar gain, and that all of these matters be taken into account for 
the Reserved Matters application. 
 
Committee Decision: That authority to grant conditi onal approval be 
delegated to the Lead Specialist (Development Manag ement) in 
consultation with the Chairman of Development Manag ement Committee, 
subject to conditions and the signing of a Section 106 Agreement 
 
Conditions: 
1. Standard time limit for submission of reserved matters; 
2. Standard time limit for commencement of development; 
3. Access details accord with plans;  
4. LEMP to be submitted; 
5. Implementation of ecological mitigation measures and LEMP;  
6. Supervision of Ecological Measures;  
7. Retention of Trees & Hedgerows;  
8. No works to hedgerows without evidence of appropriate consents from 
 Natural England; 
9. Protection of Trees & Hedgerows and no storage of equipment within root 
 protection area; 
10. Open Space Provision, access and maintenance; 
11. No External Burning of Waste;  
12. Details of Energy Efficiency Measures, including details of PV equipment;  
13. Lifetime Homes;  
14. Completion of Highways Related Works;  
15. Construction Management Plan; 



Dev Management   18.11.15           
 
 

 
 

16. Hours of Construction Working;  
17. Unsuspected Contamination;  
18. GPDO Exclusion (roof alterations, boundary treatment, porches); and  
19. Implementation and maintenance of agreed drainage strategy. 
 
 
Section 106: 
1. Affordable Housing – 5 units of intermediate sale affordable houses;  
2. Education – Payment of a contribution towards the provision of secondary 
 education at Ivybridge Community College and towards secondary school 
 transport; 
3. Tamar/Yealm Estuary SACs –Payment of a contribution dependent on final 
 number of dwellings; 
4. Sport and recreation – Payment of a contribution of £595 per occupier 
 towards improved facilities for off-site sport and recreation; and 
5. Public Open Spaces, landscape and Ecology – payment of a commuted 
 sum to the Parish Council or other agreed organisation for the maintenance 
 of the public open spaces for a minimum period of 15 years and a 
 requirement to set up an appropriate organisation to manage the public 
 open spaces, landscaping and ecology and to ensure continued access. 
 
Informative: 
1. Reserved Matters to include a housing mix that reflects local demand 
 
 
14/1687/15/VAR   Stables, Lownard Mill, Dartington 
     Parish:  Dartington 
 
Variation of condition 6 (Traffic Management Plan) and removal of condition 7 
(Closure of Access) of planning consent 14/3161/14/F 
 
Speakers included:  Dartington Parish Council Representative – Cllr Jo Tisdall; 
Ward Member – Cllr Hodgson 
 
Officer Update: The officer updated the Committee on the history of the access, 
and the Highways Officer gave advice on  
 
Recommendation:  Conditional Approval 
 
Committee Decision: Conditional Approval 
 
Conditions: 
1. Accord with plans 
2. Unsuspected Contamination 
3. Holiday accommodation 
4. Access and parking in accordance with approved plans 
5. Details of traffic movements and construction 
6. Development carried out in accordance with Preliminary Ecological 
 Assessment 
 
[Cllr Brazil was not in attendance for the above application] 
 



Dev Management   18.11.15           
 
 

 
 

18/0742/15/F  Laburnum Cottage, Manor Road, Dittish am 
    Parish:  Dittisham  
 
Householder application for demolition of existing extension and construction of 
2 storey extension, alterations to dwelling with associated landscaping and 
parking 
 
Listed building consent for demolition of existing extension and construction of 
2 storey extension, alterations to dwelling with associated landscaping and 
parking 
 
 
Speakers included:  Objector – Mr John Walker:  Supporter – Mrs Sharon 
Quinn:  Ward Member – Cllr Tucker 
 
Parish or Town Council: Dittisham Parish Council 
 
Parish Council’s View: Objection 
 
Officer Update: None 
 
Recommendation: Conditional Approval 
 
Committee Decision: Conditional Approval 
 
Conditions: 
1. Time limit; 
2. Accord with plans;  
3. External finishes to extension; 
4. Stonework to parking area; and 
5. Unsuspected contamination. 
 
Informative regarding protected species 
 
 
 
18/0743/15/LB  Laburnum Cottage, Manor Road, Dittis ham 

     Parish:  Dittisham 
 
Listed building consent for demolition of existing extension and construction of 
2 storey extension, alterations to dwelling with associated landscaping and 
parking 
Speakers included:  Objector – Mr John Walker :  Supporter – Mrs Sharon 
Quinn:  Ward Member – Cllr Tucker 
 
Officer Update: None 
 
Recommendation: Conditional Approval 
 
Committee Decision: Conditional Approval 
 
 



Dev Management   18.11.15           
 
 

 
 

 
Conditions: 
 
1. Time limit; and 
2. Accord with plans. 
 
 
05/1325/15/F Development site at SX 672 471, The Ol d Vineyard, 

Easton, Kingsbridge 
    Parish:  Bigbury 
 
Demolition of existing commercial building and replacement with two bedroom 
bungalow 
 
 
Objector – Mr Mike Garton-Sprenger:  Supporter – Mr Smith:  Parish Council 
Representative – Cllr Cathy Case;  Ward Member Cllr Ward 

 
Officer Update: None 
 
Recommendation:  Refusal 
 
Committee Decision:  Defer the decision until a sit e visit has been 
conducted 

 
 
DM.43/15 PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE  

 
The COP Lead Specialist Planning advised Members of updates relating to 
the presented list of appeals. 

 
 
 

(Meeting commenced at 11.00am and concluded at 4:35 pm) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_______________ 
        Chairman 



Dev Management   18.11.15           
 
 

 
 

Voting Analysis for Planning Applications – DM Comm ittee 18 November 2015    

Application No:  Site Address  Vote Councillors who Voted  
Yes 

Councillors who Voted 
No 

Councillors who 
Voted Abstain 

Absent  

07/1196/15/F 

 
Site at SX 550 522, 
Venn Farm, Brixton 

Conditional 
Approval 

Cllrs Steer, Bramble, Rowe, Hitchins, 
Cuthbert, Holway (6) 

Brazil, Hodgson, Vint (3) Pearce (1)  
 

Cllrs Foss, Cane 
(2) 

07/1197/15/O 

 
Site at SX 551 523,  
Venn Farm, Brixton 

Conditional 
Approval 

Cllrs Steer, Bramble, Rowe, Hitchins, 
Cuthbert, Holway, Pearce (7) 

Brazil, Hodgson, Vint (3) (0) Cllrs Foss, Cane  

(2) 

14/1687/15/VAR 

Stables, Lownard Mill, 
Dartington Conditional 

Approval 

Cllrs Holway, Bramble, Pearce, Cane, 
Hitchins (5) 

Cllrs Cuthbert, Hodgson, 
Vint (3) 

Cllrs Rowe, 
Steer (2) 

Cllrs Foss, Brazil 
(2) 

18/0742/15/F 

 
Laburnum Cottage, 
Manor Street, Dittisham 

Conditional 
Approval 

Cllrs Steer, Holway, Bramble, Rowe, 
Cane, Cuthbert (6) 

 Cllrs Pearce, Hodgson (2) 
 
 

Cllrs Hitchins, 
Brazil, Vint (3) 

Cllr Foss (1) 

18/0743/15/LB 

 
Laburnum Cottage, 
Manor Street, Dittisham 

Conditional 
Approval 

Cllrs Steer, Holway, Vint, Bramble, Cane, 
Cuthbert, Rowe (7) 

Cllrs Pearce, Hitchins (2) 
 
 

Cllrs Hodgson, 
Brazil (2) 

Cllr Foss (1) 

05/1325/15/F 

 
 
Site at SX672 471, The 
Old Vineyard, Easton, 
Kingsbridge 
 

Site 
Inspection 

Cllrs Steer, Bramble, Holway, Cane, 
Cuthbert, Vint, Brazil, Hitchins, Hodgson 
(9) 
 
 

 Cllrs Rowe, Pearce (2)  (0) Cllr Foss (1) 



Dev Management   18.11.15           
 
 

 
 

 



  O+S 19.11.15 

 
 

   
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE  

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
HELD AT FOLLATON HOUSE, TOTNES ON 

THURSDAY, 19 NOVEMBER 2015   
 

Panel Members in attendance : 
* Denotes attendance    Ø  Denotes apology for absence          

* Cllr K J Baldry * Cllr D W May 
*   Cllr N A Barnes   *  Cllr J T Pennington 
* Cllr J I G Blackler * Cllr K Pringle 
*  Cllr D Brown * Cllr M F Saltern (Chairman) 
* Cllr J P Green * Cllr P C Smerdon 
* Cllr J D Hawkins * Cllr K R H Wingate 
* Cllr D Horsburgh   

 
Other Members  also in attendance:   

Cllrs H D Bastone, I Bramble, J Brazil, P K Cuthbert, R F D Gilbert, M J Hicks, P W 
Hitchins, J M Hodgson, T R Holway, J A Pearce, R Rowe, R C Steer, R J Tucker, R J Vint, 
L A H Ward and S A E Wright 
 
Item No  Minute Ref No  

below refers 
Officers in attendance and participating  

All  Head of Paid Service and Senior Specialist – Democratic 
Services 

8 and 9 O&S.51/15 and 
O&S.52/15 

Section 151 Officer and Finance Business Partner 

10 O&S.53/15 Lead Specialist – Place and Strategy 
11 O&S.54/15 Group Manager – Support Services 
12 O&S.55/15 Executive Director (Service Delivery and Commercial 

Development), Group Manager – Customer First and 
Contact Centre Manager 

13 O&S.56/15 Monitoring Officer 
14, 15 and 

16(a) 
O&S.57/15, 

O&S.58/15 and 
O&S.59/15(a) 

Group Manager – Business Development 

16(b) O&S.59/15(b) Group Manager – Commercial Services 
16(c) O&S.59/15(c) Lead Specialist – Place and Strategy 

 
 
O&S.46/15 WELCOME 
 

In his introductions, the Chairman welcomed Cllr J P Green to his first 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel meeting following his recent election. 

 
 
O&S.47/15 MINUTES 
 

The minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel held on 17 
September 2015 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the 
Chairman. 

 



  O+S 19.11.15 

 
 

O&S.48/15  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

Members and officers were invited to declare any interests in the items of 
business to be considered during the course of the meeting.  These were 
recorded as follows:- 
 
Cllr J P Green declared a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in Item 8: ‘Review 
of Fees and Charges for 2016/17’ (Minute O&S.51/15 below refers) 
specifically in relation to the proposed fee for Acupuncture, Tattooing, Ear-
piercing and Electrolysis by virtue of his wife being an acupuncturist.  In the 
event of this particular fee being debated, Cllr Green advised that he would 
then leave the meeting during the discussion and he abstained from the 
vote on the recommendation. 
 
Cllr K R H Wingate declared a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in Item 8: 
‘Review of Fees and Charges for 2016/17’ (Minute O&S.51/15 below refers) 
specifically in relation to the proposal to establish an Events Policy Task 
and Finish Group by virtue of public comments that he had previously made 
in this regard.  Cllr Wingate proceeded to leave the meeting room during 
the debate on this matter and abstained from the vote on the 
recommendation. 

 
 

O&S.49/15 PUBLIC FORUM 
 
 In accordance with the Public Forum Procedure Rules, no items were 

raised at this meeting. 
 
 
O&S.50/15 EXECUTIVE FORWARD PLAN 
 
 The following issues were raised on the most recently published Executive 

Forward Plan:- 
 

- Having sought clarity on the Rent Plus agenda item (which was 
scheduled for consideration by the Executive at its meeting on 10 
December 2015), it was noted that a report was to be presented as a 
consequence of the implications arising from the Housing and Planning 
Bill; 

- In the absence of the Local Development Scheme from the most 
recently published Forward Plan, it was agreed that an update would 
be provided in the next Members’ Bulletin edition. 

   
 
O&S.51/15 REVIEW OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR 2016/17 
 
 The Panel considered a report that set out proposals for fees and charges 

for all services for 2016/17.  The report noted that, in the event of each of 
the recommendations being endorsed, additional income that could be 
generated from this review would total £5.000. 

 
  
 



  O+S 19.11.15 

 
 

 In discussion, reference was made to:- 
 

(a) the number of events being held on Council land.  In acknowledging 
that the number of events were increasing year on year, a number of 
Members lamented the current lack of a consistent (yet with a degree 
of flexibility built in) approach from the Council.  As a consequence, the 
following additional recommendation was PROPOSED and 
SECONDED and when put to the vote was declared CARRIED:- 
 
‘That an Events Policy Task and Finish Group (comprising of Cllrs 
Baldry, Bramble (Group Lead) and Brown) be established with the 
primary purpose of reviewing and revising the Council’s Events Policy.’ 
 

(b) the justification for a proposed reduction in some fees and charges.  
The lead Executive Member for Support Services informed that these 
reductions were proposed in an attempt to bring these fees and 
charges in line with those proposed by West Devon Borough Council 
(WDBC).  Some Members proceeded to put on record their views that 
the Council should be locally setting its own charges and should not be 
giving any consideration to those proposed by WDBC.  In reply, 
officers informed that there was a need for the Council to be able to 
justify its fees and charges structure and it would be deemed 
disproportionate if the same shared officers (and processes) were 
proven to be working to two different sets of charging regimes;      
 

(c) charging for the use of public conveniences.  A Member highlighted the 
inconsistency of approach for charging to use public conveniences and 
urged the lead Executive Member to make progress in this regard; 

 
(d) the proposed charges for shower use.  Some Members felt that the 

proposed charges to be applied for shower use were too low and 
should therefore be increased.  As a result, it was PROPOSED and 
SECONDED and when put to the vote was declared CARRIED:- 

 
‘That, for 2016/17, the shower charges should be increased from 20p 
to £1.’ 
 

(e) the proposed Site Sponsorship charges.  Having been informed that 
Site Sponsorship opportunities were not being taken up, an additional 
recommendation was PROPOSED and SECONDED and on being put 
to the vote was declared CARRIED:- 
 
‘That, before a decision is taken by the Council, a benchmarking 
exercise be undertaken in order to review the proposed Site 
Sponsorship charges and the Panel also task officers to investigate 
methods of increasing marketing opportunities to promote this 
initiative.’ 
 

  



  O+S 19.11.15 

 
 

(f) opportunities arising from trade waste charges.  A non-Panel Member 
expressed his disappointment that the Council was not being more 
ambitious in respect of utilising opportunities to generate more income 
from the trade waste function.  The Member was of the view that the 
Council could generate at least an additional £200,000 per annum if it 
exploited the opportunities which were available to it from the trade 
waste service. 

 
 It was then: 

 
RESOLVED 
 

1. That the Executive RECOMMEND to Council that the proposed 
fees and charges (as set out in the presented agenda report 
and appendices) be approved as part of the 2016/17 Budget 
Setting process, subject to the shower charges being 
increased from 20p to £1; 

 
2. That the Executive RECOMMEND to Council that delegated 

authority be given to the Community Of Practice Lead for 
Environmental Health, in consultation with the Lead Executive 
Member, to modify the charges of Food Export Certificates, 
once the outcome of the current review is known; 

 
3. That the Executive RECOMMEND to Council that delegated 

authority be given to the Group Manager for Commercial 
Services, in consultation with the lead Executive Member, to 
set the Commercial Waste charges, once all the price 
modelling factors are known; 

 
4. That, before a decision is taken by the Council, a 

benchmarking exercise be undertaken in order to review the 
proposed Site Sponsorship charges and the Panel also task 
officers to investigate methods of increasing marketing 
opportunities to promote this initiative; and 

 
5. That an Events Policy Task and Finish Group (comprising of 

Cllrs Baldry, Bramble (Group Lead) and Brown) be established 
with the primary purpose of reviewing and revising the 
Council’s Events Policy. 

 

 (NOTE: recommendations 1, 2 and 3 (above) will be considered by the 
Executive at its 4 February 2016 meeting as part of the wider 2016/17 
Budget Setting process).  

 
 
  



  O+S 19.11.15 

 
 

O&S.52/15 NEW HOMES BONUS ALLOCATION TO DARTMOOR NATIONAL 
PARK AUTHORITY 

 
 In line with the Council decision when approving the 2015/16 Budget at its 

meeting on 12 February 2015 (Minute 66/14 below refers), a paper was 
considered that provided a progress update on the application and use of 
the New Homes Bonus funds that had been transferred to the Dartmoor 
National Park Sustainable Community Fund. 

 
  In the ensuing discussion, the Panel noted that the allocations varied in 

the published agenda papers, as a consequence of there being a twelve 
month time lag in the process. 

 
It was then: 
 

RESOLVED 
 
That the paper be noted. 

 
 
O&S.53/15 OUR PLAN: SOUTH HAMS – REVIEW 
 

A report was considered that provided a progress update on Our Plan: 
South Hams. 
 
During the debate, reference was made to:- 
 
(a) the division of responsibilities between lead Executive Members.  For 

clarity, it was confirmed that the Leader of Council was the lead 
Executive Member for the overriding ‘Our Plan: South Hams’ and Cllr 
Hicks was the lead Executive Member specifically for the ‘Local Plan’ 
element of ‘Our Plan: South Hams’.  In welcoming this clarification, 
Members were keen to emphasise that Our Plan: South Hams was 
more than just concerned with the local plan and house building.  
Having said that, another Member stressed that it was of paramount 
importance that the Council established its housing need numbers.  In 
this respect, the Leader informed that the Housing Needs Survey was 
being refreshed and would be reported back to Members for 
consideration; 
 

(b) the need to improve the communications in relation to Our Plan: South 
Hams was recognised by the Panel; 

 
(c) Member participation in the process.  The Panel was of the view that an 

all Member event should be held early in the New Year to discuss Our 
Plan: South Hams and the underpinning delivery plan; 

 
(d) the Village Housing Initiative (VHI).  Officers confirmed that they were 

attempting to bring together a number of approaches to housing 
development and the VHI concept was a key scheme that would be 
specifically looked at during this process; 

 



  O+S 19.11.15 

 
 

(e) the Delivery Plan being a shared document with West Devon Borough 
Council (WDBC).  Whilst it was noted that the key themes and 
objectives were almost identical between the two councils, the Panel 
asked that, in the future, consideration be given to the Delivery Plans 
being separated for both councils. 

It was then: 
 

RESOLVED 
 
1. That the monitoring of Our Plan: South Hams and the 2015/16 
 Action Plan be noted; 
 
That the Executive RECOMMEND to Council that: 
 
2. Our Plan: South Hams be issued for the start of the 2016/17 
 Financial Year as a document that:- 
 
o recognises Our Plan: South Hams for the start as the single 
 comprehensive Council Plan; 
o re-states the Council’s corporate Vision and Objectives; 
o establishes the common basis for the Council’s Financial Plan, 
 Asset Management Plan, Local Plan and all other Plans and 
 Strategies; 
o establishes long-term and short-term priorities for delivery 
 including a delivery plan commencing in 2016/17; 
o establishes mechanisms for delivery; and 
o establishes engagement, monitoring and review procedures; 
o provides context for subsequent incorporation of the Local Plan 
 element currently subject to separate preparation. 
 
3. a Member Workshop be held early in the New Year to 
 progress this work; 
 
4. the final document return to the Executive and Council for 
 agreement prior to its publication. 
 
 

O&S.54/15 TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME MONITORING 
 
 The Group Manager – Support Services provided an update on the 

Transformation Programme and highlighted that:- 
 

- the Development Management service had gone live on the W2 
System this week; 

- a positive meeting had been held recently with Civica (the IT system 
provider); and 

- the Programme remained on target in respect of timescale and 
budget. 

 
 
 



  O+S 19.11.15 

 
 

During the debate, reference was made to:- 
 
(a) presenting monitoring reports to the Panel prior to their consideration 

by the Executive.  In the future, officers agreed to re-align the 
quarterly monitoring reports that were presented to the Executive to 
ensure that they were considered by the Panel in the first instance; 
 

(b) the pace and extent of the Programme.  Some Members were of the 
view that, in hindsight, the Programme had been progressed too 
quickly and staff numbers had been reduced too severely; 

 
(c) the Modern.Gov committee management system.  Officers advised 

that the Council was now in a position to commence with a Member 
trial of the new system.  As a general point on the Council’s intention 
to reduce its paper usage, it was noted that discussions were taking 
place with town and parish councils in an attempt to minimise the 
impact of this drive. 
 

RESOLVED 
 

1. That the progress update be noted; and 
 

2. That, in the future, the quarterly Transformation Programme 
Monitoring Reports be presented to the Panel before being 
considered by the Executive. 

  
 
O&S.55/15 CUSTOMER SERVICES UPDATE 

 
 Following regular updates to the Panel, a report was presented that 

updated Members on the Customer Services performance trends since 
the last meeting.  In particular, the report paid attention to telephone call 
answer times, call volumes and staff recruitment as areas of particular 
concern. 

 
In discussion, the following points were raised:- 
 
(a) Whilst it was acknowledged that the latest performance trends were 

showing some signs of improvement, a number of Members 
expressed their opinions and disappointment that the service was still 
of an unacceptable standard.  The two statistics that were repeatedly 
highlighted as being of particular concern were that: 
 
o 18% of calls were not being answered; and 
o 26% of callers were having to wait over 7 minutes to have their call 

answered. 
 
In response to Members citing specific examples of the public 
receiving poor service from the Contact Centre, the Head of Paid 
Service urged that, in such instances, Members let him know 
accordingly. 
 



  O+S 19.11.15 

 
 

The Panel reiterated its desire to see a far greater improvement in 
performance and it was then PROPOSED and SECONDED and 
when put to the vote declared CARRIED that:- 
 
‘A clear action plan be produced for Customer Services and 
presented to the next Panel meeting on 14 January 2016 for its 
consideration.’ 
 

(b) When questioned, the Panel noted that, as a result of the blueprinting 
exercise, the Contact Centre had provision for a core staffing level of 
15 full-time equivalent members of staff.  Such was the pressure on 
the service, some Members felt that, whilst there were inevitable 
revenue implications, staffing numbers had to be reviewed in the 
Contact Centre; 
 

(c) With regard to some quick wins, officers agreed to remind staff 
throughout the Council to be professional in their telephone manner.  
In addition, it was agreed that, for outgoing calls from the Council, 
officers would ensure that the telephone number was no longer 
displayed as being ‘withheld’. 

 
In conclusion, whilst the Panel had been robust in stating its concerns 
and frustrations, Members did recognise that the staff in the Contact 
Centre were doing a good job and working tirelessly in very difficult 
circumstances.  As a consequence, the Panel asked that its thanks be 
passed on to those staff who work in the Contact Centre. 
 
It was then: 

 
RESOLVED 
 

That a clear action plan be produced for Customer Services and 
presented to the next Panel meeting on 14 January 2016 for its 
consideration. 

 
 
O&S.56/15 DISPENSATIONS TO DUAL-HATTED MEMBERS 

 
 A report was considered that sought to consider whether the general 

dispensation that had previously been granted to all dual-hatted 
Members should be extended. 

 
 In discussion, a Member expressed his dissatisfaction over the 

recommendation and, in particular, was unhappy that a Member of the 
Executive could also be a Devon County Council (DCC) Member.  The 
Member felt it to be inevitable that there would be occasions when the 
two roles would lead to a Member having a conflict of interest.  To 
counter this view, other Members highlighted that a dual-hatted Member 
could in fact utilise this position to the benefit of the Council.  Moreover, 
it was recognised that Executive Members had very limited individual 
decision-making powers.   

 



  O+S 19.11.15 

 
 

It was then: 
 

RESOLVED 
 
That the general dispensation that had been previously granted to 
all dual-hatted Members of South Hams District Council to enable 
them to speak and vote on matters where they are a Member of 
another local authority and in receipt of a Members’ Allowances for 
that other authority be extended until May 2019. 

 
 

O&S.57/15 BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT GROUP MANAGER UPDATE 
 

 The Panel considered a report that presented an update on the 
Business Development Group Manager role. 

 
 In discussion, reference was made to:- 
 

(a) the 27 possible income generation activities identified in the 
presented agenda report.  In light of a request, the lead Executive 
Member confirmed that he would circulate a generic list of these 
activities to the wider membership.  As an assurance, it was 
confirmed that activities relating to trade waste and sponsorship were 
included on this list; 
 

(b) the performance and intelligence team.  It was noted that the team 
was still heavily involved in the process mapping for the 
Transformation Programme and, realistically, the team would be fully 
integrated and established early in the New Year; 

 
(c) projects related to Salcombe Harbour.  Having been informed that 

the Harbour Master had a number of potential business development 
opportunities in mind, the Panel asked that the Harbour Board be 
fully consulted with as and when ideas started to be progressed. 

It was then: 
 

RESOLVED 
 
That the report and the work completed and planned by the 
Business Development Group Manager role be noted.  
 
 

O&S.58/15 UPDATE ON THE RURAL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME FOR 
ENGLAND (RDPE) 2014-2020 

 
 The Panel considered a report that provided an update on the Rural 

Development Programme for England (RDPE) 2014-2020. 
 
 In discussion, it became apparent that some Members had concerns 

regarding the seeming lack of monitoring, transparency and feedback 
that the Council received from the South Devon Coastal Local Action 
Group (LAG) and Greater Dartmoor – Local Enterprise Action Fund 
(LEAF).  As a consequence, the Panel requested that representatives 



  O+S 19.11.15 

 
 

from the LEAF and LAG be invited to attend the Panel meeting on 17 
March 2016. 

 
It was then: 
 

RESOLVED 
 
1. That the report be noted and the scheme be promoted as 

appropriate with local residents and businesses; 
 
2. That the Council continue to support the Greater Dartmoor – 

Local Enterprise Action Fund (LEAF) and the South Devon 
Coastal Local Action Group (LAG); and 

 
3. That representatives from the LEAF and LAG be invited to 

attend and provide an update to the Panel meeting on 17 March 
2016. 

 
O&S.59/15 TASK AND FINISH GROUP UPDATES  
 

(a) Performance Measures 
 
A report was considered that presented the final report of the 
Performance Measures Review Task and Finish Group.  In 
introducing the report, the Group Chairman paid particular attention 
to the choice of performance measures being subject to continuous 
review and changed as and when deemed necessary and as 
Members concerns altered. 
 
The Panel wished to put on record its thanks to the Chairman and 
Members of the Group, officers and the lead Executive Member for 
undertaking an excellent review. 
 
It was then: 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the findings of the Task and Finish Group be endorsed 
whereby:- 
 
1. streamlined versions of the Balanced Scorecard and 

Background and Exception report (as shown in Appendices A 
and B respectively of the presented agenda report) be made 
available to Members on a quarterly basis, containing 
measures where a Scrutiny role is beneficial; 
 

2. financial measures be reported elsewhere and therefore not 
included in these reports, with these measures being replaced 
with specific T18 measures; 

 
3. an in-depth quarterly analysis of an area or department be 

included within the reporting, designated to interrogate the high 



  O+S 19.11.15 

 
 

level performance data further and identify trends, 
improvements etc.  This ‘deep-dive’ quarterly analysis will 
either follow a pre-determined schedule or be flexible enough 
to focus on issues raised by a prior quarterly report; and 

 
4. once the T18 Programme is fully operational, Members will be 

given easy access to a much larger range of ‘live’ performance 
data that they can choose to access at any time, rather than 
just relying on the reports presented to them. 

 
(b) Dartmouth Lower Ferry 

 
It was noted that an interesting and informative site visit had been 
undertaken to the Ferry and Workshop.  Following this visit, a further 
Group meeting had been held on 5 November 2015, during which a 
broad overview of the initial findings of the report produced by RPT 
Consulting was presented. 
 
In terms of next steps, Members were advised that a Group meeting 
was to be held in December 2015, with the subsequent 
recommendations then presented to the next Panel meeting on 14 
January 2016, before then being considered by the Executive on 4 
February 2016. 
 

(c) Partnerships 
 
Members were advised that the first joint Group meeting had been 
held and valued contributions had been made from Members of both 
the Council and West Devon Borough Council.  The meeting had 
given a real insight into the vast number of Partnerships that the 
Council was involved in and the joint meeting had enabled for a 
number of useful comparisons to be drawn. 
 
It was noted that the next joint meeting was to be held on 6 January 
2016 at Kilworthy Park, Tavistock. 
 

(d) Waste and Recycling 
 
The Panel acknowledged that a final wash up meeting of the Task 
and Finish Group had been held on 24 September 2015 and the 
newly convened Group was to hold its first meeting in December 
2015. 
 
Members commented that it would be beneficial for the notes of the 
final Group meeting to be circulated with the agenda for the next 
Panel meeting on 14 January 2015. 
 

  



  O+S 19.11.15 

 
 

O&S.60/15 MEMBER VISIT TO THE NATIONAL MARITIME OPERATIONS 
CENTRE IN FAREHAM  
 
The lead Executive Member for Customer First introduced a paper that 
had been prepared by the Harbour Master following their visit to HM 
Coastguards National Maritime Operations Centre on Friday, 13 
November 2015. 
 
In conclusion, the paper outlined that the visit had been useful and 
informative and had addressed all known concerns that had been raised 
by Members.  Particularly reassuring was the willingness to acknowledge 
that the Centre still had further progress to make that was coupled with a 
resolve to do so. 
 
In discussion, reference was made to:- 
 
(a) the presentation given by the Coastguard representative.  In 

commending the quality of the presentation that they had received, 
the lead Executive Member was of the view that a number of the 
public relations problems that had been incurred by the organisation 
would have been overcome if the key messages in the presentation 
had been disseminated from the offset;  
 

(b) the transformation agenda.  Members were informed that the impact 
of Central Government budget cuts had been kept to a minimum for 
the organisation in light of it having the foresight to begin its 
transformation agenda before any government funding 
announcements had been made; 
 

(c) concerns over the loss of local knowledge.  In countering these 
concerns, an example was cited to the meeting whereby three 
officers from Brixham were now working at the Centre in Fareham; 

 
(d) two main challenges remaining.  The Panel was informed that a new 

pager system was in the process of being tested to replace the 
current antiquated system.  Also, the representative had promised to 
follow up on a specific query relating to blind spots and he gave a 
commitment to let the Council know in due course. 

 
The Chairman proceeded to thank the Member and Harbour Master for 
attending such a worthwhile visit and asked that the Council’s thanks 
also be extended to the organisation.  Finally, the Panel welcomed the 
conclusion of this longstanding agenda item and felt that any specific 
issues that arise in the future should be progressed through local MPs. 

 
  



  O+S 19.11.15 

 
 

O&S.61/15 DRAFT ANNUAL WORK PROGRAMME 2015/16 
 

The Panel considered its draft 2015/16 Work Programme and made 
particular reference to:- 
 
(a) a Development Management (DM) service update.  The Panel 

endorsed the suggestion that a DM service update be presented to its 
next meeting on 14 January 2016.  In particular, Members asked that 
this agenda item made reference to service improvements following 
the new system going live on the website and an update on the 
outsourcing of the services backlog of applications; 
 

(b) the Customer Services Action Plan.  The Panel reiterated that this 
agenda item should be scheduled on to the agenda for 14 January 
2016 meeting; 

 
(c) attendance of the LEAF and LAG representatives.  Members repeated 

their request for LEAF and LAG representatives to be invited to the 
Panel meeting on 17 March 2016. 
 
 

(Meeting started at 10.00 am and concluded at 1.00 pm). 
 
             ___________________ 
   Chairman 




	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	Minutes - 5 November 2015

	7 Business Brought Forward by the Chairman
	10 Devolution Draft Proposal
	Appendix 1 - Draft Proposal

	11 Corporate Enforcement Policy
	Appendix A - Enforcement Policy

	12a Development Management Committee	- 23 September 2015
	12b Audit Committee - 24 September 2015
	12c Salcombe Harbour Board* - 28 September 2015
	Appendix A - Proposed Charges 2016-17

	12d Executive* - 15 October 2015
	12e Development Management Committee	- 21 October 2015
	12f Salcombe Harbour Board - 2 November 2015
	12g Licensing Committee* - 12 November 2015
	12h Development Management Committee	- 18 November 2015
	12i Overview & Scrutiny Panel* - 19 November 2015

